
 
 
 
 
 
#plymaudit 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Thursday 12 December 2013 
2.00 pm 
Warspite Room, Council House 
 
Members: 
Councillor Wheeler, Chair 
Councillor Dr. Mahony, Vice Chair 
Councillors Murphy, Stark and Stevens. 
 
Independent Members: 
Mrs Badger, Mr Clarke and Mr Stewart. 
 
Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf. 
 
 
Tracey Lee 
Chief Executive 

 

 

 Democratic Support 
Plymouth City Council 
Civic Centre 
Plymouth  PL1 2AA 
 
Please ask for  Helen Rickman 
T 01752 398444 
E helen.rickman@plymouth.gov.uk 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 
Published 3 December 2013 

Public Document Pack



 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
PART I – PUBLIC MEETING 
  
1. APOLOGIES    
  
 To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Committee Members. 
  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
  
 Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this 

Agenda. 
  
3. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 10) 
  
 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 19 September 2013. 
  
4. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS    
  
 To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 

forward for urgent consideration. 
  
5. INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT (SIX MONTH 

PROGRESS REPORT)   
(Pages 11 - 38) 

  
 The Council’s internal auditor will submit the Internal Audit Annual Report (six month 

progress report). 
  
6. TREASURY MANAGEMENT MID YEAR REVIEW 2013/14   (Pages 39 - 62) 
  
 The Committee will be provided with the Treasury Management and Mid-Year Review 

2013/14. 
  
7. OPERATIONAL RISK AND OPPORTUNITY 

MANAGEMENT - UPDATE REPORT   
(Pages 63 - 68) 

  
 The Head of Corporate Risk and Insurance will submit the Operational Risk and 

Opportunity Management update report. 
  
8. COVERT SURVEILLANCE RIPA   (Pages 69 - 70) 
  
 Members will be provided with the Covert Surveillance RIPA update for their 

information.  
 

  



 

9. AUDIT UPDATE - GRANT THORNTON   (Pages 71 - 82) 
  
 Grant Thornton will provide the Committee with a general update on audit progress. 
  
10. ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2012/2013   (Pages 83 - 98) 
  
 Grant Thornton, the External Auditor, will submit the Annual Audit Letter 2012/13. 
  
11. CERTIFICATION REPORT 2012/13   (Pages 99 - 

108) 
  
 The Council’s External Auditor, Grant Thornton, will submit the Certification Report 

2012/13 for the Committee’s consideration. 
  
12. REVIEW OF ROLLING WORKPLAN   (Pages 109 - 

112) 
  
 The Committee will review the rolling workplan. 
  
13. DATE AND VENUE OF FUTURE AUDIT MEETINGS    
  
 The following Audit Committee meetings have been scheduled for 2pm in the Council 

House: 
 

• Thursday 13 March 2014 
 
A Sub Committee has been scheduled for 23 January 2014 at 2pm to discuss Treasury 
Management. 

  
14. EXEMPT BUSINESS    
  
 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 

1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) of 
business on the grounds that it (they) involve the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended by the 
Freedom of Information Act 2000. 

  
PART II (PRIVATE MEETING) 
 
AGENDA 
 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE 
that under the law, the Panel is entitled to consider certain items in private.  Members of the 
public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are discussed.  
 
NIL. 
  
 



This page is intentionally left blank



��������		���

����
���������
��
	�

������

��������		���

�
�

���
���������
��
	�

������
�

���������
�
����������	
������
	��	���	������	
����������	���	������
	����	������	
�����������	������	�����������	���	����������	��������	���	�������	
	
�����������	�� ����!			
��	"��#��
	��	���$���	���	��	����%��	
	
&����#���	���	�������!	�����������	����%	���	��������		
	
&���	��	����������!			
�����	"���	�������	&����	����#��	���	�����	'��������
	������ 	���	�&�	���	(������
	
)�����������
	'�������#�	���	&������
	�����	�����$	�������	*���	��	�����	&����	+�����������
	
���������	����	�������	&����	����#��	���	�����	'��������
	������	(�����	������	&����������
	
���	�$���	�*���	��	��'�
	��%�	*��%��#	�*���	��	���������	,��%	���	����������
	�� ����	
��������	�&����	����#���
	"�����	������	���������	���	�����	'��������
	�����	-������	�*���	��	
(�������
	*����	,��% ��	��� �������	�������	.��������	
	
'��	 �����#	�������	��	/�00	� 	���	��������	��	1�/0	� �	
	
�����������	
�
�������
������������
������
�������
�����������
������	����������	���
�
�����������������
����
������������������������������������
�
�����	����������
���������	
������������������
�
���������
��������������
	

���� �������� !���!"� ����������
	
'����	$���	��	������������	��	��������	��	����������	$���	���	����	��	��������	
	

���� # �$������
	
'��	 ������	��	23	4���	/023	$���	��������	��	�	�������	�������		
	
5����	����	��� 	���	�����	����� ��	���	�����	����
	$���	���������	��	 �����22
	6.����������	,��%	
����#� ���	7	5�����	,�����6
	��	������	��	���	+�� ����	���	
���	�����	,������	.�����	���	
����	��������	��	���	��  �����	���	� ����	
	

���� �%� �&��$�'����($� �������
	
'����	$���	��	��� �	��	�����6�	5�#���	"��������	
	
	
	
	

Agenda Item 3Page 1



��������		���

����
���������
��
	�

������

���� ���$������!����!��%!����%��'���) �%�'!*��������+� ���$� �'�
�%���$� ��!� � !����
	
"�����	������
	��������	���	�����	'�������
	��������	���	��  �����	$���	��	������	��	���	
8&�����	,�����	��	'����	����#��	$���	����������	7	��������#	���	&����	.������6�	'��	�������	
��	���	������	$��	��	��#���#��	%��	 ������	������#	��� 	���	�����	��	+�� ����	����	�������6�	
���������	����� ����	���	���	����	�����#	32	�����	/023�	
	
'��	��  �����	$��	����� ��	����	7		
	
���	 �����	'�������	��������	��	�������	��	��9��������	�������	��	���	�������6�	

���������	����� ����	���	���	����	�����#	32	�����	/023	������ ��#	����	���	
���������	����� ����	�� ���	$���	��������	���������#	����������	��$����	
�� �	%��	������	$���	������:	
	

���	 ���	�������	���	���	�����$��	���	���������#	����� ���	���	���	���������	"��%	
������ ����	��	����������	$���	���	��+(&	#�������	������:	
	

���	 �����	'�������	���	����������	���	����	���	���	�������	��	�������	�����	
����������	�����������	��	��������	��	���	����	�������	�����	������!	���	��������	
��	���	�����	������:	���	#���������	�����#� ����	���	���	�����	
����	
+����������	�#��� ���:	���	�������	�������������	���	���	� ����	�;������	��	
����	��	���	$����	�����������	�����#� ����:	
	

���	 �����	'�������	����������	����	���	�������	���	���	��������	�	���������	
$�����	���	���������	����� ����	���	���	������	�����<����	�����	��	 ���#��#	���	
������	��������	����:	��	����������	����������	����	���	����	�����	��	���	
���������	����� ����	������#	���	���� ����	������	�����	��	=>�> :	
	

���	 ���	�������6�	?����	$����	+(�	���� �	$���	�����	������	�������	���	'�����	
�������	$����	���� �	�����������	��	/021@2A:	#���������	�����#� ����	���	
���������#	����� ���	�����	������	��	��	���������:	
	

���	 #���������	 �����#� ����	 ���	 ���	 '� ��	 "���#�	 ���	 '�������	 (����	 ?����	
���������	�����	������	��	��	���������:	

	
��	��������	��	9��������	������	��	$��	��������	����	7		
	
�#�	 $���	��#����	��	���	����� ���	��	���	���������	"��%	��������	������ ��	����	

���	�������	���	����	�������	$���	���	��������	��	����������#	���	� ���� ���	
��?��� ���	$�����	���	��������	���	��	���	���������	�����������	����	���	
�����	��	������	��������:	����	$��	����������	$���	���	����� ���	��	��������	
�����:	
	

���	 �����	'�������	������ ��	����	+�� ����	����	�������	$��	���	�����	��	���	
��������	��	���	�������#	�����#� ����	���	���	���������	"��%	�����:	
	

Page 2



��������		���

����
���������
��
	�

������

���	 $���	��#����	��	���	�����	��	������	�����	����	�����	��	 ���#��#	���	�������6�	
������	��������	����
	��������	������ ��	����	���	��9���� ���	���	����	���������	
���	����������	���������#	����� ���	$��	���	��������	��	���	��������	���	��	
�����	$���	�� ��#	���	�������#	�������	��	$��	����������	����	���	� ��� ����	
$���	���������	���������#	������	���	$����	���	������	���	����	��������	��	���	
��������	
���	�������	��	�������	�� �
	��	$��	����������	����	�������	����6	
$��%	$��	��9�����	��	�������	����	����� �����	��	���	������	�����	����	���	
� ��� ���	$����	���	����	���	� ����	��	���	������6�	�������	��	���������	���	
��������
	���	����	�����	$��	��	� ����	��	���	���������	������	��	�������	��;	
������
	��������	���	�������	���	��	 �%�	���	� ��� ���	����	�����	*�$����
	��	
$����	��	��������	��� 	��;�	����:	
	

�?�	 $���	 ��#����	 ��	 ���	 �����	 ��	 ���	 '� ��	 "���#�	 ���	 '�������	 (����	 4����	
��  �����	 #���������	 �����#� ����
	 ��������	 $���	 ���������	 ��	
��  ���������	$���	������#���	��	����$���	���	��	$��	��������	����	���#����	
$��	����#	 ���	��	����	 �����:		����	$��	���	�;������	��	��	��	�����	���	��;�	
����6�	��������:	

	 	
'��	�����	����%��	"�����	������	���	���	������	���	��	$��	�#����	����	���	8&�����	,�����	��	
'����	����#��	$���	����������	7	��������#	���	&����	.������6	$��	�����	���	��#���	��	���	
������	
	
5����	����	��� 	"�����	������
	��������	���	�����	'�������
	����%��	������	(�����
	�����	
&���������
	���	���	�;�������	�������	����	���	������		
	

���� �$� �����������,�����!'��������!�����
	
���������	����
	������	&����	����#��	���	�����	'�������	��������	���	��  �����	$���	���	
&����	+���	/02/@23	+��#����	,������	&����	��	$��%	��������#	�����	�������������
	--�,
	
'�������	+������	,�����	���	*�����#	"������	�������	���� 	$���	�����	��	���#����	$���	$��%	
�;������	��	��	�� ������	���$���	����� ���	7	-��� ���	/023�	
	
+��	.�������	������ ��	����	$���	�$���	��	� ��#��#	�������	
	
&#����	����	���	&����	+���	/02/@23	+��#����	,�����	��	������	
	

���� *��$��"!��#!��-����!���+�" ���� ������ � �������
	
���������	����
	������	����#��	���	�����	'�������	��������	���	��  �����	$���	���	�����	���	
�����	,�����	7	(��������	,����������	�����	"���
	������	����#��	���	�����	'�������	$��	
����������	��	���	��  ������	
	
'��	��  �����	$��	����� ��	����	7		
	
���	 ���	�����	���	�����	������	��������	�	�����$	��	����� ���	��	���	�������	���	

������	�����#� ����	��	�����	���	�������#	���������	����������:	
	

���	 ���	�������	$��	#����	��	�������	� ���	�����#	���	���������	����������	$����	
�������	���	�����#� ����	��	���9����:	

Page 3



��������		���

����
���������
��
	�

������

		
���	 ������	��	���%����	��	���	�������	$���	�����	��#���	����	�����#�	��$����	���	

�������	�����	$��	�	��$�$���	���:	
	

���	 ���	�������6�	 ���	���������	$��	4����	��  ��������#	���	&����	������	����
	
$���	�	�����	�������	��������	��	�	=1�> 	���������:	���	�������	����������	���	
���������	��	����������	������������	�����	��	���	����	���	���%	���������	������	
��	 ���#�	����	������	���	�������:	
	

���	 ���	 �?�����	��	%��	����������	$�����	���	������	$���	�����	��	#����	
��##�����#	����	#���	�����#� ����	$���	��	�����:	
	

���	 �����	$��	�	�����������	�������	������	���	�����#	��	%��	����������	��	������	
����	?��#� ����	$���	����:	

	
��	��������	��	9��������	������	��	$��	��������	����	7		
	
�#�	 ���	�������	���	�����	�	������������	� ����	��	�� �	��	���%���#	���%����	

�������:	���������	������	$���	��$	���	��	�����	��	������	���%�����	
�����������	���	���	����	����������	��	����	$���	����	�����	��$����	
������������	������	$���	����	��	�����	��	����	�����������	������	��	$��%:	
	

���	 ���	�������	��;	����������	�����	$���	���������	���	��	� ���	��	��������	$���	
������	��	 ���	��������	���#���	���	���	���	��<����	����������	�����	��$����	
���	����������	����	������	���	���������	���	���	������	����	$����	$��	��������:		
	

���	 $���	 ��#����	 ��	 ��#�	 B3	 ��	 ���	 ������ ������	 �#����	 ���%	 ��#�����#	 ���	
��  ���	 ����	 �������	 8��������	 ����	 ����	 ���$	 ��	 �������	 ��	 ��#��������	
���������#	������6	��	$��	������ ��	����	����	�������	��	�����������	������	���	
$����	 �����������	 ���	 ���	 ���������	 ���%	 ��	 ���#����	 ������	 ���	 '� ��	
"���#�	C	'�������	(����	 �'"'(�	 4����	��  �����	#����������	'��	������#��	
(������	 ����#��	 ������ ��	 ����	 ���	 �������	 ���	 ����	 ��	 �����������	 $���	
��������	��	����	��	�����	������	*�$����
	���	���	�����	
���	�����	
����	
+����������
	 �����	$��	 �	 ���%	��	 �������	 ��	 ���	�������	 ��#�����#	 #���������	
�����#� ����	 ��	 ���	 �����	 ��������	 �+�� ����
	 '�����	 ���	 �������	 
���	
��#����	 ��	 '"'(
	 ��������	 ������ ��	 ��	 �������	 �����#	 ���	 ����	 ����	 ���	 �	
�����$	 ��	  �����#	 $��	 ���������	 ������	 ���	 ���	 ��	 -��� ����	 ���������	
����	 ������ ��	 ����	 ���	 ������������	 ���$���	 �����	 '�������	 ��	 �;������	
��������	���	+�� ����	����	�������	$��	����	#���:	���	��������	$���	�� ���	
���������	 ����	 ���#����	 ���	 �������	 ���#����	 ���$���	 4������	 ���	 &�#���	
/023:	 ��������	 $���	 ���������#	 ��	 $��%	 ��	 �����	 ������	 ���	 �������	 ���	
��  �����	����	�����	�$�	�����	$����	��	��������	��	����	��	��������:	

	
&#����	����	���	������	��	������	
	
	
	
	

Page 4



��������		���

����
���������
��
	�

������

�	�� �$� ��"��������������,�.���
	
���������	����
	������	&����	����#��	���	�����	'�������	��������	���	��  �����	$���	���	
&����	(��	D�����	/023@21�	
	
'��	��  �����	$��	����� ��	����	���	&����	��  ������	�������	���	�����	�����	���	���	����	
����#�	$��	���	�� �	��	/02/@23�	
	
&#����	����	���	&����	(��	D�����	/023@21	��	������	
	

�
�� �����#����!"����!$��������,�����
	
������	(�����
	�����	&���������
	��������	���	��  �����	$���	���	����� ���	��	&�������	
/02/@23�	�� ����	$���	����� ��	����	�����	$��	�	 ����	� ��� ���	��	���	������	��	���	
�����$��%	���������	��#�����#	���	��������	�� ���������	����	��	��#�	EF	��	���	�#����	���%�	'��	
);������	&�������	���	��9������	���	� ��� ���	��	���	�������6	��������	
	
'��	��  �����	$��	����� ��	����	7		
	
���	 ���	�������6�	�����	���������	����� ���	��	��������	$��	��������	���	

��������	�����	���	���	&����	��  �����	��	���	��������	���	���������	
��������	��	/A	4���	/023:	
	

���	 �����	$��	�	��#��������	�����	$����	���	��������	�����	���	�����	��������	
$���	���������	��	4���
	�� ���	���	3	����� ���	/023	�������	��������	
��������#	���	���������	��	�	���������	������	���	���	��������� ���	��	���	
�����	������:	
	

���	 �������	����� ����	��	=A/B
000	���	����	��������	$���	��#����	��	���	
���������	"��%	������ ���:		
	

���	 ��	/023@21	�����	$���	�;������	��	��	�������	��#��������	��$	��	����#��	
��9���� ����	��	���	����	��	+�������:		
	

���	 �����	$��	�	��9���� ���	���	���	������	��	��������������	��	��	����������	���	
��� �����	��	���	�������	��	30	����� ���	/023:	

	
��	��������	��	9��������	������	��	$��	��������	����	7		
	
���	 ���	 ��  �����	 $����	 ��	 ��������	 $���	 �	 $������	 ��������	 ��#�����#	 ���	

����������	��	������������	��	��������	���$���	�������	$����	$��	���������	
���	��	20	��	10	�����	���	+�����	(������	����������	�������	$����	$��	���	��	>0	
�����:	
	

�#�	 ���	$���	8�� �������������6	������	��	���	��������	��	(��������	'�� �	
���������	���	$��	��	$����	������	$���	��������	��	����#	���%��	��$�	����	
��������	�� �������	��	�������	������������	��	��������:	
	

Page 5



��������		���

����
���������
��
	�

������

���	 ���	��  �����	$����	��	��������	$���	�	$������	��������	��#�����#	���		
��������	��	����������#	�����	��	8 ���	����	���	����6	���$���	32	�����	/02/	
���	32	�����	/023:	
	

���	 ���	��������	��	���	������
	�����������	���	�����	�;������	�������	��	�� ����	
&���$�����	���$��	��	 ��������	��	��#��	�� ��	���	� ����	 ������	 ��	/022@2/:	
����	$��	�������	�	����������	���� ��	���������	�;������	��	�����	��	������	
�������	 �����#�:	

	
&#����	����	7		
	
2	 ���	&����	��  �����	����	���	� ��� ����	 ���	��	���	����� ���	��	

&�������	���	/02/@23	��	�#����	$���	���	&������
	���	��������	��	����	������:	
	

/	 ���	����� ���	��	&�������	���	/02/@23	��������	��	&������;	&	��	��������:	
	

3	 ���	������	��	��������������	��������	��	&������;	"	��	����������	���	
��� �����	��	���	&������:	
	

1	 ���	 ����	� ��� ���	��	���	�����$��%	���������	��#�����#	���	��������	
�� ���������	����	��	��#�	EF	��	���	�#����	���%	��	$����	���	��#���	��	���	
�����	�� ���������	���� �	���	���	��������	���	+�����@	��  �����	��������	
������	����	����	23F
BAF	�������	��	23F
BF	$��	�����:	
	

A	 ���	 ��  �����	 $����	 ��	 ��������	 $���	 �	 $������	 ��������	 ��#�����#	 ���	
����������	��	������������	��	��������	���$���	�������	$����	$��	���������	
���	��	20	��	10	�����	���	+�����	(������	����������	�������	$����	$��	���	��	>0	
�����:	

	
5����	����	��� 	���	�����	����� ��	���	��  �����	����	������	(�����
	�����	&���������
	$��	
���	��	�����	���	�������	�����	/1	�����6	�������:	������	$��	�������	���	���	����	$��%	���	
��  �� ���	��	���	����	���	$��	$�����	#���	���%	���	���	�������	
	

���� ������' ��� �/�����!��!��$� �-���' �����#!� �!� �'����!�����
	
��%�	*��%��#
	*���	��	���������	,��%	���	���������
	��������	���	��  �����	$���	���	������#��	
,��%	���	.����������	����#� ���	,�#�����	���������#	,������	
	
'��	��  �����	$��	����� ��	����	���	������	��������	�	��  ���	��	���	������	��� ��	 ��������#	
�;������	���	���	������	�����	/023	��	&�#���	/023:	���	�����	�� ���	��	������#��	���%�	��������	
���	���������	��� 	3F	��	3/	$���	���	��������	��	���	��$	���%	���	���	��������	��	��;	���%��		
	
��	��������	��	9��������	������	��	$��	��������	����	7		
	
���	 ���	'�	$��	�	����#����	 ����	��������	$����	$��	����������#	�����������#	�	

+�� ����	��������	��	5����	������:	
	

Page 6



��������		���

����
���������
��
	�

������

	
���	 ���	��#����������	����������	$���	���	&D&,�@	�����	,��%	����#� ���	

"���� ��%��#	����	/023	$���	���������	��	�����	����	��	�����	'�������	���	
����� ��%��#	�;�������:	
	

���	 +�� ����	$��	�����	���	��	���	���#��	�����	��	2B	�����	�� ����	��G��	
�����������	���	,��%	����#� ���	��	+�����	��������:	
	

���	 �����	$���	��<#���#	 �����������	$���	H+��	���	���������	$���	 ��#����	 ��	
���	������� ���	��	���	*,	'������� �����	+��?���:	�	�����	����#�����	����� 	
�����	 ����$	 ���	 ���������	 ����� �����	 ����	 ��	 ��������	 ��	 ��	 ����������	
��������������:	

	
&#����	����	���	&����	��  �����	����	���	�������	���	�������	��������	$���	��#���	��	���	
������#��	,��%	���	.����������	,�#������	
	

����  ���������$� ��+���!'��������!�����
	
�� ����	��������
	&����	����#��
	���	�����	�����$
	������	*���	��	�����	&����	+����������
	
��������	���	��  �����	$���	���	��������	&����	7	���#����	�������	
	
'��	��  �����	$��	����� ��	����	7		
	
���	 ���	�����	������#�	$��	���#������#	$���	��	#���	���#����	���	����	 ���	

�#�����	���	����	�#����	$���	 ���#� ���	���	���	/023@21	���������	����:	
	

���	 � ����� ����	$���	��9�����	���	���	*�����#	"�������	����� 
	���	&�����	
��������	��	H��	����� �	/02/@23	���	���	8���������6	���������	����� 	
��$����	$��%	$��	����#	�������%��	��	���#����	����:	
	

���	 $��%	 ��#�����#	 ���	 
������	 ,���� �	 $��	 �����������	 ��������	 ��	 ���	
�����$��%	���	������	����	����	����	���	������	$��	��	�	8#���	��������6	���	
���	8��	���#����6:	

	
&#����	����	���	������	��	������	
	

����  ���������$� ��+�"!��!)�$��)!�/���
	
�� ����	��������
	&����	����#��
	���	�����	�����$
	������	*���	��	�����	&����	+����������
	
��������	���	��  �����	$���	���	��������	&����	7	(����$	5�	
��%	�������	
	
'��	��  �����	$��	����� ��	����	7		
	
���	 �����	&����	+����������	���	�������%��	�����$	��	�����$�	��	$��%
	��	�	

������	��	���	&�����	��������	&����
	$����	���	�������	�����	�������	$��	����	
8� ����� ����	$���	��9�����6:	
	

���	 �������	 ���#���	$���	 �%��#	���#����	��	���������#	��	������	������:	

Page 7



��������		���

����
���������
��
	�

������

	
���	 +����������	
��%��#	��'	����� �	���$��	����	#���	���#����	���	����	 ���	

���	�����	$��	�����	$��%	��	��	����:	
	

���	 �����$	��	$��%	$���	��#����	��	���������	���������	$����	��	�������%��	
�����	��	���	����:	
	

���	 #���	���#����	���	����	 ���	$���	���	"�������	����������	/02/@23	$��%:	
	
'��	��  �����	$��	� �������	$���	���#����	 ���	���	�������#��	��������	��	����������	��	���	
 �����#	��	����	����	���%	��	 � ����	��	������	
	
&#����	���	������	��	������	
	

���� ��* �)�!"��!�� �'�)!�/�������
	
'��	��  �����	�����	���	������#	$��%�����	
	
&#����	����	8����� �����	��  ���������	&����6	$����	��	��������	��	���	������#	$��%����	���	
�����	/021�	
	

����  ������!�����
	
���	�$��
	*���	��	��'
	��������	���	��  �����	$���	��	������	��	��'�	
	
'��	��  �����	$��	����� ��	����	7		
	
���	 ����	������	��������	$��	��	��	���������	��	�������	+������#	��;�	$��%:	����	

��#���������	$��	���������	#���#	�����#�	���	��������	�������:	���	-�$	
�����	��������	��  ��������#	�����	���	��������	���	������	���	
'��#�����#�	��������	�������	���	���������	����	������	��	�����	�;�������	
��  �����	��	����� ���	���	���	�������	��	����	 �����#	$��	���	��	��	
��������	��	��������:	
	

���	 ���	�� 	��	������	��������	$��	��	�������	����� ��	#��$��
	������	�����	���	
�����	���	�������� �����	�#����:	
	

���	 ���	 ��������	 ����	 ���	 ����	 ������	 ��������	 $��	 ���	 ��	 #�	 ��	 �������	 ��	
.������	 /023:	 ���	 ����#����	 ���	 � ��� ��������	 �������#	 $��	 ���	 ��;�	
�#����	����:	

		
��	��������	��	9��������	������	��	$��	��������	����	7		
	
���	 ���	��������	����	���	������	�������	��������	����	����	�������	$����	����	

���	����	����:	
	
	

Page 8



��������		���

����
���������
��
	�

������

���	 ���	 ����	���	������	��������	���	���	�������	��	��	������	���	��	�����	
��������	���	��#����������:	���	 ����	$��	����������	��	��	9����	������#	
��#�:	
	

���	 );����	����	�������	$��	�����	��	���	�������	��	����������#	���	������	��������	
������:		
	

�#�	 ���������	�����#�	$���	�����	��	���	����	��������	$��%��#	��#�����	��	���	
�������	��$����	���	�������	��	����	�����	��	$��%	���	���	��9����	���	����	
��������:	
	

���	 ��  ������	�������������	�����	��	�������#����	��	���	������:	
	

���	 ����� �����	$��	����	������	��	�#��� ���	��	�����	��	�������	����	
����������	��������:		
	

�?�	 ��	$��	���������	��	������	��	�����	 � ����	$���	��	��	 ���	���������	��	�	����	
��	����	�������� �����	�������:	��������	$���	���������	����	������	��������	
$��	�	�����������	���?���:	
	

�%�	 ���	������	������	����#������	��	
������	*����	$��	�	����������	���?���	
$����	������	��	���	����	$��%	��	��������	��� 	���:	
	

���	 ��������	$����	�������	���	��  �����	$���	���	�� ���	���	����#��#	������	
��	�� ������	�����:		

	
&#����	����	���	������	��	�����	���	����	��������	$����	�������	���	��  �����	$���	���	�� ���	
���	����#��#	������	��	�� ������	������	
	

���� ���������*��$��!"�"$�$����$� ��#��� �'����
	
'��	�����	������ ��	���	�����	���	������	��	������	 �����#�	�� ���!	
	

•� '�������	2/	���� ���	/023
	/� 	��	���	�������	*����	
•� '�������	23	�����	/021
	/� 	��	���	�������	*����	
•� &	���<��  �����	���	����	���������	���	/3	4������	/021
	/� 	��	���	�������	*�����	
•� '�������	����#� ���	'������#	���	����	���������	���	������	E	���� ���	/023
	2�30	7	
3� 	��	���	�������	*�����	

	
5����	����	��� 	���	&��������	��������	���	(������
	)�����������
	'�������#�	���	&�����	��#���#����	
���	� ��������	��	���	'�������	����#� ���	'������#�	'��	�� �������	�������	.������	������ ��	
����	��	����������	������	$����	��	����	���	��	���	�� ����	��	������	���	�������#	��	���� ����	
	
	
	
	
	

Page 9



��������		���

����
���������
��
	�

������

���� �0�#���($� �������
	
&#����	����	�����	�������	200�&��1�	��	���	D����	������ ���	&��
	2EF/
	���	�����	���	������	��	
�;������	��� 	���	 �����#	���	���	�����$��#	��� �	��	��������	��	���	#������	����	����	�������	
���	��%���	����������	��	�;� ��	����� �����	��	�������	��	����#����	3	��	+���	2	��	��������	2/&	��	
���	&��
	��	� �����	��	���	(����� 	��	����� �����	&��	/000�	
	

����  #��!� � !�������#����1��2���
	
'��	��  �����	$��	��������	$���	��	������	��	���	��	+�������	����� ����	
	
&#����	����	���	������	��	������	
	
	
	
	
	

Page 10



� � �
� � � �

��������	
���	
���
��	
	

�������	 	 	 ���������	
����
����������������	 �


���������		 	 	
�������������	 �

������ � � �������������� �


������	�������	 � ��
�������������� �


��	�������	 	  ����������!�"	������������������#$%	&�� �

�������	 	�������'
��(���!�'�����)���*���	
������������(���


������	������ �� � %��+��"��,-��"��&�.,���
� � � �/����+�������0(
��(���1��*���
���0��*0
2� � �

!�"�	 	 	 	3�4�'�

#�$	���� ����	 	 5�� � � � �

������ �����
	
���%� �	�"	���	��%����	 �
%(�������������*����� ��������)��(��	
�����������������(��������������������������(���
�������2�
���������
���������
���������������)�6������������������������������2����)���������������
�����
����4�70����������	
������������������*������������������
����������(�����8
���������))����*�������)�
�(��	
�(�����9���������������������*��������0�
���������
���	&��������	
�'�%�����(�	
������	
��%�����	����	)*+,-+.	')*+/-+0�	 	 	
%(�����2��)��(������������
�������*�������������(����
��������������������(��(������������)��
�����
����
��������������������������(��
����)��
�����)
���0�%(�����*����(�����������������������(��(�
�����������)����*������������!����)�������������������������*�����(��
�(�
���(��������������!�
�����(������(����
�������������������(��(����
����9������
����������������0�
�
%(������*�����)��(�����������	
�����������������������������������������*�������
�������)�����(��
��������������+/�

�� ����������������
�(�
�������
������(�������
���������
����������������(������*���������*�����
���������:������
��������:����������;�

�� ���)�����������
�(�/��(��<�*��������������(������������(�*�����)�����������(����
���������
��������0�

����������
��%�������� 	"��	������	����	1��������	����	���	!� �����	��%�������� �				�
��������2	"������3	�����3	��	����������
5���0�
���
�����	��%�������� �	�424	
����	��(���$3	
�������$	
�"��$3	������	���	
�"��$	���	!� 5	
����2������	
%(�����2��)��(������������
�������*�����������������������������)��(����
����9���*����������������
��*�������!����2���������������������������������)�������20�
	
�

67�����$	���	��(�� ��$�	

'������$8
�������������	���������������
������2��=���>��45��
��

Agenda Item 5Page 11



� � �
� � � �

!������������� 	���	!�� �� 	"��	�����������	��������
�������������������(��+/�
�

�0� %(�����������������0�
�
���������(�	�%���� 	��� ������	���	����������
5���!����)���
���������������������8
���������))����*����������)�����������
������
���������*�����(��
	���
��������	
�������
������������!����.���������0��
�
����� ���	8��5	-	��"���������	
���������	
����	��
������������4�7�
	
&��52�����	%�%�� �	
5����
�

�2�	�""�		�
�
#���
 �� �,0��0���

���� �  ���
?))�

� '�� � 	������� � �%� � 6�����
�����

�

?�����������6 %� �����+��
'����(���������� �����"�&���������(�����������)��(��������=��>����
�

�
��
�

Page 12



�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
���������	
����
������
���������
���������������������
������
�����
�����
�����
�

 ����!��������
�
"�����������#�������$���
�

�

�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�

���������	
���
����������

Page 13



�

�

���
��������������������
�

%��� �#���	
�����������&������&�!����'������
�������(���������������������������
������&�����'������
��)�%��!������� �#�����
����&*��+���������!���������&����&��������
,
����������������
����&��#������������
!����&�����*��+��-��$�-�����
���������&�!�����#��������
���'�&&����������������
����&��#���������-�����&&�&���������������������������������&)�
�����������������&$&����������#��������������&*���������������
���
��-��$�-��������,
��������
�������-���������
!��������������������	
������������&�.���	�/�����������!�&�����������
�������'�&&������&�������&*��
�

%����������&�����&�����������������#�����������,
�����)����'�&&�������
&������&��#���&����
���0��'���
���#�������������&����&
���&����&�����
��&��#���)������&&�&����&�������&)�����
1�����'��������&����-�
���!������&�����������#����������
��!���*�
�����&2��#���
���*��#*
$�
��

�
�	�������������������
�
������������
�

%��&���������&���������#�������$�����������������-��������"����������������#�����$����
������*�����&����������������&&
�&����&�������-������������!����&�
&&���-����������
�''����&�-������������
����)��������������&��'�&��
��������!�������������
��������&���&������
��������
�&�����'�����������&��������������-��������������&�����3&���&���&
����������&*��

�

%��&���������&����������'�������������&�����3&�
&�*��+��������$�������&���&�!�������������
������������'���������������������������������
������*�
�

Page 14



�

��
�

�� ����
��
��
���
�

� %��&�����������#���&���&
�������'����'���������������'��&��&��������&������&������
����������
���������'���������������'�������������)������������������$�������&��'�-��$�

������$�������&
�����&�����
�������'������&������
�����������&*�1�-�#��)����
&��
���!�������������	��������	����#���&�������&&�����
���&�
�����"�#��!��*�

%���$����!(����#�&��'����� �#���	
�����������&����. 	�/���#��!����������#����
�&&
�������������	
�������������)����������4��5''�����. ��������'�������������
���#���&/�����&���������������������������,
��������&��
������'�����&�&���&�����
�������&�����������-������������
���������������#������#���������&&
���������
�������&�����&��''*�

%�����#����'���&$��&&��������-����������'���������&����	��������	���&�!����
������������������'��������6�����	
��������&�������������5�����������
�&$�
���&����
.6	

/)��������	
����"���&�	&&�&&�����.	"	/*��+����������
����-�&�
������$������
������,
�&���'�������)������&�����!������&$��&&�&&��*��	&&
����������
��������������&�&��
���!�����&�����������������'����&����&$���#��&����������������
���&���&���������#�������'�������������&��#��������&*�
�

� �����
��
� �
� ����
���������)�����!�&���
�����
���
����-��$�������&��������#��
&�����&)�-��

���&�������������,
�����������&����������������������������������&����������
����*���

+�����-��$��&&�&���#��!����������'�����������������#������������&��'������&�
������#����������������������������������&������������������&&����������&$&*��
+����������������������&���#��!����������������&������������)�-��&�����

������$��'����-�
��-��$������&
������������������'������&$&���#��!�������������*�

�� ���	
����
�������������������
�
� 5#�����)�-����#����������,
����������&&��������'��&��&��������&��'��������)�-����

7�8��'��������������
���&�����������.�����&�����������������'�4�8/�������8��'�
�
����'����-��$�����������.�����&�����������������'��48/*�	���������������
!���$��-���'����'�������������&������������&�&��-��������������9*�

����&�����&�������&���������
��:�
&������&���&'������;�������&�����)���������'
����
���#���&��������������&&
������������
��&��#�����&����#�����������#��
���������
��
�����.����&��&�������������/*�

 
���������'�
�������'��
��������#����&�����
���&��������������������#��
&������
.�������/���#��!����!��
������������
&��������������*� ���#�����'�������%�	
���������
-�&����#�������������!���������������������&��
��
����
���������'��&�����'��'���������*�
1�-�#��)���������-��$��&���-�������&&����-����'��
&����
�������-������-�����
&��#���&���������#����)�&��#���������#��������������#������#��
��'��������*�+��$����
��������&���&�-������%��������&�������������������	
����������
����������������������
�������(����!����&��������#������#�����������&
�������-�������,
����*�

	�����&�&�����-������������'�����������-��-����!���!����������#�����������������
���������
�&���������*�

	�&
�������'�������&&�����������&����������)�����
�����#����
&����'��������
���������&�'������������	
���)��&�������������	��������9�

Page 15



�

��
�

�

�� ���
������ �������
�

5#�����)������������������
�������������-�����'�&�����������&$&�������#��
�&��!��&����������������������&)��&������&�����������
�������������&&������#��������
������!�������������#�&���&�����������&$�����������������������*� �&�����
���
�����&������&�
���&��������&&
��&�'��������������������#��������&�&����
������&)������������������&�����������&
���&��#���&���������#���������������������
��&$&����������*���

���#��
&��
����'����-�
������#������&�&��-����&���#����������������������������
'�����������������������#������������������#��������*��<
������'����-�
��-��$�-����
!��
������$���������'������������&������
&��&�!���������������*�

9�&������-��$����'�������
��������������������)����������	
�����&��!���������#����
���&���!����&&
����������������,
���������''����#���&&��'�����	
�������3&����������
����������#��������*�

%����
����������&�������&&������������-���������������&������
���&����'�������������&�
!����&�����
���������
�������-��$�-�������&��������������������'��������������&�
�����&�����������������*�%��&���&�'
������!����������!�����!����#��#�������'�����
�
�������������������&&�������
���������-��$&�-������
�����
����&�!����&�
���*�
�
���'�����&���#���''������������&&������&�����������������)���-�#��)������������
������
�����!���������#��������&���&�#������
��-��$*�+��-������������'
��������#�&��
����&�������������������&��������&*���

	��������	�������&������&&
�������������&�'�������#��
����
���&����������������������
&��������������������������������&&���������'�������!�������*�%�����'�������&��'�����
�&&
��������������������&�������#������	�������� *�

����#��
���=���
��#���
������&�'����-�������#����&����'������������������������&�����
������'��-�����-����#���������&�������������������������
����������������#��������*�

�
��
����� ����
���>�%����������&����'�������������&���#��!����������'����'�����
��
-��$0����#��
&�����&�-��$�������'��������������#����������������#���������-�&�
�����������''����#���)��������&�#��-�������
�&*�

	�#����������
�&����!�����#������������������''����&��&���,
�&��������'������
�!����'�
��>���������(���&*��

��
����!�%����������&����'�������������&���#��!����������'����'�����
��-��$0�
���#��
&�����&�-��$�������'��������������#����������������#���������-�&�����������
�''����#�����������&�#��-�������
�&*��

	�#����������
�&����!�����#������������������''����&��&���,
�&��������'������
�!����'�
��>���������(���&*��

%����
�����'�<�&�������?�	�������������������&&�&���= 
�������������������
'����-�����&&
�&��������&���������&@>�

������&&�������&����!����#��!����&��-�'���!����&����������
����&����������������
��������������������= 
��)������
��������!���������&�������
����&����������������
������&����!�����&�)������&������
������������$��'���&�
���&��#����!��������&������
&��
�����!������''����*���

	�-���'��-��������&����!��'�
���&�������������&&�����!�������-�����-��������
���
��$�����������&&�������''������*�

%�������������������'����= 
����&����������������������'�-��$���������������������

Page 16



�

��
�

�����'�'�����&�'������&���������*��%����������������������&����$�������&���������'����
���(����&���&��&����������&
��������������������*��<��������-��$�
������$���������
-�
���!���������!���'��������#������&������&�
����'������
����&����!��&�����)�
��-�#�������&��
������
&��!����������������������&�����&�����������-�&���������&���
�������&$��'�'��������������������&��&���$�������!���������&���!��5'&����-������#��-����
����(�
������'��������*�

%����
�����'���������=�
�������"���&�'�
�������@>����&
&���'�������������������!��
�����������
�������������	���������������#�����!������ ����������'���=�
��������&�

&���'�����#��������'���''������
&�&�'�������������'�������'
�
��������������#�����'�
&��#���&*�

	����
���������&���������������
���
�����������!�������������
����)�����������&�����
,
�&����&�������������!�������'������
���������!�����������������&�����&*��

9�&����������&�����&�#�&����)����������&&�&����������!�������'�������������������
�'����������������
���������="������-����'�
������!���''����#��!�&����������
��'������������#�������������!��������&����������&*�+�����������������������-���
��#����&��������)�������������&�����#���&�%������#����,
�&�������������������&����
�����&��
���!��#���'����-��������%����&�������!����&�����������������
�������������
����!��#���'��������
�������-���������&&���*��

%��������&&�&�'����������
�����#��-�������������&�����&�'���������������&���������
��������������&���A���#��!�����''����#������������!������&�����&������������&*�

%�������������'�������&$�����&������&�!������������������-�����������
�����
������
��&*�%��&���&�&���������#��������&$�!��������
����'���������!���&���
&������
������&���
&�'����-�������������������#��-*��

����������������
���&�
������$����&�������������)���#���������
���������&�!������
���#���������������&�����&��''����������#��&�-����������������������������*�

���
��>�%����������&����'�������������&���#��!����������'����'�����
��-��$0����#��
&�
����&�-��$�������'��������������#����������������#���������-�&������������''����#����
�������&�#��-�������
�&*��

 	����#��-��������#����������������!���''����&����&
�����������������
����3&����
���
�
��=������=''���������������&
!��&&���)��&���,
�����!������=�#���������	�����*��
+��-�����!���������#�����&&
�����������������
�������&�'
�'��������&��!��������&�-����
������������&����
���&
!��&&�����������������&
!��&&��������������'���&��B
�������*���

 	��-���������&&���������
������$��&����-��$���������������������������'�
�������������''��������&�.%%
53&/�'����#���&*�	�!���'��������������������
��'������&�
-�&��&&
�������'
������-��$�-�&�&
!&�,
�����������&&�������������������������
�������������������'�����	������������0����&��&��
��������-��$����������&&*��

 	����&�������
������&
������������
���+�&�� �#���+�&����������&����+�&����<��
���(����-������&�-�����������&����&��
���������&�*�� 	��������
�������������������(����
=���
��#��9����)��������������#��������������&$&*�������������)�	
������#�����#�����
&
������������#��������-����������(������(���&)�������������������������'�����
��
����3&����������
���������<��������.�
</�-������&������&�����
����������&�)�����
����1�&������������-��&�����(�����������#��!����-��$���������'
������!����������
1��������6�������<
��*�

 
�

����"�+����#�������������&&������������#�����'��
���
������������&�����&�
�����
��������������������������'�����-��$�-���)��&��������)�!���������&���������'��'�
��������*�������&���#��������!����#��������������#���'�����,
�������'��
��&��#���*�%���
��,
�������&����������������������&�����
������������������<C������&����'�����*�+��

Page 17



�

��
�

����'��
&���������'��
���''������������#������������&�����&
������&�����&��������'
���&��
�'��
���!�����*�

D�������������>��
�����������&����������&�&���&������������&����&�����&��������������
��&$&�������'����������������&*�1�-�#��)�������������&$&�����&������$�������&�-�����
���
����#�������&&
�����*��

%���$���������&����&����'���������
���&��������@��

�� �����#����'������������ �#����������������#�����������.9����/0�
�� ���&�����������'����������������������&���������.<������/0�
�� �����#����'�����<���������������&����&��������&�����'���������&�������'�

�����������.9����/0�
�� ��#��-��'�1����������������������6�����&����%����&������&�.9�������

���������/0�����
�� �����#����'�9
&���&&�������
���������.9����������������/*�

	����&�&��'�������&
��&��'��
���������<C������!��'�
���������������	�*�
�

#� ���������������
�
� %�������#��!�������
�!����'��&&
�&�������������
&�'�����#�&���������������&��
����*�

������'�����$����&&
�&���#��-��������&�'����-&�

�
��
����� ����
���>� 	��-���������&&�����������#�&���������-��&���!��-����
�����������&��������&������'�������������!�������'�������
����3&�������������������
5����&*�	����������������&��������-�&��&&
������	
�
&����������������
�������������
(
���������'�����
������''�������
���!��������������,
�&����)���-�#��)������''�����
����������������'��������������'�������
�����!�����&�����)����)��&�&
��)����'
������
�������-�&���,
����*�

 	������'�����&������#�&��������&������-��&���!��-������������#������&&
�&����&���!��
����''����������&������'������������������&�&
''������&������&�,
������'�����������
��
������,
�������&��'�����������*�

��
����"� 
��������������������)����������	
������#�����������
�)�����&&�&���������������
�'�7���-������
���������#�&��������&�-����������������� ����������*�+��$���&�����
����
&
��������������#�&��������������-��&���!��-��������������&��������������������&��'���
�������������������#����0���#�&��������&��������&&�!�����&
&���'������
�������3&��%�
&�&���&���������&��������'�&��&���#����'���������!�������������������������!����������
�
�!��*�

���
��>� 
������������)����������	
������#�����������
�)�����&&�&����������������'�&���
��-������
���������#�&��������&�-���������������� ����������*� 	����#��-��$���-����
��������������������>��'�����&��
�������������&*��

 	����#���&&�&����1
����������������-��������������&&��'�����&�������������
��&������'������!����'�&��''����&��
����'���&�������'�$����������*�%������!����'�&��''�
��&�&
!&�,
������!������&��&&��*��

 	����#����#�&���1
���������������������&������'��

�� ���������������'�����������
&�����������������������������
����'������!���
�'�&��''*��������������#�������
����������������!����'�&��''�������������&�
�����&�������&-��*�
�

�� ���������������������������&�����������&�������������������
����'����!��&�
�'�&��''*�����&��������&�������������������&�����&
!&��������������������&����&��*�

Page 18



�

��
�

�� ��������������&���������������'���
��������������!�����!��&��'�&��''*�%���
���������,
�����!��������
�����������&�
��������&���������*�

�� ��&���������������������������������������&��'�'��
����������������������'�������'�
���&���������������������*�%�����&��������������������&����������>����������
���������'��������&�!����������������������*�

 
�

���>�5�������������
���������&�!������#�&��������!�������������&����������������
��������
���������&��������'��&��&��������&��'����&�����*�%��&�-�&��������������������
��&
&���'���&�������&&
����������-��������-�&�������'�������������������������
���
-�!&���&�����!��������&&����������
�!����'��������������������&�-�&���&��
������'���*�	��������-�&��&&
�����������������������*��

+��$���&�������
���������#������&
������������� �#�����������-�������&��!
������&�
������'���������#�&���������������9���'���3&�����������������*�1�-�#��)����"�#��!���
����������&��'�'��
��-������������!���������-�����&��
��������#�������������'����
�
����#��#����������������������&����&���������������*��

$%��>�	&�������'�������������"<����������������������&�)� 	����#��������
������
������������-��$�
������$���-����������������&���#��-�������������������&�
���#��������������
��������<�!�
��������*�

��������)�E)��A�������&�-���������#��)��'�-������)7�E�-������������&���!������	
����
�����&&�����&����������&����������*�%�����(�������'����&��������&���������������
��
����3&���
&����!���'��)���������)����$�����������.����
�����!�
��!����&/�����
�����&&����������#�������*�%�����������������������������
����3&���&
�����)���������
������&�����������������������*��

%������)����������'��)��E�������&���#��!���������&&��)��'�-�����AF�������&�����
����������������'��
�&���#��!����������'���*�%�����(�������'������&�������'������������
��#��#��������������������'�!�
��!����&����������&&����������#�����&&�&������&������'�
�����&���!���������&&�������&*�%�������������������'��
�&����������������������&�'���
�����&&����������#�����&&�&)�-�����������������#��!����������'���������
&�����3&�
���������������'������*��

5����������&���#��!����������'���������&������'�������
�����������&�����������
�
�!����'���&������������������&��'����������&�����3&���������������#�����������'�
��
&����!���'��*�5'����&����&�&)���&
���'�GA)�4F*����&��
��������������������&&��'�
!���������#����*�

+��$�-����������
������������&�������'�����������&��&���&&�!����������������	
����
�����&&���3&�����������'�B��
��������*����������
���)����
�!����'���&�&�!�����
��#�&��������!��������
����3&�1�
&����9���'���<��
��%�����������
�������#�&���������
-�������
���������'
�����������&)�'��
�&���������#���!����#���������&*��

&� ����
���� ����	�
��
��

�

 
����������������-���&&
����������&
�#���'���&�-�����
��'�����������&*�%�����&
��&��'�
����&
�#��&����
��������)������
�����-�����
�!��)�#�����������������������#����
��&���#�*�%����#��������&
����&�#��������&���)�-���������EF8�!�����H&���&'���;����!������
����&&��
��&��#���&)�&�������������*�����&�#��������&��������������������
��������&�
������
���������������#������
&�'
���&&��'������
����������������'
���&&��'��
���
�����&�
������*��

� �

Page 19



�

��
�

'� ���������(�������
���
�

� %����������&�����������-���������&������������!�&�������
���������������'���&��������
&�����&��'�����&������&���������&������
����&�
&&���&�-�����''����&���&���&�!���'���
���������&&�&���#��-��*��

)� �
*�
+�����������
�

� +��-�
�����$����������&&��
������$&����������������������������&��-������#�����
&
�����������&&�&�������
�����������
�&���'������
���&��������'��&��&��������&��'�
�������*�

� ,
-����.��
����
.����
	������������������

Page 20



�

�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
��

�
��
��

�
��
��
� 
�
�
�
��
��
��
"�
%
��
��
� 
��
�/


�
��
��


	�
01
��
"�
��

� ,
��
*�
�
��
��
��

��
��
2
��
�

6	




�I
�6
��
��
�	

�
��
���
��


�&
$�


��
�&
��
��
.�




�I
��
��
��
��
��
)�5




�5
��
��
���
��
�/�
&�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�6
�$
��
��
��
��
J�
%
��
��
��
��
�6
�#
��
�

	
"
	
�>
�	

�
���
"
��
�&
�	
&&
�&
&�
��
���
�&
$�
��
#�
���
&�
��
��
��
�-
���
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��

�
���
��
�

�,

�
&�
�I
��
��
���
��
��
��

�
���
��
��
�,

�
&�
��
'��
���
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�0�
��
��
�&
$�
�&
&�
&&
�
��
���
�'
��
�
��
��
��
�#
��
��
!�
��

�

�


��


��
��
� 
��
��

�
��
3�
�

��
�
��
�
���
4
5�

�
�
�
��
��
��
��

6
��
��

 
��
��
��

�
��
�
��
�

�
�

�
�
��
�

�
�

�
��

�
��
��
� 
�
�
�
��
��



�#
��

�
&�
?
�

9
��
�'
��&
��
�&
��
�
�

�
��
��
��
��
&�

� �
$
�
��.
��
�
��
��
*�

��
��
��
��

��
>

�
��
��
�&
&�

�
%
��
�'�
��
��
-
��
$�
�&
��
��
���
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�&
��
'��
��
��
��
��
�#
��

!�
��
���
��
��'
��
�*
�

�
��
��
	
��
�

��
��
��

�
�&
��
�
�

� �
$
�
��/

��
��
�
���
��
*�

��
��
��
��

��
>

�
��
��
�&
&�

�
+
��
$�
��
&�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
���
�&
��
�#
��
-
*�

6�
��
&�
?
�

��
#�
&�
�
��
�&
�

� �
$
�
�(


+
��
��
*�

��
��
��
��

��
>

�
��
��
�&
&�

�

�
+
��
$�
�&
�

��
��
-
��
�'�
��
��
�&
��
�#
��
-
*�

�
��
�

��
���
��
��
�

�
��
(�
��
�.
�
��
/�
�

� �
,
,
�"
��
�
-
��
�

��
��
��
��

5
�>
D
��
��
�
�



��
��
���
�#
��
#�
�
��
���
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
(�
��
�9
��
��
���
��
��
#�
��
��
��
�>�
��
��

��
#�
��
��
��
�&

�
��
��
��
��
��
�(
��
���
�
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
#�
�-
��
'�

��
��
�&
&�
&*
�

�
�
��
��
���

��
��
��
��
��
���
��
?
�

%
��
�&
'�
��

� �
$
�
���
��
��

�
���
��
�*
�

�

��
��
��
��

5
�>
D
��
��
�
�

 
	
�
��
�&
��
��
���

�
��
��&
���
#�
�#
��
��
���
&�
��
��
��
-
��%
��
��
��
��
��
���
�&
�&
��
�
�

-
��
���
�#
��
��
�	
��
��)
��
�&

�
��
��
��
��
&�
�

���
��
��
��
��
��
��
�&
�&

'
'��
��
��
�

!

&�
��
&&
��
��
���
%
��
��
��
��
&*
�

�

Page 21



�

	
�

�

�


9
���
 
�&
��
�&

�
��

��
��
9
��
���
��
�
��
#�
��
�

� �
���
�
��
,
�7
�
��
��

�
$
�
��.
��
�
��
��
*�

��
��
��
��

��
>

�
��
��
�&
&�

�
+
��
$�
��
&�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
���
�&
��
�#
��
-
*�



�#
��

�
&�
?
�

9
��
�'
��&
�>
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
�&
�

.+
��
'�
��
�

�'
��
�
&/
�

� �
,
,
�"
��
�
-
��
�

�

��
��
��
��

<
��
��
�

D
��
��
�
��
��
��
��

<
��
��
-
��
��
��
��
��
&�
��
���
��
+
��
'�
��
�

��
��
��	
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
���
��
��
��

<

�
��
.�
��
�

�
���
��
��
��
D
��
��
&�
��
��
�
��&
�&
�6
��
�&
/�
-
��
��
�-
�&
�

��
�
��
�&
��
��
��
!�
���
��
 
+
�
���
��
&'
��
��
��
��
���
��
���

�
��
���
��
&�
��
��
��
�	
��
���

��
��
���
��
=
�
��
��
��
��
?
�+
��
'�
��
��
��
��
��
-
��
���
�#
��
��
��
��
�
�

��
*��

�
��
�
��
�&
�'�
��
���
��
'

��
���
��
��
��
��
��
�

�
��
��
-
��
���
��
���
��
!

��
��
&�

��
�'
���
��
'�
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
���
�&
���
$�
��
���
��
��
-
��
��
�&
&�
�'
���
��
=
�
��
��
��
��

+
��
'�
��
�<

�
��
��
��
&�
��
�!
��
��
�&
��
�'

��
��
��
��
��
�&

�
��
��
��
���
�&
��
��
�

��
�

��
��
��
��
��
�#
��
��
��
&&
���
���
*�%
��
�&
��
#�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�'

��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
���
��
�#
���
�&
*��

 
��
�#
��
��
�'
���
��
=
�
��
��
��
��
+
��
'�
��
�<

�
��
�&
�&
���
���
��
��
��
�#
��
��
��
-
�

��
&�
��
&�
!�
���
��
'�
��
��
��
�
�

��
���
��
��
�&
�&

�
��
��
��
&�
&�
��
&�
��
��
��
��
�&
&�
&�

'�
��
�'
'�
��
�#
��
��
��#
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
���
'��
��
&�
��
��
��
��
��
��
���

�
��
���
�

�#
��
#�
* ��

�
�
��
��
�'
��
�#
��
��
��
��
��

�  
,
,
�"
�,
��
�

��
��
��
��

5
�>
D
��
��
�
�

 
	
�
��
�#
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
#�
��
��
�#
��
�)
�&

�
��
��
��
��
��
&&

�
��
��
���
���
��

��
��
���
&$
��
�-
���
���
��
��
��
#�
��
��
��
���
'��
��
��
�#
��
��
��
��
�*
��	

�
���
��
&�

!�
��
��
!�
��
��
�!
���
��
��&
��
��
��
��
��
��
�'
��
��
#�
�

&�
�
�(
��
��
��
�

��
�
��
��

��
��
��
&�
&�
��
#�
�#
��
��
�
��
��
���
�#
��
 
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
&�
!�
��
��
��
&�
��
��
��

��
�(
��
���
��
���
�&
�'�
���
-
��
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
�
��
���
'��
��
��
��
'�
��
��
�!
��
��
�*
�

 
	
�
�-
���
��
��
���

�
���
�&

�
��
��
���
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
'��
��
�&
��
��
&�
�'
���
��

��
�(
��
�*�

�
�
��
���
��

�
��
'� 
=
6%
�

� �
���
�
��
,
�7
�
��
��

�
$
�
�/
��
��
�
�

�

��
��
��
��

5
�>
D
��
��
�
� "
�	
�

 
	
�
�-
�&
��
��
�
�&
&�
��
��
���
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
�#
��
-
��
'��
��
��
��

�
��
��
���
��

��
��
���
��
��
���
��
��
#�
��
��
��
���
'��
��
� 
=
6%
�9

&
��
�&
&�
�
�&
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�&
&

�
��
��
�&
��
��
�'�
��
��
��
��'
��

�
�&
�

��
��
-
��
��
���
�-
�&
�

!�
&�
�*
���
��
��
���
��
)��
��
�!
(�
��
�#
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
+
5
%
��
��
��
&�
&�
-
�&
�

��
�#
��
��
��

�
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

�
���
�&
��
��
��
�&
$&
���
��
���
��
��
��
���
��
�'
��
�

&�
��
��
���
%
�&
��
#�
��
�&

�
��
�&
� 
=
6%
�-
�

��
��
��
&�
��
���
���
��
�
�

��
��*
�

Page 22



�



�

�

	
��
���
��
��
�-
��
$�
-
�&
��
�&
��

�
��
��
�$
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

�
�&
��
��
�

��
#�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�&
��
&&
��
��
��
��
-
���
���
��
��
�(
��
�*�

�
�
��
��
��<
��
��
��
��
�

C
��

�
��
��
��
��
�&
�

� �
$
�
�(


+
�

�

��
��
��
��

5
�>
D
��
��
�
�

+
��
��
��
��
��
���
���
��
 
��
��
��
��
��'
��
�=
�

��
���
��
��
��
��
���
&�
��
��
&�
��
��

&

!�
���
��
���
��
��
&�
�'>
�&
&�
&&
�
��
���
��

�
�&
�'�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�*
��

�
��
��
���

� �
$
�
��.
��
�
��
��
*�

�

��
��
��
��

��
>

�
��
��
�&
&�

�
%
��
&�
�&
��
��
�-
��
��
��
���
&�
&�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
#�
�-
���
��
��
#�
��
�

�&
&

��
��
��
��
�

��
���
��
�'
'�
��
�#
��
�&
&�
�'
��
��
��
��
&�
��
��
��
��
�&
&�
&�

��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�"
�#
��
!�
�*
��

%
��
�'�
���
-
��
��
�

��
�&
�-
���
�!
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
���
��
&�
��
��
��
��
'��
'��
��
��
@�

��
1
�

&�
��
�9
��
�'
��&
�.
	
"
	
�>
�1
��
��
��&
$/
�

��
K
��
�<
��
��
��
��
��
�&
��
�
&�
>�
	
��
�&
&�
�
��
��
��
&�
.	
"
	
�>
��1
��
��
��&
$�
/�

��
�
��
��
��
�&
�.
	
"
	
��>
�1
��
��
��&
$/
�

��
�
�

��
���
%
��
�.
	
"
	
�>
���
��
�

�
��
�&
$�
/�

��
 
�!
��
�&
�.
	
"
	
�>
�6
�-
��
�&
$�
/�

��
�%
��
��
��
��
���
�&
��
�
&�
.	
"
	
�>
�6
�-
��
�&
$�
/�

��
�
��
���
��	
��
�

��
��
��
>�
	
&&
��
�

��
�&
��
��
.	
"
	
�>
�6
�-
��
�&
$�
/�

��
"
"
 


�.
	
"
	
�>
�6
�-
��
�&
$/
��

��
	
!&
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��.
�




�>
�	
�
!�
��
/�

��
�
��
��
��
��
�6
��
��
��
��
.�




�I
�	
�
!�
�/
�

��
�
��
��
��
�9

�
��
&�
.�
���
��
�

�,

�
&�
�>
�	
"
	
�I
��
��
�

�
/�

��
<
�
�B
��
��
�C
��
�

��
��
��
(�
��
.�
���
��
�

�,

�
&�
�>
�	
"
	
�>
��
��
�

�
/�

��
�
��
��
��6
��
��
��
��
�
��
#�
�&
��
��
��
�6
=
 
��
��
��
��
�
��
&�
.�
���
��
�

�,

�
&�
�>
�	
"
	
�I
��
��
�

�
/�

�
�


��


��
��
� 
��
��

�
��

"�
��
4
�

�
�

�
�

��
%
�<
��
��
��
��
�

�
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��

 
��
'��

D
��
��
�
��
��
��
��

+
��
$�
��
���
��
��
(

��
���
��
-
���
���
%
���
�&
�-
��
$�
��
'�
��
&�
��
��
��
#�
�-
��
'��
�
%
�

�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
'�
���
-
��
��
��
��
��
%
��
�>
&�
�

��

�
�*
�

%
��
��

�
���
��
��
�

��
&�
��
��
���
%
�<
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
&�
�'
��
��
��
��

&�
��
��
��
�-
���
��
''�
��
�#
�)
��'
���
�
��
��
�&

�
��
�)
��
��
��
&&
�&
���
��
��
��
���
�

Page 23



�

�
�
�

�

�
��
���
��
!

��
��
&�
��
��
��
��

�
��
�!
�&
�&
*��
�
��
�#
��
��
�&
��
��

�
��
&�
�#
��
��

��
&�
��
��
��
��
��
��
&&
�&
�

&�
��
��
�'�
��
��
&�
��
�#
��

�
��
�&
�&
��
&&
��
��
��
��
-
���
�

��
�(
��
�&
�-
�

��
��
��

�
��
��
��
�

�
!�
��
�'
�#
��
��
��
�&
��
��
��
��
�
���
�
��
��

���
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
���
'�!

�
��
��
��
��
��
&&

�
�&
*��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
&�
��
���
$�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
�&

�
��
��
��
�'

���
#�
�

��
'�
��
�
��
��
��&
�

�!
��
��
��
�'�
��
�&

�
��
��
�&
��
��
���
��
��
&�
��
���
��
��
��

�
��
��
�(
��
���
��
��
#�
�)�

��
��

�
��
��
�
�
%
��
��
��
#�
�&
)�-
�

��
��
�&
��
��
#�
��
��
�&
���
#�
���
��
��
��
��
!�
��
�

!

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
�$
��
��
��
��
�
�&
���
'��
#�
���
!�
��
��
&�

�
��
&*
��

�
��
%
��
��
��
��
��
>�
��
%
�

�
��
��
��
�
��
 
��
�#
��
��
�

� �
$
�
���
��
��

�
���
��
�*
�

� �

��
��
��
��

��
�

�
��
��
�&
&�

�
+
��
$�
�&
�!
��
��
�

��
��
��
$�
��
��
��
�#
��
-
��
��
��
�&
&�
��
��
�&
���
��
��
��
��
��
�
��

 
��
�#
��
��
��
��
��
�.
	
��
���
��
/)
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
���
�&
�

��
��
��
��-
���
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
�&
��
��
��
��
���
��
�&
*��
��
��
��
���
��
��
�'�
��
��
�

�

��
��-
��
$)
��

�
���
�&
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
(�
��
�9
��
��
&�
-
��
��
�

�&
&�
&�
&�
��
���
'�
��
��
��
�

��
���
��
��
��
*�<
��
��
-
��
��
��
��
��
>&
��

�
�

��
)��
��
���
�&
�

��
#�
��
�-
�!
��
��
��
��
�-
���
��
���
�
��
!�
�&
��
'��
��
���
%
��
��
#�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
*�

�
��
%
��
��
��
��
��
I�

 
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��

� �
$
�
���
��
��

�
���
��
�*
�

��
��
��
��

"
��
�

�
��
��
��
�

�
+
��
$�
-
���
�!
��

�
��
��
�$
��
���
���
��
��'
��
��
-
�!
�&
���
''�
��
�#
��
��
�
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
���
��
�!
��
��
��
�#
��
�-
���
��
���
��
�

��
��
��&
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
��'
��
�
�-
��
$*
�

��
%
��
��
#�
��
� 
�&
��
��

I�
�

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
���

� �
$
�
���
��
��

�
���
��
�*
�

��
��
��
��

��
�

�
��
��
�&
&�

�
+
��
$�
��
&�
��
��
��
��
!�
��
�

��
��
��
$�
��
��
���
�$
��
��&

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

�
��
��
��
��
��-
���
��
���
��
	

�
��
���
�)
�-
���
��
��
�%
�	

�
���
��
�&
&�
&�
��
��
�&
�

��
��
��
���
��
��
��
�%
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�&
*�%
��
&�
-
���
��
��
��
��
'�
��
���
��
'�
��
��
��%
�

�

��
��-
��
$�
��
�

��
���
��
��'
��
��
�-
��
��
���
��
�#
��
��
�&
��
��
�!
��
�
��
��
��
��

!�
���
��
#�
�

��
'�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
#�
�*
���

�
��
%
��
��
#�
��
� 
�&
��
��

I�
5
#�
��
���
�
��
#�
��
�

 
�&
��
��

� �
$
�
���
��
��

�
���
��
�*
�

��
��
��
��

"
��
�

�
��
��
��
�

�
+
��
$�
��
���
�&
��
��
��
�&
���
$�
��
���
�!
��
��
��
���
#�
���
��
��
��
�-
��
���
�'
��
�
�

��
��
�
�
��
��
���
�&
��
��
��
�&
��
��
���
'��
��
��
#�
��
���
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��#
��
��

�

��
�*�
%
��
��
���
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
'��
��
���
��
��
��
&�
�#
��
��
��
&�
��
�&
��
��
�-
���
�

��
&�
�!
��
��
'��
��
��
�-
���
��
�<
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
�&
*�

��
��
��
��
�	

�
���
��
��
��

�
���
�&
��
�&
&�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
'��
��
&�
��
��
*�

�

Page 24



�

�
�
�

�

��
%
��
��
#�
��
�

5
��
��
���
��
.<

�
��
��
�/
�

I�
"
�-
� 
��
��
�
��
��
��
�

�.
��
��

�
��
��
<
���
-
��
��?
�

9
��
$

�/
�

� �
$
�
���
��
��

�
���
��
�*
�

�

��
��
��
��

5
�>
D
��
��
�
�

%
��
��

�
���
�&
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�&
&�
��
��
��
�'
���
��
��
-
��
��
��

��
��
��
*�	

�
���
�&
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
 
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
(�
��
�9
��
��
��
��
�

�&
&�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
�&
�

&&
��
�&
)��
&�
-
��
���
&�
��
��
��!

�
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
�&
&�

��
���
��
��'
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
���
���
��
��
��
&*
� 

�
���
���
��

��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
&�
��
��
��
�
�&
&�
��
��
��
��
��
��
-
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��+

��
�&
��
�

1
�

&�
��
�'�
��
��
��
�#
��
-
��&
�

��
�$
��
��
��
��
��

�
��

�
��
��
��
�&
�'�
��
��
��
���
��
�*
�

5
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�&
��
��
�
�&
&�
��
��
)�'
��
�
��
�-
��
$�
-
���
��
&&
�&
&�
�'�
��
��

��
-
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�&
�-
���
��
���
��
��
��
!(
��
��#
�&
��
��
���
��
�<
���
-
��
���
��
�

9
��
$

��
��
��
�&
&�
&�
��
��
�'
'�
��
�#
�*
���

�
��
%
��
��
#�
��
�

5
��
��
���
��
.�
��
��
&&
/�

I�
	
��
�&
&�

�
��
��
��
��
��

� �
$
�
��.
��
�
��
��
*�

��
��
��
��

"
��
�

�
��
��
��
�

�
%
��
��

�
���
-
���
�!
��

�
��
��
�$
��
���
���
��
'�

�
��
�,

�
��
��
��
'��
��
�'�
��
��
��
���
��
��

��
��
-
���
���
�$
���
��
�&

�
��
��
��
��
��
�&
&�
��
���
��
��
���
��
�.
��
��
���
&&
��
��
��
��
�/
�

��
�&
��
��
���
'�
��
��
��
��
�&
&�
�&
��
��
��
''�
��
�#
��
��
��
��
��
���
�*
�	
��
��
��
��
��
�'
�

��
-
��
''�
��
�#
��
��
��
��
	

�
��
���
��
�
��
��
�&
��
�-
�-
��
&�
�'
�-
��
$�
��
��
��
���
��

��
�&
��
��
�'
���
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�!
�

��
��
��
&�
-
���
�!
��
��
�#
��
��
*�

<

�
��
��
��
��
&�
��
��
���
��
-
���
�!
��
��
#�
��
��
���
��

�
���
&�
���
��
�'
�-
���
��
&&
��
��
�

�

!�
��
��
��
�&
&�
��
�-
��
$&
*��

�
�
��
��
��
��
�

	
��
���
��
��
��
I�
�%
��
��
�

1


���
��
��
���

� �
$
�
���
��
��

�
���
��
�*
�

�

��
��
��
��

��
�

�
��
��
�&
&�

�
 

�
��
��
��
��
'��
&�
�&
��
��
��
��
&�
�'
���
��
'��
��
��
��
��
��
�)
���
��
��
��
�	

�
���
��
&�

!�
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
�'
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�'
���
��
�&
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
-
�

1


��
��
��
���
&�
�

���
�*
�	
&�
��
��
&

��)
�&
��
��
'�
��
��
�-
��
$�
��
&�
!�
��
�


�
��
��
�$
��
���
��
��
��
�
�&
��#
��

�
�'�
��
���
�
��
&�
��
���
��
&�
�
��
�'
���
��
�
��
��

��
��
��
��
���
&�
��
�&
��
'��
��
�&
�&
��
�
*��
��
��
�'
���
��
���
��
��
&�

�
��
�&
�#
��
��

�
�

��
���
��
��
��
�&
���
�!
���
��
��
���
��
��
-
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�&
���
�!
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
�

��
��
��
$�
��
��
���
��
��
��
���

�
���
�'
���
��
�%
��
��
�&
��

�
��
��
��
��
�-
���
�

��
�
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
���
�
��
��
��
���
�&
��
�
&�
�

��
�*�
�

�
��
%
��
��
��
��
��
��

9
��
��
)��
��
(�
��
�

9
��
��
&)
��
��
��
��
�
��

9
��
��
��

� �
���
�
��
,
�7
�
��
��

�

��
��
��
��

5
�>
��
��
��

�
	

�
���
�&
��
��
���

�
���
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
�!

�
��
��
���
��
��
��
���
#�
���
�
%
�

��
#�
��
��
��
��
��
��
&&
���
��

�
��
��
��#
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�(
��
��!
��
��
&*
��

�

Page 25



�

�
�
�

�

�
�

��
��
�
��
��
�
��

�
�

�
�

�
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��

� �
���
�
��
,
�7
�
��
��

�
$
�
�.
��
�
��
��
*�

��
��
��
��

��
�

�
��
��
�&
&�

�
%
��
�&
��
��
��
��
��
!(
��
��#
��
�'
���
�&
��

�
���
�&
���
��
��
#�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
#�
�-
��
'��
�

��
���
-
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
�
��
�&
*��
%
��
&�

��
#�
�#
�&
��
�&
�

&&
��
��
-
���
�$
��
��
''�
��
�&
��
��
�&
&�
��
��
�
�

��
���
��
��
&�
�!
��&
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
'��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
�'�
���
)��
��
��
�'�
���
�&
��
�'
'��
��
&�

��
#�
�#
��
���
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
���
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
�&
���
��
��
��
�'�
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�'
�$
��
��
��
��
��
�&
*��
�

�
�
��
��
��
��
�

��
'�
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��>
�

��
��

�
�&
�<
��
��
��
��
'�

��
'�
��
��
��
�)
� 
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
	
��
�?
�

��
'�
��
��
��
��
�
��

�
���
�

��
��
��
��
��
�&
�

�  
,
,
�"
��
�
-
��
�

� �

��
��
��
��

��
�

�
��
��
�&
&�

�

�
 
	
�
��
��
���

�
&�
��
��
���
��
��
��
�&

�
��
��
���
��
��
'�
��
��
��
��
6�
��
�5
''�
��
�&
�

D
��

�
�.
�6
5
D
/�
&�
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
*�

� 	
��
���
��
��
��
)��
��
�#
��
-
��
'��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�&
���
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��

�
�

��
��3
&�
��
�
��
��
��
��
-
���
���
��
��
-
��

!
���
��
��
��
��
"
��
-
��
$�
&�
�

���
��

��
,

���
�
��
�&
��&
��

�
��
��
��
�!
��
��
�'�
��
��&
��
*�

� <
��
��
-
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
#�
�-
��
'��
��
��
�

��
��3
&�
��
��
��
��
��
'�
��
�-
��
$�
'�
��

��
��
��
��
-
���
� 
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
.&
��
��
!�
#�
/)
� 
	
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��

��
#�
���
'�&
��
''�
�-
��
��
�&
&�
��
��
��
��
��
��
'�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
���
��
�

&�
�

���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
-
���
��
��
��
�

��
&*
�

%
��
�&
'�
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
�
��

� �
���
�
��
,
�7
�
��
��

�
$
�
�.
��
�
��
��
* �
�

�

��
��
��
��

5
�>
��
��
��

�
	
���
��
��
�,

�
&�
��
'��
��
��
��
��
�)�
 
	
�
��
��
��
��
#�
��
��
�&

�
��
��
��
��
��
�#
��
��

��
���
��
#�
���

&
�%
��
�&
'�
��
��
��
��
��
�(
��
��&
��
��
�
&*
�

�

9

&
��
�&
&�
�
��
���

�
��
�

� �
$
�
�(


+
�

� �

��
��
��
��

5
�>
��
��
��

�
 
	
�
��
��
���

�
&�
��
��
���
��
��
��
���
�&
��
'��
��
�9

&
��
�&
&�
�
��
���

�
��
��
��
��
��
��

D
��

�
���
��
��
#�
��
��
�#
��
��
��
��
&

��
��
�*�

� +
��
$�
-
���
��
�&
��
��
��

�
��
'�
���
-
��
��

�
���
��
��
��
��
&&
�!
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
�

�&
�&
��
'��
��
��
��
��
�&
��
��
'�
��
��
��
#�
�

&�
�

��
��

��
#�
�-
&�
�'
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��!

&
��
�&
&�
��
��
��

�
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�&
*�

Page 26



�

�
�
�

�

�


�
�=
��
��
��

=
''�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

	
��

�
��

��

�
��

�  
��
��
�

��
��
�7
�
��
��

��
��

��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��

�
 
	
�
��
�#
��
!�
��
��
!�
��
��
��
��
��'
��
��
��
���
��
�
�

��
���
��
&�
'

�'�
���
��
��&
�

�!
���
��
��
�&
�-
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
&

!�
�&
&�
��
��
'��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
���
��
�'
�

&

��
��
���
��
�#
��
��
��
�'�
��
��
��
�


�
�=
��
��
��
=
''�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�*
�

� 	
��

�
���
��
��'
��
��
��
�&
&

��
��
��
B

��
��
��
�*
���

�
%
��
�'�
���
-
��
��
�

��
�&
�-
���
�!
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
���
��
&�
��
��
��
��
'��
'��
��
��
@�

��
�
��
���
���
��
��
��
�
��
I�
D
�#
��
��
��
��
3 
,
,
�!
��
�
-
��
5�

��
 
��
�#
��
��
�
��
�&
�>
�D
�#
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
���
���
��
�
���
�
��
,
�7
�
��
��
3�
$
�
�"
�.
��
�
��
��
*5
�

�

�

�
�

�
��
��
��
�

�

��
��
�

�
�
�
��
��
��
��

6
��
��

 
��
��
��

�
��
�
��
�

�
�

�
�
��
�

�
�

�
��

�
��
��
� 
�
�
�
��
��

%
��
�&
'�
��
�'
��

!
���
�

1
��
���
��

� .	
"
	
�1
��
��


�&
$/
�

��
��
��
��

��
�

5
�>
��
��
��

�
<
��
��
�-
��
$�
��
�
��
��
�)
��
��
��
���
��
!�
��&
&

��
�&
��
��
��
*�

1
��
���
�?
�

+
��
�!
��
��
�9
��
��
�

� .	
"
	
�1
��
��


�&
$/
�

��
��
��
��

��
�

5
�>
��
��
��

�
<
��
��
�-
��
$�
��
�
��
��
�)
��
��
��
���
��
!�
��&
&

��
�&
��
��
��
*�

�
��
�
�&
&�
��
��
��
?
�

�
��
��
��
���
��

.�
�
�
��
�/
�<
��
��
-
�

L
��
� .	
"
	
�>
��
��
�

�
�



�&
$/
�

��
��
��
��

<
��
��
�

"
�	
�

%
��
�1
��
��
�'
�B
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�&
&�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�&
&�
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
#�
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�&
&�
�
��
��
��
-
��
�&
���
��
��
��
��
�

��
���
�&
��
��
&�
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�*�
���
��
��
���
��
�

��
�)�
!�
��
�	
�

���
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
?
�M
�

��
��
��
��
�N
&�
�
��
�
�&
&�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
���
��
%
��
�
&�
��
#�
�

!�
��
�!
��
��
��
��
��
��
'�B
��
��
��
��
�
�&
&�
��
��
��
��
��
	
�

���
�
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��

�

��
��
���
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
&�
�

��

�
��
��
��
��
��
&�
*��
%
��
��
'�
��
)��
��
��
�'
���
��

�
��
��
&�
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
���
��
��
��
�&
���
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
�#
��
!�
��
��
��
��
��

H�
��
��
��
H�

�
���
���
��
��
&�
�

��

�
��
��
��
��
��
&�
��&
��
��
��
��
�*
���
��-
�

��
��
��
�!
��

��
��
��
���
��
���
��
��
�

��
��
��
�'

��
��
��
�

��
���
�&
���
��
��
���
�&
��
��
��

�
���
���
��
��
-
�

��
��
��&
��
&�
�!
��&
��
�*
���

�

Page 27



�

�
�
�

�

�
��
�
�&
&�
��
��
��
?
�

�
��
��
��
���
��

.�
�
���
��
�
/�
<
��
��
-
�

L
��
� .	
"
	
�>
��
��
�

�
�



�&
$/
�

��
��
��
��

<
��
��
�

"
�	
�

%
��
�1
��
��
�'
�B
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�&
&�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�&
&�
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
#�
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�&
&�
�
��
��
��
-
��
�&
���
��
��
��
��
�

��
���
�&
��
��
&�
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�*�
���
��
��
���
��
�

��
�)�
!�
��
�	
�

���
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
?
�M
�

��
��
��
��
�N
&�
�
��
�
�&
&�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
���
��
%
��
�
&�
��
#�
�

!�
��
�!
��
��
��
��
��
��
'�B
��
��
��
��
�
�&
&�
��
��
��
��
��
	
�

���
�
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��

�

��
��
���
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
&�
�

��

�
��
��
��
��
��
&�
*��
%
��
��
'�
��
)��
��
��
�'
���
��

�
��
��
&�
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
���
��
��
��
�&
���
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
�#
��
!�
��
��
��
��
��

H�
��
��
��
H�

�
���
���
��
��
&�
�

��

�
��
��
��
��
��
&�
��&
��
��
��
��
�*
���
��-
�

��
��
��
�!
��

��
��
��
���
��
���
��
��
�

��
��
��
�'

��
��
��
�

��
���
�&
���
��
��
���
�&
��
��
��

�
���
���
��
��
-
�

��
��
��&
��
&�
�!
��&
��
�*
��

�
�
��
>�
��
��
�
��
�&
�I
�

��
#�
�-
��
��
��
&&
�

'�
��
��
��
���
��
��
�

� .	
"
	
�>
�1
��
��


�&
$/
�

��
��
��
��

5
�>
��
��
��

�
�

 
�&
�!
��
��
<
��
���
���
&�

D
��
��
&�
. 
<
D
&/
�

� .	
"
	
�>
�1
��
��


�&
$/
�

��
��
��
��

5
�>
��
��
��

�
�

�
6L
�
�
�

� .	
"
	
�>
��
��
�

�
�



�&
$/
�

��
��
��
��

5
�>
��
��
��

�
�

%
��

!
��
��
<
��
���
�&
�

.<
��
���
�&
�-
���
��
�

<

�

�
��
.<
+
	
<
//
�

.	
"
	
�>
��
��
�

�
�



�&
$/
�

��
��
��
��

5
�>
��
��
��

�
C
��
�'�
��
���
��
�'
�,

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
&�
!�
��
��
&

!�
���
��
*�

�
��
��
�&
��
�

��
�

+
�&
��

.	
"
	
�>
��
��
�

�
�



�&
$/
�

�

��
��
��
��

5
�>
��
��
��

�
�

Page 28



�

�
�
�

�

=
�&
��
6�
���
��
��
��

� .	
"
	
�>
�6
�-
�

�&
$/
�

��
��
��
��

5
�>
��
��
��

�
�

M
�

��
�5
''�
��
��
��

%
��
�
�M
5
%
/�

� .	
"
	
�>
�6
�-
�

�&
$/
�

��
��
��
��

5
�>
��
��
��

�
�

�

�
�

��
)��
��
��
�?
�

6�
�&

�
��
�
��
(�
��
&�

��
��
�
�#
���
��
&�

 
�&
��
&�
��

.	
"
	
�>
�1
��
��


�&
$/
�

��
��
��
��

5
�>
��
��
��

�
�

%
��
�'�
���
-
��
��
�

��
�&
�-
���
�!
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
���
��
&�
��
��
��
��
'��
'��
��
��
@�

��
�

!
���
�1
��
���
��
��
�
�&
&�
��
��
��
I�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�&
&�
&�
.	
"
	
�>
�1
��
��


�&
$/
�

��
�
��
�
�

��
��
�'
��

�
��
��
��
	
�

��&
�9
��
��
�.
	
"
	
�>
��
��
�

�
�

�&
$/
�

��
�
��
�
�

��
��
�'
��

�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�3
&�
9
��
��
�.
	
"
	
�>
�
��
�

�
�

�&
$/
�

��
�
��
��
��<

�
��
.	
"
	
�>
��
��
�

�
�

�&
$/
�

��
%
��
�&
���
��
&�
.�
��
	
�

��&
)�'
��
�
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
)�'
��
�
��
��
>&
��
��
���
��
�
���
��
�/
�.
	
"
	
�>
��
��
�

�
�

�&
$/
�

��
�
��
��
��
�3
&�
�
��
��
�&
�.
	
"
	
�>
�6
�-
�

�&
$/
�

��
	
��
��
�
��
&�
 
��
�#
��
��
9
��
��
�?
�L
%
�
�.
	
"
	
�>
�6
�-
�

�&
$/
�

��
%
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�&
�	
���
��
��
�.
	
"
	
�>
�6
�-
�

�&
$/
�

��
=
��
��
��
��
��
�
�

&�
��
�.
	
"
	
�>
�6
�-
�

�&
$/
�

��
	
���
��
��
�#
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�=
�

��
���
��
.	
"
	
�>
�6
�-
�

�&
$/
�

��
6�
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
#�
��
�%
�

&�
�.
	
"
	
�>
�6
�-
�

�&
$/
�

�

�
��

�
�

	

�
���
	
��
��

M
��
��

�
��
�

&�

	
&&

�
��
��
�

5
��
��
��
�

=
��
�

��#
��
�

�
�
��
��

1
�&
��
��
��
��
��
��

�  
,
,
3)
�5
��
�
-
��
��
��
*�

��
��
��
��

5
�>
D
��
��
�
�

 
	
�
��
�&
��
��
���

�
��
��
��
��
#�
��
�&

�
��
��
��
��
��
�#
��
��
��
���
��
�
��
(�
��
�&
��
�


�
���
��
#�
�&
��
���
��
��
#�
��
��
��
���
'��
�1
�&
��
��
��
��
��
��
'�
��
��
��
�
���
*��
	

�
���

��
&�
!�
��
��
��
&�
��
��
��9
��
��
��
��
���
�&
��
&�
��
��
#�
&�
��
��
��
�&
��

�
��
��

��
���
�&
��
�#
��
!�
��
��
�#
��
��
��
��
��
�-
��
$�
��
�&
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
&&
��
��

'

��
��
��
��
��
��
&&
�&
*�

Page 29



�

�
�
�

�

�
��
��
��
��
'�<

�
�)�
<

�
��

�
��
�&
��
��
�<

�
��

�
��
��
��
��
&�

� �
$
�
��/

��
��
�
��
��
*�

�

��
��
��
��

 
��
'��

��
��
�#
��
��
�&
�



�,

�
��
��

<

�
��!

�
$�
�&
��
���
���
��
�

��
$�
 
��
��
��
��
��
��
�&
��
��
��
��
-
��
��
�

��
��
��
���
��
��
��

�
��
��
��

&
��
�'
�$
��
�'�
!&
)�-
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
&�

�
��
��
��
��
��
�'
�'

��
��
!�
��
��
��
��
��
#�
��
��
��
�
���
��
��
��
��
��
�&
��
���
��
���
�
��

�'
��
�'

�
���
��
*�1
�-
�#
��
)��
��
��
��
��
�&
�&
��
��
��
&�
��
���
��
��
��

�
���
��
�'
�'

��
�


&
��
��
��
��
��
&)
��
��
��
��
��
��
�'
��
��#
��
��
��
��
��
!�
�$
&�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�'
�

�
���
��
��
��
'�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�&
&�
�)
��
��
��
��
&�
-
���
�!
��
'�
��
�
��
��

�'
'�
��
�#
�*
*�

� �
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
#�
��
&�

&
��
'

��
��
��
&�
��
��
��
��
'

��
�'�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

&�
)�

��
-
�#
��
)��
��
��
��
��
��
&�
��
��
��
��
�'�
��
��
��
��'
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
���
��
��
��
��

&
��

��
��
���
�!
��
&�
��
��
��
��
��
*�

� 	
��
�&
&�
��
��
��
��
��
&�
��-
�&
�'�

�
��
��
�!
��
-
��
���
��
��
��
��
�)
�-
���
��
��
��

��
��
��
&�
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
�&
�

��
��
��
$�
�*
�

�
�
��
��
���
��
��
��
&�
5
�>

�
��
���
�&
��
�
�

� �
$
�
��/

��
��
�
��
��
*�

�

��
��
��
��

 
��
'��

��
��
�#
��
��
�&
�



�,

�
��
��

%
��
��
�>
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
�&
���
��
���
��
�!
��
�
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
&�
��
��
��
��
��
���
�&
��&
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
�'�
��
�
��
��
���
��
��
�

�
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
&&
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�&
��
��
��
�'
���
��
��
>�
��
��

&�
&�
��
*�

%
��
��
��
��
���
��
�'
���
��
��
>�
��
��&
�&
��
�
��&
�-
��
���
��
��
��
���
��
�&
��
��
��
'��
��
�

��
�&
��
�
��
���
���
��
�'
���
��
�

���
&�

�
��
��
�$
��
��
��
��
��
�>
��
���
!�
&�
&*
�

1
�-
�#
��
)��
�
��
�#
��
��
�&
��
�

��
�!
��
�
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
���
��
'��
��
�'�
��
&�


&
��
�'�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
>�
��
���
��
�#
���
��
��
��'
��
��
��
�&
�-
��
��
�!
��
��
��
�'�
��
�

�
��
��
�)
�.
-
��
��
�-
��
��
��
�#
��

&
��
��
��
#�
��
��
��
�&

�
��
��
��
��
�&
��
��
��
��
��

��
#�
&�
��
��
��
�/
���
��
�
��
���
���
��
��
��
�&
&�
-
�

��
�!
��
'�
��
�
��
��
��
!

&�
*��

%
��
���
#�
���
'��
�&
��
�&
�!
���
��
��
&&
��
��
��
��
-
���
�&
��
''�
��
���
��
��
>�
��
���
��
��

��
��
��
�&
���
��
���
��
&�
�'
'��
�#
��
#�
��
&�
�

��
�!
��
��
�&

�
��
#�
&�
��
���
#�
���
��
�

��
#�
��
��
��
���
��
��
>�
��
��&
��
#�
��
��&
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
�'

��
���
�)
�&
��
''�
&�
�

��
�

!�
��
��
-
��
'�
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
*�1
�-
�#
��
)��
��
��
�>
��
���
&�
&�
��
��&
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
#�
�

��
��
��
!�
&�
&�
��
��
�&
�&

�
��
��
��
��
�&
��
��
�&
$�
��
��
���
��
��

��

�
��
��
&

''�
��
��
���
��
��
�&
���
�
��
�&
���
��
��
��
��
��
�&
��
''*
���
�&

�
��

��
��

�
&�
��
��
&�
�
��
��
��
��
��-
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
&�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��&
��
'�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
�&
��
''�
��
��
��
��
�&
��
#�
��
��
��
�&
��
��
��
�&
��
��
��
��

Page 30



�

�
�
�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
,

���
�
��
���
'�&
��
''�
��
���
��
��
��
���
��
���
��
&�
��
��

��
��
���
��
&*
�

	
���
��
��

�
&�
���
'��
��
��

�
��)
��
��
��
��
&�
-
��
��
��
�&
��
���
��
�&
��
��
��
'��
��
�

��
��
��
��
���

�
���
��
��
��
�'
��
''�
��
���
��
�&
��
��
��
'��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�&
��
'��
��
��
��

�
��
��
�&
��
''�
��
&�
��
��
��
���
��
��
�&
�-
��
��
�	
�
��
�-
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�&
��
�*�

	
&�
&

��
)��
��
&�
��
��
���
��
��
&�
!�
��
��
�#
��
���
��
��
&�
��
��
��
��
���
�&
��
�&
�-
���
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
&)
�	
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�*
�"
�-
�-
��
$�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�&
�

��
#�
�!
��
��
��
��
��
�-
���
�	
�
��
)�'
��
��
-
��
��
��
��

�
��
�!
��
��
��
���
�)
�

��
��

�
��
��
�
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�*�
+
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�)
���
��
��
-
�

��
��
��
��
��
�&
�-
���
�	
�
��
�-
���
��
��
��
��
�!
��
��
�
�

�
��
��
��
���
���
��
��
��
�

���
�&
��
��
&�
��
��
��
��
-
��
��
-
��
��
��
��
��
�&
��
��
��
��
#�
��
���
��
�-
���
�&
��
��

��
���
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
&�
��
��
�-
��

�
��
'��
�

�&
��
��
�&
�&
��

�
��
!�
��
��
���
-
���
���
�

��
&

��
���
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
�&
��
���
��
-
���
��
��
��
���
��
��
3&
��
�,

�
��
�
��
�&
*��

+
�&
��
��
<
��

� �
$
�
��/

��
��
�
��
��
*�

�

��
��
��
��

5
�>
D
��
��
�
�

 
	
�
��
��
���

�
&�
��
�&

�
��
��
���
��
�
�

��
�+
�&
�� 
�#
��
�+
�&
��
��
��
��
��
&�
��
�

+
�&
��
��
<
���
��
(�
��
)��
�#
�&
��
��
��
��
�#
��
��
��
��
��
��
��&
$�
�&
&

�&
*�



��
��
��
�
��
���
'�

�


<
�

� �
$
�
��/

��
��
�
��
��
*�

�

��
��
��
��

5
�>
D
��
��
�
�

 
	
�
��
�#
��
!�
��
��
��
#�
��
��
���
��
�
��
(�
��
�&

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
�

���
��

��
��
5

�
���
��
�
��

�
��
��
.�
�
5
�
/�
��
��
 
��
��
��
��
�
��

�
��
��
.�
�
 
�
/�
&�
��
�&
��
'�

��
��
��
��

�
��
��
���
��
�-
���
��
��
���

�
���
��
��
&�
��
&�
���
�
�#
�&
���
��
���
��
'��
��
��

��
�&
�&
�-
��
��
�-
���
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
���
��
&

!�
�&
&�
��
��
'�'
��
��
���
��
��
&�
��
��

��
��
&�
��
��
��
��
�'
��
��
��
'�
��
��
�!
��
��
��
��
���
��
"
�-
�M
��
�*
�



��
��
��
�
��
���
'�

�
��
�!

&
�'�
��
�)�
�
��
��
�

��
��
=
,

��
�
��
���

� �
���
�
��
,
�7
�
��
��

��
��
��
��

5
�>
D
��
��
�
�

 
	
�
��
�#
��
!�
��
��
!�
��
��
��
��
#�
��
��
&&

�
��
��
��
��
�&

�
��
��
���
���
��
��
��
�

��
&$
��
�-
���
���
��
�

��
��
&�
��
��
'��
��
��
��
�
��
��#
��
��
��
&�
�&
��
��
���
'��
��
�

�
�

��
��3
&�
�
��
�!

&
�'�
��
���
��
�-
�&
��
��
&�
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
�-
��
��

�
��
'��
��
�

#�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�&
��
��
'��
��
��
�&
��
��
���
��
&

!&
�,

�
��
��
#�
�

��
��
��
�'
�

��
��
��
&*
�

�
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��

� �
$
�
�.
��
�
��
��
*�

��
��
��
��

��
�

�
��
��
�&
&�

�
%
��
�&
��
��
��
��
��
!(
��
��#
��
�'
���
�&
��

�
���
�&
���
��
��
#�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
#�
�-
��
'��
�

��
���
-
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
�
��
�&
*��
%
��
&�

��
#�
�#
�&
��
�&
�

&&
��
��
-
���
�$
��
��
''�
��
�&
��
��
�&
&�
��
��
�
�

��
���
��
��
&�
�!
��&
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
'��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
�'�
���
)��
��
��
�'�
���
�&
��
�'
'��
��
&�

��
#�
�#
��
���
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
���
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
�&
���
��
��
��
�'�
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�'
�$
��
��
��
��
��
�&
*��
�

Page 31



�

�
	
�

�

�


�
�=
��
��
��

=
''�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

	
��

�
��

��

�
��

�  
��
��
�

��
��
�7
�
��
��

��
��

��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��

�
 
	
�
��
�#
��
!�
��
��
!�
��
��
��
��
��'
��
��
��
���
��
�
�

��
���
��
&�
'

�'�
���
��
��&
�

�!
���
��
��
�&
�-
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
&

!�
�&
&�
��
��
'��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
���
��
�'
�

&

��
��
���
��
�#
��
��
��
�'�
��
��
��
�


�
�=
��
��
��
=
''�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�*
�

� 	
��

�
���
��
��'
��
��
��
�&
&

��
��
��
B

��
��
��
�*
���

�
�
��
��
�'
��
�#
��
��
��
��
��

� �
$
�
�.
��
�
��
��
*�

��
��
��
��

5
�>
D
��
��
�
�

 
	
�
��
�#
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
#�
��
��
�#
��
�)
�&

�
��
��
��
��
��
&&

�
��
��
���
���
��

��
��
���
&$
��
�-
���
���
��
��
��
#�
��
��
��
���
'��
��
��
�#
��
��
��
��
�*
��	

�
���
��
&�

!�
��
��
!�
��
��
�!
���
��
��&
��
��
��
��
��
��
�'
��
��
#�
�

&�
�
�(
��
��
��
�

��
�
��
��

��
��
��
&�
&�
��
#�
�#
��
��
�
��
��
���
�#
��
 
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
&�
!�
��
��
��
&�
��
��
��

��
�(
��
���
��
���
�&
�'�
���
-
��
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
�
��
���
'��
��
��
��
'�
��
��
�!
��
��
�*
�

 
	
�
�-
���
��
��
���

�
���
�&

�
��
��
���
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
'��
��
�&
��
��
&�
�'
���
��

��
�(
��
�*�

�
%
��
�'�
���
-
��
��
�

��
�&
�-
���
�!
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
���
��
&�
��
��
��
��
'��
'��
��
��
@�

��
�
��
���
���
��
��
��
�
��
I�
D
�#
��
��
��
��
.	
"
	
�>
���
��
�

�
��
�&
$/
�

��
�
��
��
��6
��
��
��
��
�
��
#�
�&
��
��
��
�6
=
 
��
��
��
��
�
��
&�
.	
"
	
�>
��
��
�

�
��
�&
$/
�

�

Page 32



	��������	��

�

�

����
����������
��
���"� 
�

���%����
����8����� ���������
����
�����9�:����01��

�
	�
�$


;

 
�

��$��� �����
����	
�
�
���

��


�
�����
�
�
��
��

5#����� �'�-�����H�H�
����
�����
F48�

��������

5#����� �'�-�����H�H�
����
�����
A48�

��������
M M� �� �*F4 " �*A4 1

�A7F 	
&����<�����������
�������

=��!
�$���� �

�77� 9����-�����������
M�&

=&��#�����"�����
+�&�

�

�AE� 9���������������� M�& �������� �
�77� �������-����������� M�& �������� �
�A�F ��������
�����������

�������
 �#������������$��

 ������
�

��4E �����������'�=�������� M�& =��!
�$���� �
�AA4  ��$���������

M�&
 �#������������$��

 ������
�

�AFF  
�&������������
M�&

����&���$ �

�7�� =��!
�$�����C����������� M�& =��!
�$���� �
�7A7 =���&����������
������������ M�& �	� �
�7�A %��!�������������

M�&
=&��#�����"�����

+�&�
�

�A�� <�����������
M�&

 �#������������$��
 ������

�

�7�4 D�������$�������� M�& �������� �
�7�4 D��&�-����������� M�& ����&���$ �
���F 1��� ��#��"
�&���

�������
�	�

� �

�A�� 1������������������
M�&

 �#������������$��
 ������

�

�777 1����C��-��������
M�&

6��&�� �

�7A� 1�������&&�����������������
M�&

 �#������������$��
 ������

�

�A�7 1�������$���'���& M�& 	��������& �
�A�A 1�������$�B
����& M�& 	��������& �
�7A� K������9���������������������� M�& �	� �
�A�E K��-���������� M�& 	��������& �
�A�� 6�����D������������ M�& 6��&�� �
�7�� 6��������������

M�&
=&��#�����"�����

+�&�
�

�A7� 6��&���C����������� M�& 6��&�� �
�A77 ��������C����������� M�& 	��������& �
�AF� ����!���
����������

M�&
 �#������������$��

 ������
�

��A� ����� ���N&����'�=��������
M�&

=&��#�����"�����
+�&�

�

�77A ���'��-�������
����������� M�& �	� �
�7AF ������������������

M�&
	��������& �

�AF� �������%�-���������
M�&

 �#������������$��
 ������

�

�A�� ��
����������������� M�& 6��&�� �
�A7� ��
���+�&������
������������

M�&
 �#������������$��

 ������
�

�7AE 5�$-�����������
M�&

=&��#�����"�����
+�&�

�

�A7� ��������&&�������� M�& 	��������& �
�A�A ���������������

M�&
 �#������������$��

 ������
�

�AAF ����&��-�1������'���& M�& �	� �
���E ����!������"
�&���

�������
=&��#�����"�����

+�&�
�

�7A� ����������������N&����'�=���'���& "� �������� � �
�AE4 ��������������
������������ M�& �������� �
�AEA ����������������� M�& ����&���$ �
�7�� �������
��$�������� M�& 6��&�� �
�77� 
�#��&��������
������������

M�&
�	� �

�77� ����&!
���
����������� M�& 6��&�� �
�774 ���$�&����������
����������� M�& 	��������& �
��A� ���	����-N&����'�=��������

M�&
 �#������������$��

 ������
�

�747 ���9
���
��<�
�����������'�=�B
����& M�& �	� �
��A� ���=�-���N&����'�=�������� M�& =��!
�$���� �
�74F ���D�����N&����'�=��������

M�&
 �#������������$��

 ������
�

�7A4 ���B�&���N&�����������������
M�&

 �#������������$��
 ������

�

�7A� �����
�N&����������������� M�& �	� �
�74E ��������N&����'�=��������

M�&
 �#������������$��

 ������
�

�7AA ��������N&�����������������
M�&

=&��#�����"�����
+�&�

�

�A47 ���$�� ��������������
M�&

 �#������������$��
 ������

�

�A4E ��
����
�����������
M�&

 �#������������$��
 ������

�

�7A� %���������������������'��������
M�&

 �#������������$��
 ������

�

�7�F %����!
����������
M�&

=&��#�����"�����
+�&�

�

�AA� C��������
����������� ������� �	� � �
�A�7 +�&�������������
������������

M�&
�	� �

�7�E +�������������
�������������.+����C��-/
�������

=&��#�����"�����
+�&�

�

�AF� +�������
���������� M�& =��!
�$���� �
�A7� +���'������������

M�&
=&��#�����"�����

+�&�
�

�77� +���'����������� M�& �������� �
�7�7 M�����&�����<����������� M�& �������� �

������� �� � � � � � �
A� ��� �� �� �� �� �� ��

��

=����������&�����
>��������

=����������&���������
.'�������'>	&&�&&�����?����	
���/

L����'������
���'>�

�&&�&&����

� �

���'������
	&&�&&����

/�� ������� $
��/��
$
� %8 �
,������
��
�����

Page 33



�

���
�

����
����������
��
���"� 
�

���%����
����8����� ���������
����
�����9�:����01��

�
	�
�$


;

 
�

��$��� �����
����	
�
�
���

��


�
�����
�
�
��
��

5#����� �'�-�����H�H�
����
�����
F48�

��������

5#����� �'�-�����H�H�
����
�����
A48�

��������

��F4 =��!
�$���������
������������ M�& =��!
�$���� �

�A�4 "����� ����
��������� M�& 
��������& �

��44 �����
���1�����������'���D���& M�& D�������������& �

��7� ����B����1
�������
����������&���������.+����C��-/ �������
=&��#�����"�����

+�&�
�

4��� ���9���'����
���������� ������� 
��������& �

 �

����� � � � � � � �
4 ��� �� ��� �� �� �� ��

7�AA 9���$�D������������'���6�������
M�&

=&��#�����"�����
+�&�

�

7�A4 ��
������&������� M�& =��!
�$���� �
7�A� �����9������������

�������

=&��#�����"�����
+�&�

�

7�AF 6�����
&������
������������������� M�& �������� �
7�AE �����<���������� M�& �	� �
7�A7 ��
���%����������� ������� �	� �
7�A� +�������&��������.+����C��-/

�������
=&��#�����"�����

+�&�
�

 ��
��� � � � � � � �
� ��� �� ��� �� �� �� ��

<�����4
�������� 
�

�� �� �� �

� �

��

�

�

=����������&�����
>��������

=����������&���������
.'�������'>	&&�&&�����?����	
���/

L����'������
���'>�

�&&�&&����

���'������
	&&�&&����

/�� ������� $
��/��
$
� %8 �
,������
��
�����

Page 34



	
��
��
��
��
9
�

� �

�
��
�


�
��
��
���
��


�
�

�
��"
���
��
��
��
��
�
�
���
�
��
�
�0
1�
�"
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
���
1�
�
� 
��
��
�
-
��
�0
1�
�

���
�
��
�

&

	�
��

	

��
��%
��
�

"

�

!�
��

�'
�	

�
���

=
��
���
�&

 
��
��
��
��

��
&�
���
���
�

�
��
��
��
�

��
�&

	�
�

��
�

��
�&

	

��
��

&�
��
��
�

	

��
��

'��
��
-
��
$�

��
�
��
��
��

 
��
'��

��
��
���

�&
&

��



�&
��
�&
�&
�



��
N�

<�
��
��



��
��
��

�&
&

��

 
��
'��

��
��
���

�&
&

��
���
�

��
��
��
�

��
�&

<�
��
��

��
��
���

�&
&

��
���
�

��
��
��
�

��
�&

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
#�
��
&

4�
47
E

�A
7*
�A

�4
�7

�7
�4

�A
��

�A
�
��
&&
��

�
���
�

�7
��
�

EE
*�
A

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
��
��
�

�A
��
7

FE
*E
�

��
F

F
A

A
7

A
�
��
��

��
A7

A�
*F
A

��
E

E
7

7
E

7
�
��
��
��C
�&
��&

�A
�F
�

E�
*F
E

��
��

��
4

A
7

4
<
��

�
��
��
#�
��
��
��
?
���
#�
&�
��
��
��
�

�F
��
E

��
�*
�7

�F
�7

��
F

��
��

��
�
��
��
��
��
�D
�#
��
��
��
�

�
F4

��
*7
4

A
4

�
�

�
�

�
D
��
��
��
��
��
&�
�	
��
�

��
��
��
��'
��
��
��
�

�
7

�*
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
5
��
��
��
��
��
��
!�
��
��
��#
���
�&

�
�A
4

��
*�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
	
�#
��
��
�
��
&

���
��
�

7
F4

�4
*E
7

7
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
��
��
�'�
�-
��
�

�
�

�*
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
4
�
4
�
(

�&
&

�'
''

'#
=;
��

��
&

&=
&�

��
#1

#�
�)

�
��
���
��
��
�

E�

	
��

�
�

O

�
��
��
��

O

�
��
��
��

O

�
��
��
��

O

�
��
��
��

�
�
�	
;�
��
�
��
�	


��
�
��
�


�
��
�3
��

�
 

�




��
5

%�
��
��

%�
��
��

	
��

�
�

%�
��
��

	
��

�
�

%�
��
��

	
��

�
�

%�
��
��

	
��

�
�

�
��
��
��
��
��
�'
��

�
���
��
��
�&
��
��
��

��
�

��
8

�F
8

�4
7�
8

AF
E�

�
��
��
��
��
��
�'
��

�
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�.
'��
��
�-
��
$/

E�
�F
8

�A
8

�4
��
8

7�
E�

�
��
��
��
��
��
�'
��
��
��
��
��
��
&�
��
��#
��
��

E4
��
8

��
8

�F
��
8

7�
E4

 
��
'��
��
��
��
&�
�&
&

��
���
��
��
��
��
��
�&

E�
E�
8

AF
8

E�
FE
8

E�
E�

<
��
��
��
��
��
�&
��&
&

��
���
��
��
��
�&
��
��
&

E�
E�
8

7E
8

E�
EA
8

E�
E�

�

&
��
�
��
�&
��
�&
'�
��
��
�*

E�
E�
8

E�
E�

E�

	
��

�
�

O

�
��
��
��

O

�
��
��
��

O

�
��
��
��

O

�
��
��
��

�
�
�	
��
��
��
�	


��
�
��
�


�
��
�3
�
�

�
 

�




��
5

%�
��
��

%�
��
��

	
��

�
�

%�
��
��

	
��

�
�

%�
��
��

	
��

�
�

%�
��
��

	
��

�
�

�
��
��
��
��
��
�'
��

�
���
��
��
�&
��
��
��

��
�

��
8

��
8

�4
�F
8

AF
E�

�
��
��
��
��
��
�'
��

�
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�.
'��
��
�-
��
$/

E�
�F
8

�7
8

�4
��
8

7�
E�

�
��
��
��
��
��
�'
��
��
��
��
��
��
&�
��
��#
��
��

E4
��
8

��
8

�F
��
8

7�
E4

 
��
'��
��
��
��
&�
�&
&

��
���
��
��
��
��
��
�&

E�
E�
8

AF
8

E�
�A
8

E�
E�

<
��
��
��
��
��
�&
��&
&

��
���
��
��
��
�&
��
��
&

E�
E�
8

7E
8

E�
7�
8

E�
E�

�

&
��
�
��
�&
��
�&
'�
��
��
�*

E�
E�
8

E�
E�

E�

� � � � �
�

�
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

Page 35



���������	

���������	�
���
�	��
���	����������� �� ��	���	�	����������

��	���������������	���	������������ ����������

���

���

��
��

��	�
��

��������
��
���
�������

�
���
��
�
������
������

���

���

�� ��

���
���
�����
��
���
�
���

���	��	������
����	
��
	
������
�


	����
�

� �

���
!� ��

��	�
��

����
����
��
�	���
��

����	���
�
�����	�
�

�"�

�#�

�� ��

$�%

���
�
%�	�
���
�������&

����
������
�

�"�

���

�� ��

���
���
�
���
����
�����
��
���

�&	���
����
�

���

���

�� ��

���
���
����
�����
��
����
��
��
	

��������
	���������
�

 ��

���
!� ��

��	�
��

����
�
����������

�
��

����
��
�
���
����	�������
���


���������
	��������������
�
	��&

���
�
���
�	�����
�

�!�

���� ��

���
���
�
����	�
����
��

����������
��
�
�	����������'

��
	���
�
(
�����
�
�����	
�

� �

���
!� ��

���
���	
�����
��
��
	
�
������

����
��
�
�����
�
�

���

���

��
!�

���
���
�	���
	���	�
���
��
��
�

������
�����
�

# �

���

!� ��

���
���
	���	�
&���
���	��	����

%��&��
(
����
��
���
������&�
�

���

�#�

!� ��

$�%

���
�
%�	�
���

	��������������
�

 ��

���
��

��

���
���
	���	�
������

���	�����
�

�#�

���
�� ��
���������	
��
����	���������
�����������

)�	�
*��������

*��������

+��,
���

-��	

Page 36



���������	�

	�
�������
��
��������

��������������������
��
�

�

������� 	�
��������

��������	
��
�� 
�����������	
���	�������	��������
����������������������������������������
�
�	�����
��
����������������	���
����
�����	
�������	����������	�����	����
�����
����	����������
������	������������������
���	�����	���
�������	
����	������
�������������	��	��	�������
�����	
������
�������

���
����	
��
�� 
������������	
���	��������	��������������������������
�	�����
�����������
����	��������������	��
�	�����
��	
� ������������	����	����������	������������
������
��
���������	�����	�����	���������������	�������������
����	
�����
�������	
����	����
���������������	����	�������������	������������
�����
�������

!��������	���
�������
��

!	��������	��	�������������	����������	���	������������	�������	
������
�����

��	����
�����������������������������
�	�����
��"�����	�������
�����	��
�������
�������
��	���
�������	�����������������������������������#������	
����	��
��������	���
������	��������������	������	�����$������������	����������������

%�	
���	����
����	������
!
�	�����
��


����������
�	�����
�����	������	����	������
��	
�����������	��	������
�
���������
����������������
��������
����������������	�������������
�������
��������	�������	�����	�����������
������	�����������������������������
�����
�������
&�����	�����	�������������$���������	
� ���������������������'��	����
��������������&��	
����������������
���������������������������
��������
�������
��!������	�����	���������������	
����	����
�����������������

�

���
���������������������������������������������������������
�

�������� 	�
�������
�

(���)������������
*����
��
����
+	���������
�

,�����	��&��	��������	&�
������������������������������	��������
���������
��	�������������������������������������������������	��������	�����	���������
�����������������������	����������	�������������	�������������������	�&������
�����������������	�(-
�)#-
"'
!."/0�*1#2",�����������	������	�������
����������������
�+('/1��!%!",�������������������������	��������	��

)������� 1	��������������������������
������������	
���
����&���������������
�	
������	���������	���	�������	��
�	�������	��������	������
�
��������
�
�������&����������������������������	���	�����
��������������	��������	&�������
��	�	������������������������	�	������	����&������������������������������	&������
�	������
��	����������	
���
�������������	���&����$�
���������	����������	����
������������������������	���������&�
���
��	����������	��	���	���������������
�������	���������	�������������������
���������
�)#-
"'
���

#��������
� !	��������	����
�������
�����	�������������
��	�����������
�������	���
�����������������������������������������
���	���������	��
�����	��&�
�����������������	���������	��	�&����	�����
�����	���������������
�
#"�
#!'
",���

'�	��
�	����� *���������������������	�������������	������������	���
������������
������
������������������	
��	���������������	
����'-(%!,"(
!1/�������	������
������
�������������	�������
�������

��������	
�
���
�������

!	��������	�������������	�������������	������������������������������)���	�������
�	
�����'�����"����������������������	������	������	���������������
������	�
�����������������������������������������	����
����������	��������	���������
���
�������	��������	��������	��	�����������
��	����������������	��������&�
��������������������	�����	�
��������������	��
�	���������������	���

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 
  
Subject: Treasury Management Strategy 2013/14 – Mid Year 

Review 

Committee:    Audit Committee 

Date:    12 December 2013 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Mark Lowry 

CMT Member: Malcolm Coe (Assistant Director for Finance, 
Efficiencies, Technology & Assets) 

Author: Andrew Liddicott 

Contact details   Tel:  01752 304596 
    email: andrew.liddicott@plymouth.gov.uk 

Ref:    ACCT/AL 

Key Decision: No 
 
Part: I   
 
Purpose of the report:  
 
The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to set out its Treasury Strategy 
for borrowing and to prepare an Annual Investment Strategy. The Council’s strategy for 
2013/14 was approved by full Council at its budget meeting on 25 February 2013. This 
report provides an update on the progress and outcomes against the Treasury 
Management Strategy for the six month period ended 30 September 2013. It is a 
requirement of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management that a full mid- 
year report, as a minimum, should be presented to Full Council.  
         
The Brilliant Co-operative Council Corporate Plan 2013/14 - 2016/17:   
 
Effective financial management is fundamental to the delivery of corporate improvement 
priorities. Treasury Management activity has a significant impact on the Council’s activity both in 
revenue budget terms and capital investment and is a key factor in facilitating the delivery against 
a number of corporate priorities. 
          
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
Treasury Management affects the Council’s budget in terms of borrowing costs and 
investment returns. 
   
Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and Safety 
and Risk Management: 

Agenda Item 6Page 39



 

2 
 

N/A 

 

Equality and Diversity 

Has an Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken?   No 

  
Recommendations and Reasons for recommended action: 
 
1. The report be noted and presented to Full Council. 

 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 

It is statutory requirement under the Local Government Act 2003 and supporting regulations to 
set an annual treasury strategy for borrowing and prepare an annual investment strategy. The 
Council has adopted the Cipfa Code of Practice for Treasury Management which requires a mid-
year report to be submitted to the Audit Committee and Full Council covering the performance 
against this approved strategy. 

  
 
Published work / information: 
 
Treasury Management Strategy report to Council 25 February 2013 
Treasury Management Practices update for 2013-14 report to Audit Committee 14 
March 2013  
 
Background papers: 
 

Title Part 1 Part II Exemption Paragraph Number 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

Not applicable          
          

    

 
Sign off:   
 
Fin CorpFS

151-
1314002 
SRA 2-
12-2013 

Leg 19026/
DVS 

Mon 
Off 

TH
01
39 

HR  Assets  IT  Strat 
Proc 

 

Originating SMT Member - Malcolm Coe 
Has the Cabinet Member(s) agreed the contents of the report? Yes   

Page 40



 

3 
 

 

Treasury Management Strategy Mid-Year Review 
 
1.  Introduction 
 
1.1 The Treasury Management Strategy for 2013/14 was approved by full Council at 

its meeting of the 25th February 2013. The Treasury Management Strategy has 
been underpinned by the adoption of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2011, 
which includes the requirement for determining a treasury strategy on the likely 
financing and investment activity for the forthcoming financial year. The Code 
also recommends that members are informed of treasury management activities 
at least twice a year. This report therefore ensures this authority is embracing 
best practice in accordance with CIPFA’s recommendations.  

 
1.2 Treasury Management is defined as:  
 

“The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, 
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance 
consistent with those risks. ”  

 
1.3 The responsibility for implementing and monitoring treasury management 

policies and practices and for the execution and administration of treasury 
management decisions is delegated by the Council to its Section 151 Officer  and 
is overseen by a Treasury Management Board consisting of Councillors and 
senior officers of the Council.   

 
 1.4 The day to day operation of the treasury management activity is carried out in 

accordance with detailed Treasury Management Practices (TMP’s). Updates to 
these practices for 2013-14 were approved by the Audit Committee on 14th 
March 2013.   

 
1.5 The Council works closely with its treasury management advisers, Arlingclose, 

who assist the Council in formulating views on interest rates, regular updates on 
economic conditions and interest rate expectations, and advise on specific 
borrowing and investment decisions.  

 
1.6 This report therefore provides an update on the Council’s treasury management 

activity for the period ended 30th September 2013 together with performance 
against approved Treasury Management Prudential Indicators. In accordance with 
Treasury Management Practice (TMP) note 6, the report is required to be 
presented to Full Council.  

 
2. Economic Background 
 

2.1 Before reviewing the Council’s performance to date it is appropriate to outline 
the national and economic background within which council officers have 

Page 41



 

4 
 

operated during the first part of the year. The key financial issues are outlined 
below. 

Growth: The UK economy showed some improvement, with consumer 
spending boosting growth. GDP for the first quarter of 2013 was revised up to 
+0.4% and for the second quarter was +0.7%. Recent data suggests a stronger 
rate in quarter three. Revisions by the Office of National Statistics to GDP back-
data showed the UK avoided a double-dip recession in 2012, but that the 
downturn in 2008-09 was deeper than previously estimated. Growth is now still 
over 3% below its peak back in 2007.  

Some positive signs for household spending emerged. The deterioration in real 
earnings growth (i.e. earnings less inflation) slowed, which implied a slower 
erosion of purchasing power.  Consumer confidence improved. Household 
savings rates remained high, which is unsurprising given the uncertain economic 
outlook, but appear to be on a downward track, suggesting spending was being 
driven by borrowing or lower savings. This raises questions about the 
sustainability of the recovery at these rates of growth.  

Inflation: Annual CPI for August (published September) was 2.7%. Inflation fell 
in line with expectations and is expected to remain close to this level throughout 
the autumn. Further out, inflation should fall back towards the 2% target as 
external price pressures fade and a revival in productivity growth curbs domestic 
cost pressures. The oil price (Brent Crude) climbed above $100/barrel on the 
back of political unrest in Egypt and the unresolved crisis in Syria.  

Monetary Policy: There was no change to UK monetary policy with official 
interest rates and asset purchases maintained at 0.5% and £375bn respectively. 
The main development for UK monetary policy was the start of Mark Carney’s 
tenure as Governor and the implementation of forward guidance. Within the 
August Inflation Report, the Bank stated its forward guidance, the main element 
of which is to defer monetary tightening at least until the ILO Unemployment 
Rate falls to a threshold of 7% (among a raft of caveats). The Bank projected that 
the probability of this happening would remain below 50% until 2016. The 
Governor has had to defend the Bank’s guidance in the face of rising financial 
market expectations of an earlier rate rise on the back of the encouraging 
economic data. 

In his testimony to Congress on 22nd May the US Federal Reserve Chairman Ben 
Bernanke stated that, if the emerging recovery in the US economy became 
established, the Fed would reduce its $85bn monthly asset purchase programme 
(QE). The apparent movement by the Fed towards tapering its open-ended QE 
programme prompted extreme asset price volatility in bonds and equities, as 
investors sought to crystallise gains driven by excessive liquidity. As a 
consequence, government bond yields spiked. There had been a growing 
expectation that the Federal Reserve would seek to commence ‘tapering’ in 
September but they took markets by surprise and maintained asset purchases at 
the existing level. 

Global: Whilst the outlook for the global economy appeared to have improved 
over the first half of calendar 2013/14, significant economic risks remain, 
particularly in China and the Eurozone. The Chinese banking system is facing 
tighter liquidity conditions as officials seek to slow down rampant credit growth, 

Page 42



 

5 
 

and, despite the time gained by the ECB to allow individual members and the 
Eurozone as a whole to reform their economies, the Eurozone debt crisis has 
not gone away. The region appears to be dragging itself out of recession and 
September’s German general election passed with little incident but political 
uncertainties, particularly in Italy, could derail any progress towards a more 
balanced and stable regional economy. The US recovery appeared to be in train, 
but a lack of agreement on the federal budget by the end of September caused a 
partial government shutdown at the start of October, which could have an effect 
on GDP growth. Political risks also remain regarding the debt ceiling. 

Money market data and PWLB rate movements over the first half of 2013/14 are 
attached as Appendix 1 to this report. 

3 The Council’s Strategy for 2013/14 
 

3.1 The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy was approved by Full Council on 
25th February 2013. As an overriding principle, the strategy proposed that the 
Council would continue to minimise risk contained within its current debt and 
investment portfolios by establishing an integrated debt management and 
investment policy which balanced certainty and security, with liquidity and yield. 
The Council would continue to make use of short term variable rate borrowing, 
whilst at the same time seeking to balance its investments across a range of 
investment instruments, diversifying from pure cash investments into a wider 
range of asset classes. 

  
3.2 The borrowing strategy was to be based on affordability and subject to credit 

conditions throughout the year. With the improvement in credit conditions the 
strategy was to borrow short-term funding from other local authorities up to 
the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) allowing internal balances to 
be externally invested. In adverse credit conditions the strategy was to use 
internal balances, to cover any borrowing requirement, reducing counterparty 
and credit risk.  

      
4.  Review of the Council’s Performance April – September 2013 
 
4.1 Table 1 shows the Council’s overall treasury portfolio at 30th September 2013 

compared to the position at the start of the year.  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



 

6 
 

Table 1 
 

01/04/2013 
 £m 

Average 
Interest 

rate 
% 

 30/9/2013 
 £m 

Average 
Interest 

rate 
% 

61.315  
130.000 

0.087 
34.800 

 
5.4001 
4.4202 
1.0007 
0.2809 

External Borrowing Long-term:  
    PWLB 
    Market 
  Bonds 

Temporary Borrowing 

61.315 
130.000 

0.802 
51.690 

 
5.4001 
4.4202 
0.7711 
0.2725 

226.202 4.4077 Total PCC Borrowing 243.807 3.7753 

30.247 
2.189 
9.156 

8.7300 
n/a 
n/a 

Long-term liabilities 
   PFI Schemes  
   Finance Leases 
   Cornwall County Council (TBTF) 

30.247 
2.189 
9.156 

8.7300 
n/a 
n/a 

267.794  Total External Debt 285.399  
(77.374) 
(5,000) 

 
 

0.8889 
Variable 

 
 

Bank Deposits 
Property Fund (Pooled investment) 
Managed funds (Pooled Investments) 

(117.241) 
(5,000) 
(5,025) 

0.7757 
Variable 
Variable 

(82.374)  Total Investments (127.266)  
 

185.420 
 Net Borrowing/(Net Investment) 

Position 
 

158.158 
 

 
Borrowing  
 

4.2 Under Section 3 of the Local Government Act 2003 and supporting regulations 
the Council must determine and keep under review how much it can afford to 
borrow. The Council is required to set two limits:  

 
• The Authorised Limit 
• The Operational Boundary 
 

4.3 The external debt limits for 2013/14, as approved by Council in February 2013, 
are as follows: 

 
• Authorised limits               £310m 
• Operational Boundary       £289m 

 
4.4 The maximum external debt outstanding during the period was £286.9m on 24th 

September 2013 (including £41.6m for the PFI scheme, finance leases and Tamar 
Bridge debt administered by Cornwall County Council). This was within both the 
authorised limit and the operational boundary. At 30th September 2013 total 
external debt reduced to £285.4m with external borrowing excluding PFI, 
Finance leases and Tamar Bridge debt at £243.8m, including £52.492m of short-
term loans.  

 
4.5 The following graph shows the maturity profile of the Council’s long-term   

borrowing at 30th September 2013:  

Page 44



 

7 
 

 Figure 1 
 

  
4.6 The debt portfolio currently includes £130m of LOBO loans. These loans have 

various option call dates where the banks have the ability to amend the loan 
terms and at which point the Council could choose to repay the loan if the 
terms are changed. This is reflected within the maturity profile shown above (in 
green) to enable officers to risk manage the Council’s cashflows. To 30th 
September 2013 £24m of loans had reached their call option dates. No options 
were exercised and these loans will continue at fixed rates until the next option 
dates in 2 years time.  

 
4.7 Table 2 shows the movement in the borrowing portfolio during the year. 
 
 
Table 2 

 

Balance on 
01/04/2013 

 £000s 

Debt 
Maturing 
£000s 

Debt 
 Repaid  
£000s 

 
New 

Borrowing 
£000s 

Balance 
on 

30/09/2013  
£000s 

 
Increase/ 

(Decrease) in 
Borrowing  

Short Term 
Borrowing       34,887   (56,400) 0 

 
74,005        52,492 

 
            17,605 

Long Term 
Borrowing 191,315 0 0 

 
0 191,315 

 
0 

TOTAL 
BORROWING 226,202   (56,400)  0        

 
   

74,005 243,807 

 
       

17,605 

Page 45



 

8 
 

 
 4.8  New borrowing in year 
  
 The use of short-term borrowing has continued to be the most cost effective 

means of financing capital expenditure and cashflow requirements. During the 
first half of the year the level of borrowing was constrained within a maximum 
investment level to generate additional revenue savings whilst maintaining the 
risk of excessive level of investments. By matching any short-term borrowing 
with the available liquid deposits held in bank call accounts, this has lowered 
overall treasury risk by allowing flexibility of reducing debt and investment levels 
at short notice should credit conditions deteriorated. 

 
The Council started the year with £34.887m of short–term loans with £74.005m 
of new loans taken and £56.4m of loans maturing in 2013/14. The average period 
of new loans taken in the period 1st April 2013 to 30th September 2013 was 
101.32 days at an average rate of 0.2739%. Short-term fixed/variable rate 
borrowing is expected to remain attractive for some time as the Bank of England 
maintains the base rate at historically low levels. Subject to credit conditions the 
borrowing strategy for the remainder of the year will be to take further short 
term loans whilst reviewing the potential for any affordable longer-term 
borrowing to improve the maturity profile of the Council’s debt.  

  
4.9 Debt Rescheduling 
 
 There has been no debt rescheduling in the period. Officers along with our 

advisers Arlingclose continue to monitor PWLB interest rates looking for 
opportunities to repay any debt, maximising the savings achieved whilst 
maintaining a balanced maturity profile. 

 
4.10 Overall debt performance for the first part of the year 
 

All new debt taken in 2013-14 has been in short-term borrowing to meet 
cashflow/capital financing requirements. Over the period total loan debt has 
increased by £17.605m as a result of an increase in short-term borrowing due to 
the improvement in credit conditions and the use of cashflow balances. The 
increase in short-term borrowing has resulted in a reduction in the average rate 
on external borrowing from 4.4078% on 1st April 2013 to 3.7753% on 30th 
September 2013.  
 

4.11 PWLB borrowing  
 

In August HM Treasury announced details of a “Certainty Rate” which will 
enable “eligible authorities” to access cheaper PWLB funding, with a 20 basis 
point reduction on the standard PWLB borrowing rate. Initially announced in the 
March 2012 Budget, HM Treasury have introduced this initiative to incentivise 
local authorities to provide robust forecasts on borrowing plans. The Authority 
qualifies for borrowing at the ‘Certainty Rate’ (0.20% below the PWLB standard 
rate) for a 12 month period from 01/11/2012.   In April the Authority submitted 
its application to the CLG along with the 2013-14 Capital Estimates Return to 
access this reduced rate for a further 12 month period from 1st November 2013.  

Page 46



 

9 
 

 
The PWLB remained an attractive source of borrowing for the Authority as it 
offers flexibility and control.  As concerns mounted over the timing of the 
removal or ‘tapering’ of QE by the US Federal Reserve, gilts sold off and yields 
rose in May and June.  The sharp rise in gilt yields led to a corresponding rise in 
PWLB rates (see Appendix 1), with the most pronounced increase for 10 year 
loans where rates as at 30th September were 0.83% higher than 1st April.  
Affordability and the “cost of carry” remained important influences on the 
Authority’s borrowing strategy alongside the consideration that, for any 
borrowing undertaken ahead of need, the proceeds would have to be invested in 
the money markets at rates of interest significantly lower than the cost of 
borrowing. 

 
 Due to affordability and credit risk the current borrowing strategy is to take 

short-term borrowing at very low rates. However the Section 151 officer will 
continue to monitor interest rates and credit conditions and consider long-term 
borrowing in line with the approved 2013/14 Treasury Management Strategy. 
 

 Investments  
 
4.12 Managing Investment Risk 
 
4.12.1 The Guidance on Local Government Investments in England gives priority to 

security and liquidity and the Council’s aim is to achieve a yield commensurate 
with these principles.  

 
4.12.2 Security of capital remained the Council’s main investment objective.  This has 

been maintained by following the Council’s counterparty policy as set out in its 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2013/14. This restricted new 
investments to the following:  

§ The Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility (DMO) 
§ Treasury Bills (T-Bills) issued by the UK Government  
§ Term Deposits or business reserve accounts with UK banks or building societies  
§ Deposits with other local authorities 
§ Deposits with highly credit rated foreign banks 
§ Certificate of deposits with banks and building societies 
§ Bonds issued by Multilateral Development Banks, such as the European 

Investment Bank 
§ Gilts (Bonds issued by the UK government) 
§ AAA-rated Money Market Funds with a Constant Stable Net Asset Value 

investing in instruments issued predominantly in government securities 
§ AAA-rated Money Market Funds with a Constant Stable Net Asset Value 

investing in instruments issued primarily by financial institutions 
§ AAA-rated Money Market Funds with a Variable Net Asset Value    
§ Other Money Market Funds and Collective Investment Schemes which meet the 

definition of a collective investment scheme as defined in SI 2004 No 534 and SI 
2007 No 573. 

§ Commercial Paper 
§ Corporate Bonds 
§ Investments with Registered Providers of Social Housing (housing associations) 

Page 47



 

10 
 

 
4.12.3 Counterparty credit quality is assessed and monitored with reference to Credit 

Ratings (the Council’s minimum long-term counterparty rating of A- (or 
equivalent) across rating agencies Fitch, S&P and Moody’s); credit default swaps; 
GDP of the Country in which the institution operates; the Country’s net debt as 
a percentage of GDP; sovereign support mechanisms/potential support from a 
well-resourced parent institution; share price. 

 
4.13 Counterparty Update 
 

In April, Fitch downgraded the UK’s long-term sovereign rating by one notch from AAA 
to AA+, the second of the rating agencies to do so (Moody’s had downgraded the UK’s 
ratings in February to Aa1).  Where assigned, local authorities’ ratings, which benefit 
from an uplift due to their close and direct links to central government, were also 
downgraded. 

 
The proposed sale of 632 Lloyds’ branches to the Co-op Bank – referred to as 
Project Verde – fell through in April. These branches will now be transferred in 
September to TSB Bank, a new bank which will be sold through a listing on the 
stock market in 2014.  

 
In May, Moody’s downgraded the long-term rating of Co-op Bank by six notches 
from A3 to Ba3 which is sub-investment grade. The downgrade reflected the 
agency’s opinion that the bank faced the risk of further substantial losses in its 
non-core portfolio. In June the Co-op announced it had a £1.5bn regulatory 
capital shortfall requiring a recapitalisation via burden-sharing with junior 
creditors and asset disposals of its parent's insurance businesses. Moody’s 
downgraded the bank’s long-term rating a further four notches to Caa1 whilst 
Fitch downgraded this rating from BBB- to BB-. The Co-op is the Authority’s 
banker and therefore the Authority has daylight exposure to the institution. 
Officers have put in place working practices to reduce this exposure by 
transferring funds within the Co-op account to offset individual account credits 
and debits and clearing any surplus balance to one of the Council’s call accounts 
held with either Barclays, RBS, Bank of Scotland or Santander. These actions are 
undertaken throughout the day to limit both daylight and overnight exposure. 
The minimum balances are left in the Co-op accounts for operational purposes. 

 
In the Chancellor’s Mansion House speech on 19th June he signalled his intention 
to sell the Government’s stake in the Lloyds Banking Group reasonably soon and 
a 6% stake was indeed sold to institutional investors on 17th September at a price 
of 75p. In a positive move, Fitch upgraded Lloyds’ viability rating to bbb+. The 
situation was more complicated with RBS since its problems were greater and 
reflected in its share price. It appeared that a ‘good bank’ and ‘bad bank’ split for 
RBS was being favoured by the Chancellor and sat behind the announcement 
concerning the departure of RBS Chief Executive, Stephen Hester, who 
disagreed with that route. 

 
Moody’s placed the RBS’s long-term rating of A3 and standalone financial 
strength rating of D+ on review for downgrade on 5th July 2013, amid concerns 
about the impact of any potential breakup of the bank on creditors. Although the 

Page 48



 

11 
 

probability of losses remains low there is a possibility of capital impairment 
especially as the government has clearly indicated that it will not put up any 
further taxable funds. As a precautionary measure the Authority has reduced its 
maximum duration on RBS investments to overnight. 
 

4.14 Investment Activity 
  
4.14.1 Investments are made short term to cover cash flow and liquidity requirements 

and longer term to maximise and guarantee future income. The continuance of a 
historically low base rate and the introduction of the Funding for Lending 
Scheme (FFLS), where the Bank of England provides cheap funding to banks and 
building societies, resulted in a reduction in the returns available on the Council’s 
deposits with these institutions. With rates falling the following deposits were 
taken in the period to give some protection to investment returns. 

 
Amount Start Date End Date Term 

(days) 
Rate 
% 

£5.0m 21/05/13 21/08/13   92 0.70 
£5.0m 21/05/13 21/11/13 184 0.80 
£5.0m 16/08/13 18/11/13   94 0.70 

 
 
4.14.2 With bank deposit rates falling council officers have looked at alternative 

investment products to diversify away from pure cash deposits, achieve 
additional returns, and to add to the £5m invested in the CCLA Lamit Property 
Fund in March 2013. After discussion with the Council’s Treasury Management 
Advisers (Arlingclose), a number of fund managers were interviewed and the 
following funds chosen: 

 
• Federated Prime Rate Cash Plus Fund 
• Ignis Sterling Short Duration Cash Fund 
• Investec Short Bond Fund 
• Investec Target Return Fund 
• Payden & Rygel Sterling Reserve Fund 

 
£1m has been deposited in each of these funds investing in a range of 
investments and asset classes including Certificates of Deposits (CD) and 
Floating Rate Notes (FRN), Government and Corporate Bonds and Asset 
Backed Securities (ABS). The target return on these funds will produce around 
1%. These funds are variable and officers will monitor their performance with a 
view to consolidation and possible further investment. The performance of these 
funds will be included in the Treasury Management out-turn report.    

 
 
4.14.3 Figure 2 below shows the split of investments over country/sector as at 30th 

September 2013. In terms of risk management, the majority of the investment 
portfolio is now held in UK institutions. These institutions are of systemic 
importance to the UK economy.  

 

Page 49



 

12 
 

Figure 2 

 
 Table 3  

Counterparty Total 
 £m 
Iceland 3.349 
Banco Santander  

Santander UK (was Abbey National) 26.760 
Lloyds Banking Group  

Bank of Scotland 10.003 
Lloyds TSB 5.000 

Barclays 26.825 
Royal Bank of Scotland (RBS)  

RBS 20.304 
HSBC 10.000 
Svenska Handelsbanken (Swedish Bank) 10.000 
Close Brothers 5.000 
CCLA Lamit Property Fund 5.000 
Federated Prime Rate Cash Plus Fund 1.000 
Ignis Sterling Short Duration Cash Fund 1.000 
Investec Short Bond Fund 1.000 
Investec Target Return Fund 1.000 
Payden & Rygel Sterling Reserve Fund 1.000 
CCLA Public Sector Deposit Fund 0.025 
Total 127.266 

 
4.14.4 The maturity profile of the Council’s deposits is represented in figure 3. This 

shows a large proportion of deposits maturing in less than one month, reflecting 
the deposits in call accounts, giving the liquidity requirement to meet cashflow 

Page 50



 

13 
 

and the ability to react to adverse changes in market conditions. In the period 
covered by this report the treasury management officer has continued to 
negotiate rates on the Council’s call accounts which in most cases pay higher 
than available fixed term deposits out to the maturity limits in place. The 
deposits beyond 1 month are 3 and 6 month deposits with Lloyds Banking 
Group where rates are higher than those available on the call account with this 
group.   
 
Figure 3 
 

 
 

4.15 Credit Risk 
 

4.15.1 The Treasury Management Strategy report to Audit Committee in February 
2010 outlined a recommendation that officers work to develop a set of 
benchmarking criteria against which the Council’s investment risk could be 
measured. The Council’s treasury advisers, Arlingclose, as a result developed the 
following matrix to score the credit risk of an authority’s investment portfolio. 
This continues to be used in 2013-14: 
 
Scoring:  
-Value weighted average reflects the credit quality of investments according to 
the size of the deposit 
-Time weighted average reflects the credit quality of investments according to 
the maturity of the deposit 
-AAA = highest credit quality = 1 

Page 51



 

14 
 

- D = lowest credit quality = 26  
-Aim = A- or higher credit rating, with a score of 7 or lower, to reflect current 
investment approach with main focus on security 
 

4.15.2 Table 3 shows the rating currently attached to the Council’s portfolio and its 
movement during the year.  
 
Table 3 

Date Value 
Weighted 
Average – 
Credit Risk 

Score 

Value 
Weighted 
Average – 
Credit 
Rating 

Time 
Weighted 
Average – 
Credit Risk 

Score 

Time 
Weighted 
Average – 
Credit 
Rating 

31/03/2013 6.00  A 6.25  A 
30/06/2013 6.12 A   5.16 A 
30/09/2013 5.73 A 4.67 A 
Note: These scores exclude any deposits with Icelandic banks. 
 
Based on the scoring methodology, the Council’s counterparty credit quality has 
improved during the year as a result of the use of higher rated banks such as 
HSBC and Svenska Handelsbanken and investments in High rated managed funds. 
Throughout the first half of the year the Council’s credit score was maintained 
well within the target level of 7 as set in the approved 2013/14 strategy. 

 
4.15.3 Arlingclose have used the scoring matrix to compare Plymouth’s investment risk 

against other unitary authorities who use Arlingclose as their advisers. The 
results are shown in section 5.   

 
5. Benchmarking 
 
5.1 The Council’s performance on investments is measured against a benchmark of 

the 7 day libid rate. For the period to 30th September 2013 the return on 
investments made in 2013/14 was 0.8090% against the average 7 day Libid for the 
period of 0.43%.  
 

5.2 As outlined above, Arlingclose have developed a set of benchmarking criteria to 
enable comparisons on performance to be made on data provided by all their 
clients. To compare like with like the following graphs compare our performance 
with other unitary authorities. This is based on data provided to 30th September 
2013.  

 
The 3 graphs used for comparison are: 
1. Average rate of investment against average maturity period 
2. Average rate of investment against value weighted average credit risk score 
3. Average rate of investment against time weighted average credit risk score 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 52



 

15 
 

Graph 1 Average Number of days to Maturity V Return 
 

 
This graph shows the duration of investments against return. It shows the 
Council’s investments have performed well against the majority of other unitary 
authorities reflecting the higher rates negotiated on call accounts  
 

 Graph 2. Value Weighted Average V Return 

 
 
 

Page 53



 

16 
 

As a general rule the aim should be to convert a greater average length of 
portfolio duration into a greater than average return. There should be a positive 
correlation between duration and return. However this chart should not be 
viewed in isolation from other measured parameters and it should be noted that 
a high average number of days to maturity does not necessarily mean a higher 
risk, in fact the reverse may be considered true in some cases. The majority of 
the Council’s investments are in call accounts with UK banks with short-dated 
maturities. These banks have been downgraded increasing the credit risk score 
but are still of systemic importance to the UK economy and as such are 
considered secure investments.  
 
Graph 3 Time weighted Average V Return  

 

 
 

 Longer-term investments with banks are inherently more risky. Ideally 
authorities should move towards the top left corner of the above graph. 
Therefore it is preferable to see risk taken converted into return at a greater 
than average rate. All the Council’s investments are in short-term deposits or 
instant access call accounts and highly rated managed funds so there are no 
longer-term deposits impacting on our credit risk score. The lower risk scores 
of other unitary authorities are due to the use of Money Market Funds (MMF) 
which are AAA rated giving the lowest credit risk score. It has been the policy of 
the Council to use call accounts with UK banks in the first half of the year as 
opposed to the alternative of liquid MMF’s.  Although MMF’s are rated AAA the 
instruments within these funds have far lower ratings. Arlingclose are reviewing 
their credit risk scores to reflect this. Over time this will bring the scores of 
other authorities closer to that of this Authority.    

 
 
 
 

Page 54



 

17 
 

 
6.  Revenue Implications of Treasury Management 
 
6.1 The expenditure and income arising from the Council’s borrowing and 

investments accrues to the revenue accounts. This includes interest payable and 
receivable, the minimum revenue provision (for debt repayment), and premiums 
and discounts written out to revenue from previous debt rescheduling. Some of 
the interest receivable is passed on to specific accounts where this interest has 
accrued from the investment of surplus balances for these services. The balance 
(net cost) is met by the General Fund. The table below shows the monitoring 
positions against budget arising from these transactions in 2013/14 to 30th 
September 2013.  

 
 
Summary of Capital Financing Costs 2013/14  

 2013/14 Forecast 
2013/14 

Variance 

 Budget Outturn  
 £000 £000 £000 
External Interest payments   9,610 8,789 (821) 
External Interest received  (1,133)  (906) 227 
Interest transferred to other accounts   15  15 0 
Premiums / Discounts written out to 
Revenue 

    (189)  (148) 41 

Debt Management Expenses  126 126 0 
Treasury Management Cost 8,429     7,876 (553) 
    
Minimum Revenue Provision  8,101   7,807              87 
Recharges for unsupported borrowing   (4,267)    (4,267) 0 
Recovered from trading Accounts   (2,805) (3,662) 0 
Net Cost to General Fund   9,458  9,200 (466) 

 
7 Icelandic Bank Update  
 
7.1 The latest position on the recoveries of monies invested in the Icelandic banks is 

as follows: 
 
 Glitnir – received £5,033,247.31 (principal £4,742,018.12 and interest 

£291,229.19) amounting to 79.03% of our agreed claim leaving a balance yet to 
be recovered of £1,335,240.36. 
 
Landsbanki – received £2,205,901.96 (principal £1,887,758.90 and interest 
£105,778.37) amounting to 52.22% of our agreed claim leaving a balance yet to 
be recovered of £2,018,233.28. 
 
Heritable – received £2,964,327.74 (principal £2,820,520.30 and interest 
£143,807.44) amounting to 794.02% of our claim leaving a balance of 
£188,630.63 yet to be recovered. 

 
 

Page 55



 

18 
 

 
 
8         Compliance with Prudential Indicators 
  
8.1 Under the arrangements set out in the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in 

Local Authorities, individual authorities are responsible for deciding the level of 
their affordable borrowing, having regard to the Code, and for establishing a 
range of prudential indicators covering borrowing limits and other treasury 
management measures. The Prudential Indicators for 2013/14 were approved by 
Council on 25h February 2013.   

  
 The performance to 30th September 2013 against these limits are set out below: 
  

(a) Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement 
   

This is a key indicator of prudence. In order to ensure that over the medium 
term debt will only be for capital purposes, the Local Authority should 
ensure that debt does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the 
capital financing requirement in the preceding year for the current and next 
two financial years. 
 
If in any of these years there is a reduction in the capital financing 
requirement (CFR), this reduction is ignored in estimating the cumulative 
increase in the CFR which is used for the comparison with gross external 
debt. 
 
Based on the current capital programme the maximum CFR estimated over 
the next 3 years is £285.088m. At the start of the year total debt was 
£267.794m. This fluctuated during the first 6 months of the year to reach a 
maximum level of £286.899m on 24th September 2013. By the 30th September 
this had fallen to £285.4m, back below the CFR. Short term cashflow 
requirements will sometimes mean the debt will be above the CFR but the 
Section 151 officer can report that the Authority had no difficulty meeting 
the requirement in 2012/13 or the current year to date.  

  
 

(b) Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary for External Debt  
 
The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to set an Affordable 
Borrowing Limit, irrespective of their indebted status. This is a statutory 
limit which should not be breached. It is measured on a daily basis against all 
external borrowing items on the balance sheet (i.e. long and short term 
borrowing, overdrawn bank balances and long term liabilities). It is 
consistent with the Council’s existing commitments, its proposal for capital 
expenditure and its approved Treasury Management Policy/Strategy. 

 
The Council’s Affordable (Authorised) Borrowing Limit was set at £310m for 
2013/14 including a limit for other long term liabilities of £40m to cover PFI,  
Finance Leases and Tamar Bridge debt. 

 

Page 56



 

19 
 

The Operational Boundary is based on the same estimates as the Authorised 
Limit but reflects the most likely, prudent but not worst case scenario 
without the additional headroom included within the Authorised Limit. It is a 
focus for the day to day treasury management and a means by which the 
authority manages its external debt within the self-imposed Authorised 
Limit. The Operational Boundary may be breached at certain times during 
the year due to short-term cashflow requirements. 

 
 The Operational Boundary for 2013/14 was set at £289m. 

 
There were no breaches to the Authorised Limit or Operational Boundary 
to 30th September 2013 with the total external debt (including PFI, Finance 
Leases and Tamar Bridge debt) reaching its maximum level of £286.899 on 
24th September 2013. 

 
(c) Upper Limits for Fixed Interest Rate Exposure and Variable 

Interest Rate Exposure  
These indicators allow the Council to manage the extent to which it is 
exposed to changes in interest rates.  
The upper limit for variable rate exposure allows for the use of variable rate 
debt to offset exposure to changes in short-term rates on our portfolio of 
investments. 

 
   Limits for 2013/143 

% 
Upper Limit for Fixed Rate Exposure 200 
Maximum exposure in 2013-14 193.11 
Compliance with Limits: Yes 
Upper Limit for Variable Rate Exposure 50 
Maximum exposure in 2013-14 0.37 
Compliance with Limits: Yes 

 
The Council’s exposure to both fixed and variable rates was managed well within 
the limits set during the first half of the year. 

 
(d) Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate Borrowing  

This indicator is to limit large concentrations of fixed rate debt needing to 
be replaced at times of uncertainty over interest rates, and is designed to 
protect against excessive exposure to interest rate changes. 

 
It is calculated as the amount of projected borrowing that is fixed rate 
maturing in each period as a percentage of total projected borrowing that is 
fixed rate. The maturity of borrowing is determined by reference to the 
earliest date on which the lender can require payment. The repayment of 
the majority of PWLB loans on stock transfer has resulted in a high 
proportion of Lobo (Lenders Option, Borrowers Option) loans which may 
be subject to rate change or repayment at specified intervals. On specified 
dates the Lender has the option to vary the rate. If the option is taken the 
Council (Borrower) has the option to repay the loan. Therefore the loan 

Page 57



 

20 
 

may be subject to repayment on a number of occasions throughout the life 
of the loan. These repayment possibilities are included in the limits set for 
the maturity of fixed rate borrowing and the monitoring of actuals against 
these limits. The following table shows the performance against limits during 
the year. 

  

Maturity Structure of Fixed 
Rate Borrowing 

Upper 
Limit 

% 

Lower 
Limit 

% 

Highest % 
of Actual 
Fixed Rate 
Borrowing 

during    
13-14 

Lowest % 
of Actual 
Fixed Rate 
Borrowing 

during      
13-14 

Compliance 
with Set 
Limits? 

 under 12 months  40 0 20.42    7.88 Yes  
 12 months and within 24 months 60 0 47.02   31.87 Yes 
 24 months and within 5 years 40 0 22.92   10.45 Yes 
 5 years and within 10 years 25 0   4.56   1.94 Yes 
 10 years and within 20 years 25 0   2.86   2.86 Yes 
 20 years and with 30 years 25 0   5.37   5.37 Yes 
 30 years and within 40 years 30 0   6.36   4.67 Yes 
 40 years and within 50 years 35 0 17.18 15.50 Yes 
 50 years and above 25 0   0.00   0.00 Yes 

 
 

 
(e) Total principal sums invested for periods longer than 364 days 
 
§ This indicator allows the Council to manage the risk inherent in investments 

longer than 364 days.  
§ The limit for 2013/14 was set at £20m.   
§ On the advice of the Council’s advisers no deposits were made beyond 364 

days during the first half of the year. Some investments were made in managed 
funds which could be held for longer term but as they are liquid and can be 
cashed in at short notice they are viewed as short term investments. Having 
not taken any deposits over 364 days in the first half of the year the Council 
still has space for up to £20m of longer-term deposits should this be viewed 
as appropriate in light of credit conditions, available counterparties and the 
risk/reward of these investments. 

 
(f) Credit Risk 

 
§ This indicator has been incorporated to review the Council’s approach to 

credit risk. 
§ The Council confirms it considers security, liquidity and yield, in that order, 

when making investment decisions. 
§ Credit ratings remain an important element in assessing credit risk, but they 

are not the sole feature of the Authority’s assessment of counterparty risk. 
The authority considers the following tools to assess credit risk. 

Page 58



 

21 
 

• Published credit ratings of the financial institution and its 
sovereign; 

• Sovereign support mechanism; 
• Credit default swaps (where quoted); 
• Share prices (where quoted); 
• Economic fundamentals, such as country’s net debt as a 

percentage of its GDP; 
• Corporate developments, news, articles, market sentiment and 

momentum. 
§ The Council can confirm that all investments were made in line with minimum 

credit rating criteria set in the 2013/14 Treasury Management Strategy. 
• Long-term ratings of A- or equivalent; 
• Long-term sovereign ratings of AA+ or equivalent for non-UK 

sovereigns. 
 

9. Outlook for Q3-Q4 

9.1 At the time of writing this activity report in October 2013, the UK economic 
outlook appears to have improved. The projected path for growth has risen, but 
remains relatively subdued, with a distinct reliance on household consumption, 
which itself remains under pressure given the deterioration in real earnings 
growth, high unemployment and general low confidence. A variety of other 
factors will continue to weigh on a domestic recovery, including on-going fiscal 
consolidation, muted business confidence and subdued foreign demand. While 
the economic recovery may pick up steam, forward guidance from the Bank of 
England suggests that monetary policy is unlikely to be tightened until the ILO 
Unemployment Rate falls below 7%. The Bank projected this level would be 
reached in 2016. The latest forecast for Bank Rate from our advisers Arlingclose 
is below: 

 
Dec-13 Mar-14 Jun-14 Sep-14 Dec-14 Mar-15 Jun-15 Sep-15 Dec-15 Mar-16 Jun-16 Sep-16

Official Bank Rate

Upside risk          0.25         0.25     0.25     0.25     0.25     0.50     0.50     0.50     0.75     0.75     0.75 

Arlingclose Central Case   0.50       0.50        0.50    0.50    0.50    0.50    0.50    0.50    0.50    0.50    0.50    0.50 
Downside risk 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25  
 

 
10 Summary 

 
10.1 In compliance with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice, this report 

provides members with a summary of the Treasury Management activity during 
the first half of 2013/14. As indicated in this report none of the Prudential 
Indicators have been breached and a prudent approach has been taken in 
relation to investment activity with priority given to security and liquidity over 
yield. 

Page 59



 

22 
 

Appendix 1 
Money Market Data and PWLB Rates  
 
The average, low and high rates correspond to the rates during the financial year rather 
than those in the tables below. 
 
Please note that the PWLB rates quoted below relate to the standard rates. The 
Council is eligible for the Certainty rate which provides a 0.2% reduction. 
 
Table 1: Bank Rate, Money Market Rates 

Date  Bank 
Rate  O/N 

LIBID 
7-day 
LIBID 

1-
month 
LIBID 

3-
month 
LIBID 

6-
month 
LIBID 

12-
month 
LIBID 

2-yr 
SWAP 
Bid 

3-yr 
SWAP 
Bid 

5-yr 
SWAP 
Bid 

01/04/2013  0.50  0.40 0.50 0.40 0.44 0.51 0.75 0.59 0.68 0.97 

30/04/2013  0.50  0.50 0.47 0.40 0.44 0.51 0.75 0.57 0.64 0.91 

31/05/2013  0.50  0.38 0.42 0.40 0.44 0.51 0.75 0.68 0.82 1.15 

30/06/2013  0.50  0.43 0.38 0.40 0.44 0.51 0.75 0.78 0.99 1.52 

31/07/2013  0.50  0.42 0.50 0.40 0.44 0.51 0.75 0.68 0.86 1.39 

30/08/2013  0.50  0.43 0.41 0.41 0.44 0.51 0.76 0.81 1.10 1.71 

30/09/2013  0.50  0.38 0.38 0.41 0.44 0.51 0.76 0.83 1.12 1.73 

             

Average  0.50  0.42 0.43 0.40 0.44 0.51 0.76 0.72 0.91 1.38 

Maximum  0.50  0.50 0.50 0.45 0.53 0.65 0.84 0.95 1.32 1.99 

Minimum  0.50  0.35 0.38 0.40 0.44 0.51 0.75 0.55 0.62 0.87 

Spread  --  0.15 0.12 0.05 0.09 0.14 0.09 0.40 0.70 1.12 

 
 
Table 2: PWLB Borrowing Rates – Fixed Rate, Maturity Loans 

Change Date Notice 
No 1 year 4½-5 yrs 9½-10 yrs 19½-20 yrs 29½-30 yrs 39½-40 yrs 49½-50 yrs 

01/04/2013 125/13 1.11 1.74 2.83 3.87 4.18 4.25 4.22 

30/04/2013 166/13 1.16 1.72 2.72 3.74 4.06 4.13 4.08 

31/05/2013 208/13 1.26 1.97 3.03 3.99 4.29 4.36 4.33 

28/06/2013 248/13 1.22 2.34 3.49 4.30 4.52 4.56 4.54 

31/07/2013 293/13 1.21 2.22 3.43 4.29 4.50 4.52 4.50 

30/08/2013 335/13 1.28 2.53 3.74 4.43 4.54 4.54 4.53 

30/09/2013 377/13 1.30 2.50 3.66 4.36 4.49 4.50 4.48 

         

 Low 1.11 1.70 2.71 3.71 4.02 4.08 4.04 

 Average 1.25 2.21 3.34 4.19 4.42 4.46 4.43 

 High 1.40 2.80 3.99 4.62 4.71 4.72 4.71 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 60



 

23 
 

          Appendix 1 
 
Table 3: PWLB Borrowing Rates – Fixed Rate, Equal Instalment of Principal (EIP) Loans 

Change Date 
Notice 
No 4½-5 yrs 9½-10 yrs 19½-20 yrs 29½-30 yrs 39½-40 yrs 49½-50 yrs 

01/04/2013 125/13 1.30 1.80 2.87 3.52 3.88 4.08 
30/04/2013 166/13 1.31 1.77 2.76 3.39 3.75 3.96 
31/05/2013 208/13 1.49 2.02 3.07 3.67 4.00 4.19 
28/06/2013 248/13 1.66 2.41 3.53 4.05 4.30 4.45 
31/07/2013 293/13 1.58 2.29 3.47 4.04 4.30 4.44 
30/08/2013 335/13 1.78 2.61 3.77 4.26 4.44 4.51 
30/09/2013 377/13 1.79 2.58 3.69 4.17 4.37 4.45 

        
 Low 1.29 1.76 2.75 3.37 3.72 3.91 
 Average 1.61 2.28 3.38 3.93 4.20 4.35 
 High 1.97 2.88 4.03 4.46 4.62 4.69 

 
 
Table 4: PWLB Variable Rates  

 
 

 1-M Rate 3-M Rate 6-M Rate 1-M Rate 3-M Rate 6-M Rate 

 Pre-CSR Pre-CSR Pre-CSR Post-CSR Post-CSR Post-CSR 

01/04/2013 0.5700 0.5600 0.5500 1.4700 1.4600 1.4500 

30/04/2013 0.5700 0.5500 0.5400 1.4700 1.4500 1.4400 

31/05/2013 0.5600 0.5600 0.5600 1.4600 1.4600 1.4600 

28/06/2013 0.5600 0.5600 0.5600 1.4600 1.4600 1.4600 

31/07/2013 0.5500 0.5500 0.5500 1.4500 1.4500 1.4500 

30/08/2013 0.5600 0.5600 0.5600 1.4600 1.4600 1.4600 

30/09/2013 0.5700 0.5700 0.5700 1.4700 1.4700 1.4700 

       

Low 0.5500 0.5500 0.5400 1.4500 1.4500 1.4400 

Average 0.5640 0.5607 0.5576 1.4640 1.4607 1.4576 

High 0.5800 0.5700 0.5700 1.4800 1.4700 1.4700 

Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



Version 1.0 02122013 

 
PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

  
Subject:    Operational Risk & Opportunity Management Update Report  

Committee:    Audit Committee 

Date:    12 December 2013 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Lowry 

CMT Member:   David Trussler (Interim Director for Corporate Services) 

Author: Mike Hocking, Head of Corporate Risk and Insurance 

Contact details   Tel:  01752 304967 
    mike.hocking@plymouth.gov.uk  

Ref:    CRM/MJH 

Key Decision: No  
 
Part: I    
 
Purpose of the report:  
 
To support the delivery of the City’s vision and to enable the provision of high quality services to the 
citizens and communities of Plymouth it is imperative that effective risk management arrangements 
are in place.  A fundamental element of Corporate Governance, a risk managed approach to decision 
making will enable the council to achieve its objectives and deliver services more efficiently and cost 
effectively. 
 
The management of risk principles and processes equally apply at operational level, supporting 
improved performance, integration with business planning, projects, change programmes and 
partnerships.   
 
This report now outlines the continuing progress being made across Services in delivering 
Operational Risk and Opportunity Registers in line with the Council’s shared vision and priorities. 
 
The total number of operational risks now reported has decreased from 159 to 140, comprising 3 
high (red) risks, 67 medium (amber) risks and 70 low (green) risks. 
 
The decrease in number of risks is mainly due to a risk review within Chief Executives office. 
 
Commentary on the high risk areas is included in the report together with details of control 
actions/mitigation in place. 
         
The Brilliant Co-operative Council Corporate Plan 2013/14 – 2016/17:   
 
Operational Risk and Opportunity Registers are aligned to business plan objectives which are in turn 
linked to the Corporate Plan and our four priorities.  This ensures that appropriate links are 
identified with individual risks where control action contributes to delivery of a key corporate 
objective. 
          
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 

Agenda Item 7Page 63



Version 1.0 02122013 

 
None arising specifically from this report but control measures identified in risk and opportunity 
registers could have financial or resource implications. 
   
Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and Safety and Risk 
Management: 

None arising specifically from this report but community safety and health and safety issues and risks 
are taken into account in the preparation of risk and opportunity registers.  

 

Equality and Diversity 

Has an Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken?   Not required.   

  
Recommendations and Reasons for recommended action: 
The Audit Committee is recommended to: 

·    Note and endorse the current position with regard to operational risk and opportunity 
management. 

 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
Effective risk management processes are an essential element of internal control and as such are an 
important element of good corporate governance.  For this reason alternative options are not 
applicable. 
 
Published work / information: 
 
Plymouth City Council’s Risk & Opportunity Management Strategy   
 
Background papers: 
 
None. 
 

Title Part 1 Part II Exemption Paragraph Number 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

          
          

    
 
Sign off:   
 
Fin Djn13

14.24 
Leg  Mon 

Off 
 HR  Assets  IT  Strat 

Proc 
 

Originating SMT Member: Tim Howes, Asst Director, Democracy & Governance 
Has the Cabinet Member(s) agreed the contents of the report?  Yes  

Page 64



Version 1.0 02122013 

1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The position with regard to Operational Risk and Opportunity Risk Register monitoring was 

last reported to this Committee on 13 June 2013 and this report now provides a summary of 
the latest monitoring exercise covering the position as at December 2013. 

 
2. Background 
 
2.1 Ten years ago Plymouth City Council implemented its first risk management strategy.  This 

has been continuously reviewed each year and updated to ensure it remains fit for purpose. 
 
2.2 To comply with the Risk and Opportunity Management Strategy each Directorate must 

implement a robust process of managing risks to corporate, service, project and partnership 
objectives for which they have responsibility. 

 
2.3 To support the promotion and co-ordination of risk management each Directorate/Service 

has a dedicated Risk Champion.  Risk Champions represent their Directorate/Service at the 
Operational Risk Management Group which is chaired by the Head of Corporate Risk and 
Insurance. 

 
2.4 The good progress made towards achievement of this outlined in this report should provide 

Members with assurance that operational risks are now being identified effectively, mitigation 
actions put in place and Operational Risk and Opportunity Registers monitored routinely 
alongside the delivery of Business Plan objectives. 

 
3. Operational Risk and Opportunity Registers and Analysis of Risks Identified 
 
3.1 The corporate risk management process to enable service level Operational Risk and 

Opportunity Registers to be brought in line with business planning guidance linked to the 
Corporate Plan is now embedded across the Council. 

 
3.2 In drawing up their Business Plans, Assistant Directors and Heads of Service are identifying 

risks that may prevent them from delivering on their key service objectives and, by 
monitoring these risks on a regular basis, will be tracking the effectiveness of mitigation 
controls.  

 
3.3 As the risk identification process includes quantification through a probability/impact 

assessment, Services should also be able to identify key risks and prioritise their use of scarce 
resources more effectively. 

 
3.4 All Services have therefore completed Operational Risk and Opportunity Registers or are 

reporting work in progress in line with development of their Business Plans. 
 

4. Red Risks 
 
4.1 All three of the “red” risks identified in June 2013 remain, as indicated below:- 
 
EXISTING RED RISK 
Dept: 
Finance, Efficiencies, Technology & Assets 
(Finance) 

 
 
Medium Term Financial Strategy issues 

Comments/Mitigation:  This risk is also monitored via the Strategic Risk and Opportunity 
Register.  Strategic partners have been engaged to help address future funding gap through a co-

Page 65



Version 1.0 02122013 

ordinated transformation programme.  Budget presented to senior officers and members itemising 
all income and gross spend, delivering greater transparency and challenge. 
EXISTING RED RISK  
Dept: People (Homes & Communities) 

Increasing homelessness as a direct result of the 
Local Housing Allowance (LHA) & Welfare 
Reform changes 

Comments/Mitigation:  Service demand and use of temporary accommodation is still high.  The 
Local Housing Allowance (LHA) action plan is being reviewed.  Regular meetings are being held with 
Revenues and Benefits to look at Discretionary Housing Payments spend and adapt the scheme to 
meet those most in need. 
EXISTING RED RISK  
Dept: Place (Transport & Highways) 

Deterioration of the condition of the City’s 
Highway Network (carriageway and footway) 

Comments/Mitigation:  The delivery of the £2m (pa) investment to resurface and reconstruct a 
number of city roads has been positively noticeable and welcome.  Whilst the £2m, ten year 
commitment is welcome the underlying condition of the network is poor, hence the investment to 
halt further deterioration and bring it to a steady state that could be maintained is a considerable 
way off.  Footways are not part of the carriageway investment at the current time and are a 
concern. 
 
5. Risk and Opportunity Register Information 
 
5.1 Operational Risk and Opportunity Registers record mitigation actions and controls for all 

risks identified together with a named risk owner in each case 
 
5.2 Risk templates include opportunities that may be realised following successful management of 

risk. 
 
5.3 Risks scored 5 and under are considered to be managed to an acceptable level and have been 

removed from registers and archived in line with the Risk and Opportunity Management 
Strategy. 

 
5.4 More detailed information on individual Services’ risk and opportunity registers can be 

obtained from the Head of Corporate Risk & Insurance, departmental risk champions or 
Heads of Service.  
 

6. Transformation Project 
 
6.1 The first Transformation Portfolio Board met on 15 October with the aim of ensuring 

delivery of transformation outcomes in accordance with our Co-operative Council values. 
 
6.2 During this meeting the Transformation Board agreed the key outcomes for the 

Transformation Project and a workshop is now being planned to log the risks to delivery of 
these outcomes and capture key opportunities arising from development of the programme. 

 
6.3 Risks to the Transformation Project outcomes will be tracked operationally via project risk 

logs and an over-arching risk covering the project as a whole will be added to the Strategic 
Risk and Opportunity Register. 

 
7. Information Governance 
 
7.1 I reported to this Committee on 19 September 2013 that despite the continuing work of the 

Information Lead Officers Group (ILOG) an information security breach had occurred in July 2013 
involving a caseload listing being sent to the wrong recipient. 

 

Page 66



Version 1.0 02122013 

7.2 The breach was disclosed to the Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) as it had been 
published in the Herald and subsequently, the Council has invited the ICO to carry out an 
audit of its processing of sensitive data which is due to take place in January 2014. 

 
7.3 The ICO have since ruled that the type of data on the caseload listing was not sufficient to 

initiate their regulatory intervention as it consisted solely of children’s and social workers’ 
names and did not include any sensitive or other identifying information. 

 
7.4 The ICO have now closed their investigation into this incident and no monetary penalty 

notice will be imposed. 
 
7.5 Further to the above incident, ILOG initiated a staff awareness campaign during October 

2013.  Guidance pages were published on the staffroom intranet page under the main banner 
heading over the course of 5 weeks.  They were entitled ‘Check before you send’, ‘No file 
tipping’, ‘Don’t be a loser’, ‘Walls have ears’ and ‘Could this happen here?’. 

 
7.6 The campaign was followed up with a ‘Data Safe’ eLearning training course that all staff with 

computer access must undertake by the end of the year. 
 
7.7 The course concludes with a series of quiz questions and staff must achieve a pass rate of 

100% or re-take the quiz. 
 
7.8 The number of staff completing the eLearning training course is being tracked and success 

rates will be published on the Staff Room intranet page. 
 
7.9 Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) have also carried out an independent review of our 

information governance arrangements and have sent out a questionnaire to a range of staff of 
different job types to gauge the current level of awareness across the organisation and this 
will act as a gap analysis for ILOG to update their action plan. 

 
7.10 The results of the DAP and ICO audits and planned mitigation actions will be brought to this 

Committee in March 2014. 
 
8. Conclusion 
 
8.1 The Council’s success in dealing with the risks it faces can have a major impact on the 
 achievement of key promises and objectives and ultimately, therefore, on the level of service 
 to the community. 
 
8.2 The Council recognises that it is operating in a climate of unprecedented financial pressure 

and that it needs to substantially reduce operating costs and ensure maximum possible 
investment in achieving its objectives and therefore needs to be innovative, resourceful, 
customer focused and provide greater value for money.  The achievement of delivery plan 
actions to deliver budget savings continues to be closely monitored by Services with regular 
reporting on a risk rated basis to the Corporate Management Team. 

 
8.3 The Council’s approach to operational risk and opportunity management supports the 

implementation of the council-wide transformation programme, based on co-operative values, 
and is focussed on improving the ability of Services to manage those risks that may prevent 
them from delivery of their Business and Delivery Plans – this in turn should in time impact 
positively on outcomes for service users. 

 

Page 67



Version 1.0 02122013 

8.4 One of the responsibilities of the Audit Committee is to seek and receive assurances that the 
Council has an effective internal control framework in place which includes arrangements for 
the management of risk at both strategic and operational level. 

 
8.5 This update report confirms that operational risks are now being identified across Services 

with clear links to Business Plan objectives and also confirms the good progress in embedding 
risk and opportunity management in the Council’s other core business processes. 

 
8.6 The Risk and Opportunity Management Strategy will provide staff with a process for 

identifying threats or risks that includes becoming more outcome focussed to be able to 
manage the upside of risk. 

 
8.7 The Operational Risk Management Group is continuing to work with departmental Risk 

Champions to maintain the good progress to date and to further develop consistent 
application of risk management considerations across all operations of the Council. 

 
8.8 The next report will be presented to Audit Committee in June 2014. 
 
 
 
 

Page 68



V0.1 28 November 2013 

 
Subject:    Covert Surveillance RIPA 

Committee:    Audit 

Date:    12 December 2013 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Peter Smith 

CMT Member:   Carole Burgoyne (Director for People) 

Author: Richard Woodfield) Corporate Information Manager 

Contact details   Tel:  01752 304067 
    email: richard.woodfield@plymouth.gcsx.gov.uk  

Ref:    Annual Report position 

Key Decision: No  
 
Part: I    
 
Purpose of the report:  
Councillors receive a yearly report as to the operation of the Surveillance Policy and the use made of 
the provisions of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA). 
 
The Surveillance Policy was approved by the Audit Committee on 13 December 2012 and no 
revisions are proposed. There have not been any investigations that have required the use of the 
provisions of this policy, except those which have been regulated through the RIPA process. 
 
There are two regulatory bodies that oversee the use that public authorities make of RIPA and their 
inspection reports are available on the Council’s web site. 
 
The Office of the Surveillance Commissioner (OSC) is not likely to next inspect the Council during 
the coming year. However the Interception of Communications Commissioner Office (IOCCO) is 
undertaking an inspection on Tuesday 2nd December 2013 but the outcome of this Inspection and any 
action plan will not be available from the Inspector for this Audit Committee meeting. 
 
Thus it has been decided to assist the Committee by delaying the presentation of a full report to the 
next scheduled meeting, so that the Committee in March 2014 can have the benefit of the IOCCO 
Inspectors report and any action plan. 
 
I can confirm that little covert surveillance activity has needed to be carried out by the Council and 
that since the last report in December 2012 there has only been one authorisation of Directed 
Surveillance to help establish the illegal sale of tobacco and four authorisations to obtain details of 
people being investigated by the Trading Standards department. 
 
It is those authorisations to obtain communications data e.g. the identity of the users of mobile phone 
numbers, which the IOCCO Inspector will report on; as to the legality, necessity and proportionality 
of interference with the rights of private individuals. 
 
If the Committee have any questions about the use of surveillance and interference with privacy, then 
I will be pleased to answer these in my next report.  
 
 

Agenda Item 8Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  P

ly
m

ou
th

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

Au
di

t C
om

m
itt

ee
 U

pd
at

e 
 

.
Au

dit
 Co

mm
itte

e U
pd
ate

for
 Pl

ym
ou
th 

Cit
y C

ou
nci

l 

Y
ea

r 
en

d
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
4 

29
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
3

B
ar

ri
e 

M
o

rr
is

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t L
ea

d
T

 0
11

7 
30

5 
77

08
E

 b
ar

ri
e.

m
o

rr
is

@
u

k.
g

t.
co

m

D
av

id
 B

ra
y 

S
en

io
r 

A
u

d
it

 M
an

ag
er

 
T

 0
11

7 
30

5 
78

89
E

 d
av

id
.b

ra
y@

u
k.

g
t.

co
m

Agenda Item 9Page 71



Th
e c

on
ten

ts o
f th

is r
epo

rt r
ela

te 
on
ly t

o t
he 

ma
tte
rs 
wh

ich
 ha

ve 
com

e t
o o

ur 
att
ent

ion
, 

wh
ich

 we
 be

liev
e n

eed
 to

 be
 re
po
rte

d t
o y

ou
 as
 pa

rt o
f o

ur 
aud

it p
roc

ess
.  I

t is
 no

t a
 

com
pre

hen
siv

e r
eco

rd 
of 

all 
the

 re
lev

ant
 m
att
ers

, w
hic

h m
ay 

be 
sub

jec
t to

 ch
ang

e, a
nd
 in
 

par
tic
ula

r w
e c

ann
ot 

be 
hel

d r
esp

on
sib

le t
o y

ou
 fo

r re
po
rtin

g a
ll o

f th
e r
isk

s w
hic

h m
ay 

aff
ect

 
you

r b
usi

nes
s o

r a
ny 

we
akn

ess
es 

in 
you

r in
ter

nal
 co

ntr
ols

.  T
his

 re
po
rt h

as 
bee

n p
rep

are
d 

sol
ely

 fo
r y
ou
r b

ene
fit 

and
 sh

ou
ld 
no
t b

e q
uo
ted

 in
 wh

ole
 or

 in
 pa

rt w
ith
ou
t o

ur 
pri

or 
wr
itte

n 
con

sen
t. W

e d
o n

ot 
acc

ept
 an

y r
esp

on
sib

ilit
y f
or 

any
 lo
ss 
occ

asi
on
ed 

to 
any

 th
ird

 pa
rty

 ac
tin
g, 

or 
ref

rai
nin

g f
rom

 ac
tin
g o

n t
he 

bas
is o

f th
e c

on
ten

t o
f th

is r
epo

rt, 
as 
thi
s r
epo

rt w
as 
no
t 

pre
par

ed 
for

, n
or 

int
end

ed 
for

, an
y o

the
r p

urp
ose

.
.

Page 72



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  P

ly
m

ou
th

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

Au
di

t C
om

m
itt

ee
 U

pd
at

e 
 

33

Co
nte

nts
S

ec
ti

o
n

P
ag

e

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n

4

P
ro

gr
es

s 
at

 2
9 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

13
5

E
m

er
gi

ng
 is

su
es

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts

Lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t g

ui
da

nc
e 

7

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n

9 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

an
d 

au
di

t i
ss

ue
s 

11

Page 73



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  P

ly
m

ou
th

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

Au
di

t C
om

m
itt

ee
 U

pd
at

e 
 

44

Int
rod

uct
ion

T
hi

s 
pa

pe
r 

pr
ov

id
es

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 w
ith

 a
 r

ep
or

t o
n 

pr
og

re
ss

 in
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
ou

r 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
as

 y
ou

r 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ud
ito

rs
. 

T
he

 p
ap

er
 a

ls
o 

in
cl

ud
es

:
•

a 
su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 n
at

io
na

l i
ss

ue
s 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 th
at

 m
ay

 b
e 

re
le

va
nt

 to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
•

a 
nu

m
be

r o
f c

ha
lle

ng
e 

qu
es

tio
ns

 in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f t
he

se
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 is
su

es
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 m

ay
 w

is
h 

to
 c

on
si

de
r.

M
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 c

an
 fi

nd
 fu

rt
he

r u
se

fu
l m

at
er

ia
l o

n 
ou

r 
w

eb
si

te
,w

w
w

.g
ra

nt
-t

ho
rn

to
n.

co
.u

k,
 w

he
re

 w
e 

ha
ve

 a
 s

ec
tio

n 
de

di
ca

te
d 

to
 o

ur
 w

or
k 

in
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 s
ec

to
r.

 H
er

e 
yo

u 
ca

n 
do

w
nl

oa
d 

co
pi

es
 o

f o
ur

 p
ub

lic
at

io
ns

 –
'L

oc
al

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
R

ev
ie

w
 2

01
3'

,'
T

ow
ar

ds
 a

 
tip

pi
ng

 p
oi

nt
?'

, '
T

he
 m

ig
ra

tio
n 

of
 p

ub
lic

 s
er

vi
ce

s'
, '

T
he

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it 
ag

en
da

', 
'P

re
pa

rin
g 

fo
r t

he
 fu

tu
re

', 
'S

ur
vi

vi
ng

 th
e 

st
or

m
: h

ow
 

re
si

lie
nt

 a
re

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s?

' 

If 
yo

u 
w

ou
ld

 li
ke

 fu
rt

he
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

on
 a

ny
 it

em
s 

in
 th

is
 b

rie
fin

g,
 o

r 
w

ou
ld

 li
ke

 to
 r

eg
is

te
r w

ith
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
to

 r
ec

ei
ve

re
gu

la
r e

m
ai

l u
pd

at
es

 
on

 is
su

es
 th

at
 a

re
 o

f i
nt

er
es

t t
o 

yo
u,

 p
le

as
e 

co
nt

ac
t e

ith
er

 y
ou

r 
E

ng
ag

em
en

t L
ea

d 
or

 A
ud

it 
M

an
ag

er
.

B
ar

ri
e 

M
o

rr
is

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t L
ea

d
T

 0
11

7 
30

5 
77

08
E

 b
ar

ri
e.

m
o

rr
is

@
u

k.
g

t.
co

m

D
av

id
 B

ra
y 

S
en

io
r 

A
u

d
it

 M
an

ag
er

 
T

 0
11

7 
30

5 
78

89
E

 d
av

id
.b

ra
y@

u
k.

g
t.

co
m

Page 74



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  P

ly
m

ou
th

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

Au
di

t C
om

m
itt

ee
 U

pd
at

e 
 

55

Pro
gre

ss 
at 
29
 N
ov
em

ber
 20

13
W

o
rk

P
la

n
n

ed
 d

at
e

C
o

m
p

le
te

?
C

o
m

m
en

ts

20
12

-1
3 

A
u

d
it

 
B

y 
31

 O
ct

ob
er

 
20

13
Y

es
O

ur
 a

ud
it 

fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r 

en
de

d 
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
3 

is
 c

om
pl

et
e.

 O
ur

 
an

nu
al

 a
ud

it 
le

tte
r h

as
 b

ee
n 

pr
od

uc
ed

 a
nd

 c
op

ie
d 

to
 th

is
 

co
m

m
itt

ee
.

C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

W
o

rk
 2

01
2-

13
B

y 
30

 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
13

Y
es

W
e 

au
di

t t
ho

se
 g

ra
nt

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
th

at
 re

qu
ire

 c
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

an
d 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

de
pa

rt
m

en
t d

ea
dl

in
es

. W
e 

ha
ve

 c
om

pl
et

ed
: 

•
th

e 
N

N
D

R
 r

et
ur

n

•
th

e 
T

ea
ch

er
s'

 p
en

si
on

s 
re

tu
rn

•
th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 B

en
ef

its
 re

tu
rn

 

W
e 

ha
ve

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
a 

se
pa

ra
te

 c
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
re

po
rt

 a
nd

 th
is

 is
 o

n 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 a

ge
nd

a.

20
13

-1
4 

A
cc

o
u

n
ts

 A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
W

e 
w

ill
 is

su
e 

an
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

au
di

t p
la

n 
se

tti
ng

 o
ut

 
ou

r 
pr

op
os

ed
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 g

iv
e 

an
 

op
in

io
n 

on
 th

e
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

20
13

-1
4 

ac
co

un
ts

.

M
ar

ch
 2

01
4

N
ot

 d
ue

T
hi

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
pr

od
uc

ed
 to

 in
fo

rm
 o

ur
 w

or
k 

on
 th

e 
20

13
-1

4 
au

di
t, 

ta
ki

ng
 a

cc
ou

nt
 o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 in

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
, t

he
 r

es
ul

ts
 o

f o
ur

 in
te

rim
 te

st
in

g 
an

d 
re

fle
ct

in
g 

on
 th

e 
au

di
t p

ro
ce

ss
 fr

om
 2

01
2-

13
. 

20
13

-1
4 

In
te

ri
m

 a
cc

o
u

n
ts

 a
u

d
it

 
O

ur
 in

te
rim

 fi
el

dw
or

k 
vi

si
t i

nc
lu

de
s:

•
up

da
tin

g
ou

r
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il'
s

co
nt

ro
l 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t

•
up

da
tin

g
ou

r
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 fi

na
nc

ia
l 

sy
st

em
s

•
re

vi
ew

 o
f I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
it 

re
po

rt
s 

on
 c

or
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ys

te
m

s
•

ea
rly

 w
or

k 
on

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
is

su
es

•
ea

rly
su

bs
ta

nt
iv

e 
te

st
in

g.

S
pr

in
g 

20
14

N
ot

 d
ue

N
ot

 y
et

 d
ue

.

Page 75



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  P

ly
m

ou
th

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

Au
di

t C
om

m
itt

ee
 U

pd
at

e 
 

66

Pro
gre

ss 
at 
29
 N
ov
em

ber
 20

13
W

o
rk

P
la

n
n

ed
 d

at
e

C
o

m
p

le
te

?
C

o
m

m
en

ts

20
13

-1
4 

fi
n

al
 a

cc
o

u
n

ts
 a

u
d

it
In

cl
ud

in
g:

•
au

di
t o

f t
he

 2
01

3-
14

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

•
pr

op
os

ed
 o

pi
ni

on
 o

n 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il
's

 a
cc

ou
nt

s.
 

S
um

m
er

 2
01

4

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
4

N
ot

 d
ue

N
ot

 d
ue

N
ot

 y
et

 d
ue

.

W
e 

ar
e 

in
 d

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 w

ith
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 o

n 
a 

m
on

th
ly

 
ba

si
s 

to
 c

ov
er

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 is

su
es

.

20
13

-1
4 

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

M
o

n
ey

 (
V

fM
) c

o
n

cl
u

si
o

n
T

he
 s

co
pe

 o
f o

ur
 w

or
k 

to
 in

fo
rm

 th
e 

20
13

-1
4 

V
fM

 
co

nc
lu

si
on

 c
om

pr
is

es
:

•
a 

de
ta

ile
d 

re
vi

ew
 o

f f
in

an
ci

al
 r

es
ili

en
ce

•
a 

re
vi

ew
 o

f a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 fo

r s
ec

ur
in

g 
ec

on
om

y 
an

d 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y

•
a 

fo
llo

w
 u

p 
of

 re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 m
ad

e 
la

st
 y

ea
r.

S
pr

in
g 

an
d 

 
S

um
m

er
 2

01
4

N
ot

 d
ue

N
ot

 y
et

 d
ue

.

Page 76



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  P

ly
m

ou
th

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

Au
di

t C
om

m
itt

ee
 U

pd
at

e 
 

77

Em
erg

ing
 iss

ues
 an

d d
eve

lop
me

nts
 

L
o

ca
lg

o
ve

rn
m

en
t

g
u

id
an

ce

C
o

u
n

ci
l t

ax
co

lle
ct

io
n

 –
d

at
a 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

o
n

ey
 p

ro
fi

le
s 

T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 h

as
 r

el
ea

se
d 

a 
br

ie
fin

g
on

 C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

 w
hi

ch
us

es
 th

e 
da

ta
 h

el
d 

in
 th

e 
V

F
M

 p
ro

fil
es

 to
ol

. T
he

 V
fM

 
pr

of
ile

s 
ca

n 
be

us
ed

 to
 c

on
si

de
r:

•
ho

w
 th

e 
co

st
 a

nd
 r

at
e 

of
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
co

m
pa

re
s 

to
 d

iff
er

en
t c

om
pa

ra
to

r g
ro

up
s

•
ho

w
 c

ha
ng

es
 o

ve
r 

tim
e 

co
m

pa
re

 to
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l t
re

nd
s 

de
sc

rib
ed

 in
 th

e 
br

ie
fin

g
•

ho
w

 c
ou

nc
il 

ta
x 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
m

ay
 b

e 
af

fe
ct

ed
 b

y 
lo

ca
l a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l t
ax

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
sc

he
m

e.

Is
su

es
 fo

r c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n:

•
H

as
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
re

vi
ew

ed
 it

s 
co

st
s 

an
d 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

ag
ai

ns
t s

im
ila

r 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
?

•
W

he
re

 is
su

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 id
en

tif
ie

d,
 h

as
 a

n 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 b
ee

n 
im

pl
em

en
te

d?

Page 77



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  P

ly
m

ou
th

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

Au
di

t C
om

m
itt

ee
 U

pd
at

e 
 

88

Em
erg

ing
 iss

ues
 an

d d
eve

lop
me

nts
L

o
ca

lg
o

ve
rn

m
en

t
g

u
id

an
ce

L
o

ca
l g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d

 r
et

u
rn

s 
20

11
/1

2 

In
 th

e 
S

um
m

er
 o

f 2
01

3,
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

pu
bl

is
he

d 
'L

oc
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
20

11
/1

2 
 –

T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
’s

 r
ep

or
t 

on
 c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

w
or

k'
. T

he
 r

ep
or

t i
nc

lu
de

s 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
co

m
m

en
ta

ry
 o

n 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r a
nd

 v
al

ue
 o

f c
er

tif
ie

d 
cl

ai
m

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s;
 a

ud
ito

rs
’ 

fin
di

ng
s;

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

w
or

k;
 a

nd
 fu

tu
re

 c
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
w

or
k.

T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 c

on
cl

ud
ed

 th
at

:

•
w

hi
le

 2
01

1/
12

 s
aw

 a
 fa

ll 
in

 th
e 

va
lu

e 
of

 a
m

en
dm

en
ts

 a
nd

 n
um

be
r o

f q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

n 
le

tte
rs

, t
hi

s 
w

as
 la

rg
el

y 
du

e 
to

 fe
w

er
 c

la
im

s
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
re

qu
iri

ng
 c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n.

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

lly
, t

he
 le

ve
l o

f c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

am
en

de
d 

or
 q

ua
lif

ie
d 

ro
se

, w
hi

le
 th

e 
m

os
t s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
sc

he
m

e,
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 c

ou
nc

il 
ta

x 
be

ne
fit

s,
 s

aw
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

va
lu

e 
of

 a
m

en
dm

en
ts

 a
nd

 n
um

be
r o

f q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

n 
le

tte
rs

 in
cr

ea
se

. 
•

au
th

or
iti

es
 a

nd
 g

ra
nt

-p
ay

in
g 

bo
di

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
co

nt
in

ue
 th

ei
r 

w
or

k 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

sc
he

m
es

’ t
er

m
s 

an
d 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
ar

e 
co

m
pl

ie
d 

w
ith

, p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 
w

he
n 

sc
he

m
es

 c
ha

ng
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 o
r 

ar
e 

in
 th

ei
r 

fin
al

 y
ea

r.

O
ur

 c
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
re

po
rt

 fo
r P

ly
m

ou
th

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 a

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
ag

en
da

 it
em

 fo
r t

he
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
13

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

.

Is
su

e 
fo

r c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n:

•
W

ha
tp

ro
ce

du
re

s 
do

es
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

ve
 in

 p
la

ce
 to

 e
ns

ur
e

th
at

 g
ra

nt
 s

ch
em

es
 te

rm
s 

an
d 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
ar

e 
co

m
pl

ie
d 

w
ith

 a
nd

 th
at

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

ar
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 a

cc
ur

at
el

y?

Page 78



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  P

ly
m

ou
th

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

Au
di

t C
om

m
itt

ee
 U

pd
at

e 
 

99

Em
erg

ing
 iss

ues
 an

d d
eve

lop
me

nts

G
ra

n
t T

h
o

rn
to

n

'F
u

tu
re

 C
o

u
n

ci
llo

rs
 –

w
h

er
e 

n
ex

t 
fo

r 
lo

ca
l p

o
lit

ic
s?

' 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

ha
s 

sp
on

so
re

d 
th

e 
la

te
st

 N
ew

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t N
et

w
or

k 
(N

LG
N

) 
re

se
ar

ch
 p

ap
er

: F
ut

ur
e 

C
ou

nc
ill

or
s 

–
w

he
re

 n
ex

t f
or

 
lo

ca
l p

ol
iti

cs
? 

W
hi

ls
t m

or
e 

or
 le

ss
 e

ve
ry

 a
sp

ec
t o

f w
ha

t a
 c

ou
nc

il 
do

es
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 u

p 
fo

r d
is

cu
ss

io
n,

 th
is

 is
 n

ot
 th

e 
ca

se
 fo

r t
he

 r
ol

e 
of

 lo
ca

l 
po

lit
ic

ia
ns

. T
he

 r
ep

or
t i

s 
a 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 th

is
 d

is
co

ur
se

 g
ap

.

T
he

 r
ep

or
t c

on
te

nt
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
a 

se
rie

s 
of

 w
or

ks
ho

ps
 h

el
d 

ea
rli

er
 th

is
 y

ea
r 

w
ith

 a
 n

um
be

r o
f c

ou
nc

ill
or

s 
fr

om
 d

iff
er

en
t l

oc
al

au
th

or
ity

 ty
pe

s,
 

di
ffe

re
nt

 re
gi

on
s 

an
d 

fr
om

 d
iff

er
en

t p
ol

iti
ca

l p
ar

tie
s.

 T
he

 w
or

ks
ho

ps
, w

hi
ch

 G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

at
te

nd
ed

,
in

cl
ud

ed
 a

 s
ce

na
rio

-p
la

nn
in

g 
ex

er
ci

se
 w

hi
ch

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
ho

w
 c

ou
nc

ill
or

s 
th

at
 fa

il 
to

 r
en

ew
 th

ei
r 

de
m

oc
ra

tic
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 r
is

k 
lo

si
ng

 th
e 

su
pp

or
t o

f t
he

ir 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
.

T
he

 
re

se
ar

ch
 a

ls
o 

su
gg

es
te

d 
th

at
 c

ou
nc

ils
 th

at
 d

id
 g

ra
sp

 th
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 o
ffe

re
d 

by
 te

ch
no

lo
gy

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

 r
ed

es
ig

n 
ca

n 
be

co
m

e 
fa

rm
or

e 
en

ga
ge

d 
w

ith
 th

ei
r 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

, b
ui

ld
in

g 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 a

nd
 c

o-
op

er
at

iv
e 

m
od

el
s 

of
 lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t f
oc

us
ed

 o
n 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

d 
ne

ed
s.

T
he

 r
ep

or
t i

nc
lu

de
s 

a 
ch

ap
te

r 
by

 G
uy

 C
lif

to
n 

fr
om

 G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

on
 th

e 
co

un
ci

llo
r’s

 r
ol

e 
in

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
la

nn
in

g.
 T

he
 w

or
ks

ho
ps

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 m

an
y 

el
ec

te
d 

m
em

be
rs

 a
re

 k
ee

n 
to

 ta
ke

 a
 fa

r g
re

at
er

 ro
le

 in
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

la
nn

in
g 

at
 th

ei
r 

au
th

or
iti

es
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 g

iv
en

 th
e

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

fu
nd

in
g 

ch
al

le
ng

es
 b

ei
ng

 fa
ce

d.
 D

ur
in

g 
th

e 
w

or
ks

ho
ps

 w
e 

ex
pl

or
ed

 th
e 

sk
ill

s 
an

d 
ca

pa
bi

lit
ie

s 
th

at
 m

em
be

rs
 n

ee
d 

to
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y
m

an
ag

e 
th

e 
bu

dg
et

 s
et

tin
g 

pr
oc

es
s.

 T
he

se
 in

cl
ud

ed
: e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
r e

ng
ag

em
en

t, 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

fin
an

ci
al

 p
la

nn
in

g
to

ol
s 

an
d,

 p
er

ha
ps

 m
os

t i
m

po
rt

an
tly

, k
no

w
in

g 
w

ha
t q

ue
st

io
ns

 to
 a

sk
.

Is
su

e 
fo

r c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n:
83

98
02

57
B

A
B

00
5A

5C
1A

•
A

re
 y

ou
r 

el
ec

te
d

m
em

be
rs

 ta
ki

ng
 a

 g
re

at
er

 ro
le

 in
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

ha
s 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 e
ns

ur
ed

 th
at

 m
em

be
rs

 a
re

 tr
ai

ne
d 

fo
r t

he
 

ta
sk

?

Page 79



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  P

ly
m

ou
th

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

Au
di

t C
om

m
itt

ee
 U

pd
at

e 
 

1010

Em
erg

ing
 iss

ues
 an

d d
eve

lop
me

nts
G

ra
n

t T
h

o
rn

to
n

S
p

en
d

in
g

 R
o

u
n

d
 2

01
3 

It 
w

as
 a

nn
ou

nc
ed

 in
 th

e 
Ju

ne
 2

01
3 

sp
en

di
ng

ro
un

d 
th

at
 th

e 
lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t r
es

ou
rc

e 
bu

dg
et

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
du

ce
d 

by
 1

0 
pe

rc
en

t i
n 

20
15

-1
6.

 

A
s 

P
au

l D
os

se
tt,

 H
ea

d 
of

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t a
t G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
,w

ro
te

 o
n 

in
fo

rm
at

io
nd

ai
ly

.c
om

, t
he

 C
ha

nc
el

lo
r 

's
ee

m
in

gl
y 

ac
kn

ow
le

dg
ed

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t’s

 c
ap

ac
ity

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
sc

al
e 

of
 s

av
in

gs
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

so
 fa

r.
 N

o 
ot

he
r s

pe
nd

in
g 

de
pa

rt
m

en
t r

ec
ei

ve
d 

su
ch

 
po

si
tiv

e 
af

fir
m

at
io

n.
 T

he
 C

ha
nc

el
lo

r's
 a

ct
io

ns
 im

pl
y 

th
at

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t l

ea
de

rs
 a

re
 m

or
e 

ca
pa

bl
e 

of
 m

ee
tin

g 
th

e 
na

tio
na

l c
ha

lle
ng

e 
th

an
 

ot
he

r p
ar

ts
 o

f t
he

 p
ub

lic
 s

ec
to

r.
 O

ve
r t

he
 p

as
t t

hr
ee

 y
ea

rs
, l

oc
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 s

en
io

r 
of

fic
er

s 
ha

ve
 ti

gh
te

ne
d 

th
ei

r 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

na
l b

el
ts

 a
nd

 m
os

t h
av

e 
sh

ow
n 

th
ey

 a
re

 a
bl

e 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t c

ha
ng

e.
 T

he
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t i
s 

pl
ac

in
g 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
re

lia
nc

e 
on

 
th

ei
r 

re
so

ur
ce

fu
ln

es
s 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 h

el
p 

m
ee

t t
he

 fi
sc

al
 s

ho
rt

fa
lls

 fa
ci

ng
 th

e 
br

oa
de

r p
ub

lic
 s

ec
to

r,
 a

nd
 m

an
y 

in
 th

e 
se

ct
or

 re
co

gn
is

e 
th

is
.'

'In
 h

is
 s

pe
ec

h,
 th

e 
C

ha
nc

el
lo

r 
re

co
gn

is
ed

 th
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

th
at

 m
or

e 
co

lla
bo

ra
tiv

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 c

an
 b

rin
g,

 a
lth

ou
gh

 n
ot

 o
n 

th
e 

lin
es

 s
ub

se
qu

en
tly

 
su

gg
es

te
d 

by
 th

e 
LG

A
. T

he
 C

ha
nc

el
lo

r 
ca

lle
d 

fo
r m

or
e 

jo
in

ed
-u

p 
w

or
ki

ng
 b

et
w

ee
n 

po
lic

e 
fo

rc
es

, a
nd

 b
et

w
ee

n 
po

lic
e 

fo
rc

es
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
iti

es
 -

w
ith

 a
 £

50
m

 in
no

va
tio

n 
fu

nd
 to

 b
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

is
 w

or
k.

 H
e 

al
so

 c
al

le
d 

fo
r 

gr
ea

te
r c

ol
la

bo
ra

tio
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

he
al

th
 

an
d 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

, w
ith

 £
20

0m
 to

 b
e 

tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

to
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
fr

om
 th

e 
N

H
S

 in
 2

01
4-

15
, a

nd
 a

 £
3.

8b
n 

po
ol

ed
 b

ud
ge

t i
n 

20
15

-
16

. I
n 

ad
di

tio
n,

 £
35

m
 is

 to
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

in
 2

01
5-

16
 to

 h
el

p 
pr

ep
ar

e 
fo

r r
ef

or
m

s 
to

 th
e 

sy
st

em
 o

f s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

fu
nd

in
g,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
ca

p 
on

 c
ar

e 
co

st
s 

fr
om

 A
pr

il 
20

16
. T

he
re

 is
 a

ls
o 

th
e 

£2
00

m
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 fu
nd

in
g 

to
 th

e 
T

ro
ub

le
d 

F
am

ili
es

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

be
in

g 
m

an
ag

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
de

pa
rt

m
en

t f
or

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t.'

Is
su

es
 fo

r c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n:

•
H

as
 y

ou
r 

au
th

or
ity

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
its

 m
ed

iu
m

 te
rm

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
la

n 
in

 li
gh

t o
ft

he
 S

pe
nd

in
g 

R
ou

nd
 a

nn
ou

nc
em

en
t a

nd
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
th

e 
ac

tio
n 

to
 

be
 ta

ke
n?

 
•

H
ow

 is
 y

ou
r 

au
th

or
ity

 p
la

nn
in

g 
to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 in

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 s

ec
to

r?

Page 80



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  P

ly
m

ou
th

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

Au
di

t C
om

m
itt

ee
 U

pd
at

e 
 

1111

Em
erg

ing
 iss

ues
 an

d d
eve

lop
me

nts
 

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 a

u
d

it
is

su
es

20
14

/1
5 

C
o

d
e 

o
f 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
o

n
 L

o
ca

l A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 

A
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

fJ
ul

y,
 C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
re

le
as

ed
 th

e 
20

14
-1

5 
C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

on
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

 (
th

e 
C

od
e)

 E
xp

os
ur

e 
D

ra
ft 

(E
D

) 
an

d 
In

vi
ta

tio
n 

to
 C

om
m

en
t (

IT
C

) f
or

 p
ub

lic
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n.
 T

he
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t c
ha

ng
es

 p
ro

po
se

d 
in

 th
e 

IT
C

 in
cl

ud
e:

 

•
IF

R
S

 1
3 

fa
ir 

va
lu

e 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t: 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
w

ou
ld

 r
es

ul
t i

n 
au

th
or

iti
es

 r
ev

ie
w

in
g

cu
rr

en
t m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 o
f p

ro
pe

rt
y,

 p
la

nt
 

an
d 

eq
ui

pm
en

t a
nd

 fo
r s

om
e 

au
th

or
iti

es
, m

ay
 r

eq
ui

re
 r

em
ea

su
re

m
en

t o
f p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 a
ss

et
s.

C
IP

F
A

/L
A

S
A

A
C

 is
 p

ro
po

si
ng

 a
 r

el
ax

at
io

n 
of

 
th

e 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 o
f I

F
R

S
 1

3 
an

d 
IA

S
 1

6 
P

ro
pe

rt
y,

 P
la

nt
 a

nd
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t f
or

 a
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

 p
er

io
d

•
in

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ne
w

 g
ro

up
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
st

an
da

rd
s

•
ot

he
r a

m
en

dm
en

ts
 to

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 B

oa
rd

 (
IA

S
B

):
 a

m
en

dm
en

ts
 to

 IA
S

 3
2 

F
in

an
ci

al
 

In
st

ru
m

en
ts

: P
re

se
nt

at
io

n
to

 c
la

rif
y 

th
e 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ne

w
 d

is
cl

os
ur

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 in

tr
od

uc
ed

 in
 th

e 
20

13
-1

4 
C

od
e 

an
d 

 c
la

rif
ic

at
io

n 
on

 c
om

pa
ra

tiv
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

fr
om

 a
m

en
dm

en
ts

 to
 IA

S
 1

 P
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
of

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

ts
•

lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t r

eo
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 c
om

bi
na

tio
ns

: c
la

rif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

C
od

e’
s 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 a
lig

nm
en

t w
ith

 o
th

er
 p

ub
lic

 
se

ct
or

 b
od

ie
s

•
op

tio
ns

 fo
r t

he
 “

dr
y 

ru
n”

 fo
r t

he
 m

ov
e 

to
 d

ep
re

ci
at

ed
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t c

os
t f

or
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

tr
an

sp
or

t i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

as
se

ts
 a

s
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
C

IP
F

A
 C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

on
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 A

ss
et

s 
to

 th
e 

(L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g)

 C
od

e.
 

C
IP

F
A

/L
A

S
A

A
C

 h
av

e 
al

so
 la

un
ch

ed
 a

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

on
 s

im
pl

ify
in

g 
an

d 
st

re
am

lin
in

g 
th

e 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. 

B
ot

h 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

ns
 c

lo
se

d 
in

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

3.

Is
su

e 
fo

r c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n:

•
H

as
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
re

vi
ew

ed
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 a

m
en

dm
en

ts
 a

nd
 a

ss
es

se
d 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l i
m

pa
ct

?

Page 81



Page 82



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
An

nu
al

 A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r  

|  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3

.
Th

e A
nn
ual

 Au
dit
 Le

tte
r

for
 Pl

ym
ou
th 

Cit
y C

ou
nci

l 

Y
ea

r 
en

d
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3

B
ar

ri
e 

M
o

rr
is

D
ire

ct
or

T
01

17
 3

0 
57

70
8

E
 

ba
rr

ie
.m

or
ris

@
uk

.g
t.c

om

G
er

i D
al

y
S

en
io

r A
ud

it 
M

an
ag

er
T

01
17

 3
0 

57
74

1
E

ge
ri.

n.
da

ly
@

uk
.g

t.c
om

D
av

id
 B

ra
y

S
en

io
r A

ud
it 

M
an

ag
er

T
01

17
 3

0 
57

88
9 

E
da

vi
d.

br
ay

@
uk

.g
t.c

om

O
ct

ob
er

20
13

Agenda Item 10Page 83



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
An

nu
al

 A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r  

|  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3

2

Co
nte

nts
Se

ct
io
n

Pa
ge

1.
Ex

ecu
tiv
e s

um
ma

ry
3

2.
Au

dit
 of

 th
e a

cco
un
ts

6
3.

Va
lue

 fo
r M

on
ey 

8
4.

Ce
rtif

ica
tio

n o
f g
ran

t cl
aim

s a
nd
 re
tur

ns
11

Ap
pe
nd

ice
s

A 
Re

po
rts
 iss

ued
 an

d f
ees

Page 84



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
An

nu
al

 A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r  

|  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3

Se
ct
io
n 
1:

Ex
ecu

tiv
e s

um
ma

ry

01
.

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 s

u
m

m
ar

y

02
.

A
u

d
it

 o
f 

th
e 

ac
co

u
n

ts

03
.

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

M
o

n
ey

04
.

C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

g
ra

n
t 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d

 r
et

u
rn

s

Page 85



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
An

nu
al

 A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r  

|  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3

4

Ex
ecu

tiv
e s

um
ma

ry

Pu
rp
os
e 
of
 th

is 
Le
tte

r
Ou

r A
nn
ual

 Au
dit
 Le

tte
r ('

Le
tte
r') 

sum
ma

rise
s th

e k
ey 

fin
din

gs 
aris

ing
 fro

m 
the

 
fol

low
ing

 wo
rk 

tha
t w

e h
ave

 ca
rrie

d o
ut 

at P
lym

ou
th 

Cit
y C

ou
nci

l ('t
he 

Co
un
cil'

) 
for

 th
e y

ear
 en

ded
 31

 M
arc

h 2
013

:
•

aud
itin

g th
e 2

012
/13

 ac
cou

nts
 an

d W
ho
le o

f G
ove

rnm
ent

 Ac
cou

nts
 

sub
mi
ssio

n (
Sec

tio
n t

wo
)

•
ass

ess
ing

 th
e C

ou
nci

l's 
arr

ang
em

ent
s fo

r se
cur

ing
 ec

on
om

y, e
ffic

ien
cy 

and
 

eff
ect

ive
nes

s in
 its

 us
e o

f re
sou

rce
s (S

ect
ion

 th
ree

)
•

cer
tifi

cat
ion

 of
 gr
ant

 cla
im
s a
nd
 re
tur

ns 
(Se

ctio
n f

ou
r).

Th
e L

ett
er 
is i

nte
nd
ed 

to 
com

mu
nic

ate
 ke

y m
ess

age
s to

 th
e C

ou
nci

l an
d e

xte
rna

l 
sta

keh
old

ers
, in

clu
din

g m
em

ber
s o

f th
e p

ub
lic.

 W
e r
epo

rte
d t

he 
det

aile
d f

ind
ing

s 
fro

m 
ou
r au

dit
 wo

rk 
to 

tho
se 
cha

rge
d w

ith
 go

ver
nan

ce 
in t

he 
Au

dit
 Fi

nd
ing

s 
Re

po
rt o

n 1
9 S

ept
em

ber
 20

13.
Re

sp
on
sib

ili
tie

s o
f t
he
 e
xt
er
na
l a
ud
ito

rs
 a
nd
 th

e 
Co

un
ci
l

Th
is L

ett
er 
has

 be
en 

pre
par

ed 
in t

he 
con

tex
t o

f th
e S

tat
em

ent
 of

 Re
spo

nsi
bili

ties
 

of 
Au

dit
ors

 an
d A

ud
ited

 Bo
die

s is
sue

d b
y th

e A
ud
it C

om
mi
ssio

n (
ww

w.a
ud
it-

com
mi
ssio

n.g
ov.

uk)
.

Th
e C

ou
nci

l is
 re
spo

nsi
ble

 fo
r p

rep
arin

g a
nd
 pu

blis
hin

g it
s a
cco

un
ts, 

acc
om

pan
ied

 
by 

an 
An

nu
al G

ove
rna

nce
 St
ate

me
nt.
 It 

is a
lso

 re
spo

nsi
ble

 fo
r p

utt
ing

 in 
pla

ce 
pro

per
 arr

ang
em

ent
s to

 se
cur

e e
con

om
y, e

ffic
ien

cy 
and

 ef
fec

tiv
ene

ss i
n it

s u
se 
of 

res
ou
rce

s (V
alu

e f
or 

Mo
ney

).

Ou
r an

nu
al w

ork
 pr

ogr
am

me
, w

hic
h i
ncl

ud
es 
nat

ion
ally

 pr
esc

rib
ed 

and
 lo
cal

ly 
det

erm
ine

d w
ork

, ha
s b

een
 un

der
tak

en 
in 
acc

ord
anc

e w
ith

 th
e A

ud
it P

lan
 th

at 
we

 di
scu

sse
d w

ith
 th

e A
ud
it C

om
mi
tte
e o

n 1
3 J

un
e 2

013
 an

d w
as 
con

du
cte

d i
n 

acc
ord

anc
e w

ith
 th

e A
ud
it C

om
mi
ssio

n's
 Co

de 
of 

Au
dit
 Pr

act
ice

 ('t
he 

Co
de'

), 
Int

ern
atio

nal
 St
and

ard
s o

n A
ud
itin

g (U
K a

nd
 Ire

lan
d) 

and
 ot

her
 gu

ida
nce

 iss
ued

 
by 

the
 Au

dit
 Co

mm
issi

on
.

Au
di
t c

on
cl
us
io
ns

Th
e a

ud
it c

on
clu

sio
ns 

wh
ich

 we
 ha

ve 
pro

vid
ed 

in r
ela

tio
n t

o 2
012

/13
 are

 as
 

fol
low

s:
•

an 
un
qua

lifi
ed 

op
inio

n o
n t

he 
acc

ou
nts

 wh
ich

 giv
e a

 tru
e a

nd
 fai

r v
iew

 of
 th

e 
Co

un
cil'

s fi
nan

cia
l p
osi

tio
n a

s a
t 3
1 M

arc
h 2

013
 an

d it
s in

com
e a

nd
 

exp
end

itu
re 
for

 th
e y

ear
•

an 
un
qua

lifi
ed 

con
clu

sio
n in

 re
spe

ct o
f th

e C
ou
nci

l's 
arr

ang
em

ent
s fo

r 
sec

uri
ng 

eco
no
my

, ef
fici

enc
y a

nd
 ef
fec

tiv
ene

ss i
n i
ts u

se 
of 

res
ou
rce

s 
•

an 
un
qua

lifi
ed 

op
inio

n o
n t

he 
Co

un
cil'

s W
ho
le o

f G
ove

rnm
ent

 Ac
cou

nts
 

sub
mi
ssio

n
•

we
 ce

rtif
ied

 th
e n

on
 do

me
stic

 ra
tes

 re
tur

n w
ith

ou
t am

end
me

nt 
and

 we
 ar
e 

wo
rki

ng 
on
 th

e o
the

r tw
o c

laim
s a
nd
 re
tur

ns 
tha

t ar
e s

ub
jec

t to
 ex

ter
nal

 
ass

ura
nce

.

Page 86



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
An

nu
al

 A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r  

|  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3

5

Ke
y a

re
as
 fo

r t
he
 C
ou
nc
il'
s a

tte
nt
io
n

We
 su

mm
aris

e h
ere

 th
e k

ey 
me

ssa
ges

 ari
sin

g f
rom

 ou
r au

dit
 fo

r th
e C

ou
nci

l to
 

con
sid

er 
as 
we

ll a
s h

igh
ligh

tin
g k

ey 
issu

es 
fac

ing
 th

e C
ou
nci

l in
 th

e f
utu

re.
Th

e C
ou
nci

l o
ver

spe
nt 

its 
bu
dge

t b
y a

pp
rox

im
ate

ly £
500

,00
0 in

 20
12/

13.
 

Ho
we

ver
, so

me
 lar

ge 
ove

rsp
end

s –
par

ticu
larl

y w
ith

in 
Ad

ult
 So

cia
l C

are
 –
we

re 
com

pen
sat

ed 
 fo

r b
y s

avi
ngs

 els
ew

her
e. T

he 
Co

un
cil 

is c
urr

ent
ly u

pd
atin

g it
s 

me
diu

m 
ter

m 
fin

anc
ial 

str
ate

gy 
(M

TF
S) 
and

 aim
s to

 fin
alis

e th
is f

ive
 ye

ar 
fin

anc
ial 

pla
n a

lon
gsi

de 
its 

bu
dge

t fo
r 2

014
/15

. A
 ro

bu
st M

TF
S w

ill b
e c

ent
ral 

to 
ena

blin
g 

the
 Co

un
cil 

to 
op
era

te e
ffe

ctiv
ely

 wi
th 

red
uci

ng 
res

ou
rce

s.
Ou

r au
dit
 of

 th
e C

ou
nci

l's 
fin

anc
ial 

sta
tem

ent
s id

ent
ifie

d t
wo

 er
ror

s w
hic

h w
ere

 
no
t co

rre
cte

d. T
hes

e r
ela

ted
 to

 th
e C

ou
nci

l's 
inv

est
me

nts
 in 

Ice
lan

dic
 Ba

nks
 an

d 
the

 pr
ovi

sio
n n

ece
ssa

ry 
to 

cov
er 
the

 fu
tur

e c
ost

s a
sso

cia
ted

 wi
th 

ma
nag

ing
 th

e 
Co

un
cil'

s c
los

ed 
lan

dfi
ll s

ite.
 Th

ese
 are

 co
ver

ed 
in S

ect
ion

 Tw
o o

f th
is L

ett
er.

Lo
oki

ng 
ahe

ad 
to 

201
3/1

4, t
he 

Co
un
cil 

and
 its

 pa
rtn

ers
 (D

evo
n C

ou
nty

 Co
un
cil 

and
 To

rba
y C

ou
nci

l) n
eed

 to
 es

tab
lish

:
�

the
 sta

tus
 of

 th
e w

ast
e p

art
ner

shi
p t

hey
 ha

ve 
for

me
d (

i.e.
 wh

eth
er 
it i
s a
 Jo

int
 

Co
mm

itte
e o

r o
the

r ar
ran

gem
ent

); 
�

the
 go

ver
nan

ce 
arr

ang
em

ent
s fo

r th
e p

art
ner

shi
p; a

nd
�

the
 ac

cou
nti

ng 
tre

atm
ent

 of
 th

e a
sse

t th
at i

s c
urr

ent
ly b

ein
g c

on
str
uct

ed.

Ac
kn
ow

le
dg
em

en
ts

Th
is L

ett
er 
has

 be
en 

agr
eed

 wi
th 

the
 Ch

ief 
Ex

ecu
tiv
e a

nd
 th

e A
ssis

tan
t 

Di
rec

tor
, F
ina

nce
, E

ffic
ien

cy,
 Te

chn
olo

gy 
and

 As
set

s. 
We

 wi
ll p

res
ent

 it 
to 

the
 Co

un
cil'

s A
ud
it C

om
mi
tte
e o

n 1
2 D

ece
mb

er 
201

3.
We

 wo
uld

 lik
e r
eco

rd 
ou
r ap

pre
cia

tio
n f

or 
the

 as
sist

anc
e a

nd
 co

-op
era

tio
n

pro
vid

ed 
to 

us 
du
rin

g o
ur 

aud
it b

y th
e C

ou
nci

l's 
sta

ff. Gr
an

t T
ho

rnt
on

 U
K L

LP
Oc

tob
er

201
3

Ex
ecu

tiv
e S

um
ma

ry 
con

tin
ued

Page 87



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
An

nu
al

 A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r  

|  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3

Se
ct
io
n 
2:

Au
dit
 of

 th
e a

cco
un
ts

01
.

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 s

u
m

m
ar

y

02
.

A
u

d
it

 o
f 

th
e 

ac
co

u
n

ts

03
.

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

M
o

n
ey

04
.

C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

g
ra

n
t 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d

 r
et

u
rn

s

Page 88



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
An

nu
al

 A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r  

|  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3

7

Au
dit
 of

 th
e a

cco
un
ts

Au
di
t o

f t
he
 a
cc
ou
nt
s

Th
e k

ey 
fin

din
gs 

of 
ou
r au

dit
 of

 th
e a

cco
un
ts a

re 
sum

ma
rise

d b
elo

w:

Pr
ep
ar
at
io
n 
of
 th

e 
ac
co
un
ts

Th
e C

ou
nci

l p
res

ent
ed 

us 
wit

h d
raf

t ac
cou

nts
 on

 1 J
uly

 20
13,

 in 
acc

ord
anc

e 
wit

h t
he 

nat
ion

al d
ead

line
. A

pp
rop

riat
e w

ork
ing

 pa
per

s w
ere

 m
ade

 av
aila

ble
 

fro
m 
the

 sta
rt o

f th
e a

ud
it f

ield
wo

rk,
 wh

ich
 co

mm
enc

ed 
on
 1 J

uly
 20

13.
  

Th
e f
ina

nci
al s

tat
em

ent
s w

ere
 pr

od
uce

d t
o a

 hi
gh 

sta
nd
ard

 an
d t

her
e w

as 
evi

den
ce 

of 
goo

d in
ter

nal
 Q
ual

ity 
As

sur
anc

e p
roc

edu
res

.

Is
su
es
 a
ris

in
g 
fro

m
 th

e 
au
di
t o

f t
he
 a
cc
ou
nt
s

Ou
r au

dit
 on

ly i
den

tifi
ed 

a s
ma

ll n
um

ber
 of

 am
end

me
nts

 m
ade

, no
ne 

of 
wh

ich
 

we
re 
ma

ter
ial.

 Th
ere

 we
re 
two

 un
adj

ust
ed 

mi
sst

ate
me

nts
:

•
As

 re
po
rte

d in
 pr

evi
ou
s y
ear

s, t
he 

Co
un
cil 

had
 no

t fo
llow

ed 
the

 ac
cou

nti
ng 

tre
atm

ent
 fo

r it
s Ic

ela
nd
ic B

ank
 inv

est
me

nts
 in 

acc
ord

anc
e w

ith
 th

e C
IPF

A 
gui

dan
ce.

 H
ad 

the
 Co

un
cil 

fol
low

ed 
thi

s g
uid

anc
e, i

t w
ou
ld h

ave
 re
ver

sed
 th

e 
£3

.2m
 los

s in
 in
ves

tm
ent

 in
com

e p
rev

iou
sly
 rec

ogn
ise
d in

 th
e f
ina

nci
al 

sta
tem

ent
s.

•
Th

e C
ou
nci

l h
ad 

no
t in

clu
ded

 a p
rov

isio
n w

ith
in 
its 

fin
anc

ial 
sta

tem
ent

s fo
r 

the
 fu

tur
e a

fte
r-c

are
 co

sts
 of

 m
ana

gin
g it

s c
los

ed 
lan

dfi
ll s

ite.
 Th

ese
 ar
e 

est
im
ate

d t
o b

e in
 th

e r
egi

on
 of

 £6
.6m

.
Th

ese
 un

adj
ust

ed 
mi
sst

ate
me

nts
 do

 no
t im

pac
t o

n t
he 

Co
un
cil'

s fi
nan

cia
l 

ou
ttu

rn 
for

 th
e y

ear
.

An
nu
al
 g
ov
er
na
nc
e 
st
at
em

en
t 

Th
e C

ou
nci

l's 
An

nu
al G

ove
rna

nce
 St
ate

me
nt 

com
plie

d w
ith

 th
e g

uid
anc

e 
issu

ed 
by 

CI
PF

A a
nd
 SO

LA
CE

 (th
e S

oci
ety

 of
 Lo

cal
 Au

tho
rity

 Ch
ief 

Ex
ecu

tiv
es)

 an
d w

as 
in l

ine
 wi

th 
ou
r u

nd
ers

tan
din

g o
f th

e C
ou
nci

l.
Ho

we
ver

, th
e A

nn
ual

 G
ove

rna
nce

 St
ate

me
nt 

con
tain

ed 
a n

um
ber

 of
  it
em

s 
ref

err
ed 

to 
as 
'sig

nif
ica

nt 
gov

ern
anc

e is
sue

s' –
inc

lud
ing

 H
eal

th 
and

 So
cia

l 
Ca

re 
Re

for
ms

, W
elfa

re 
Re

for
ms

 an
d H

eal
th 

Ine
qua

litie
s.

Wh
ilst

 th
ese

 ar
e u

nd
ou
bte

dly
 ch

alle
nge

s fo
r th

e C
ou
nci

l, a
nd
 m
ay 

be 
app

rop
riat

e fo
r in

clu
sio

n w
ith

in 
its 

risk
 reg

iste
rs, 

we
 do

 no
t co

nsi
der

 th
at 

the
y r
efle

ct g
ove

rna
nce

 fai
lur

es 
wit

hin
 th

e C
ou
nci

l it
sel
f.

Co
nc
lu
sio

n
Pri

or 
to 

giv
ing

 ou
r o

pin
ion

 on
 th

e a
cco

un
ts, 

we
 ar
e r
equ

ired
 to

 re
po
rt 

sig
nif

ica
nt 

ma
tte
rs a

risi
ng 

fro
m 
the

 au
dit
 to

 'th
ose

 ch
arg

ed 
wit

h g
ove

rna
nce

' 
(de

fin
ed 

as 
the

 Au
dit
 Co

mm
itte

e a
t th

e C
ou
nci

l). W
e p

res
ent

ed 
ou
r re

po
rt t

o 
the

 Au
dit
 Co

mm
itte

e o
n 1

9 S
ept

em
ber

 20
13 

and
 su

mm
aris

e o
nly

 th
e k

ey 
me

ssa
ges

 in 
thi

s L
ett
er.

We
 iss

ued
 an

 un
qua

lifi
ed 

op
inio

n o
n t

he 
Co

un
cil'

s 2
012

/13
 ac

cou
nts

 on
 19

 
Sep

tem
ber

 20
13 

, ah
ead

 of
 th

e 3
0 S

ept
em

ber
 de

adl
ine

 se
t b

y th
e D

epa
rtm

ent
 

for
 Co

mm
un
itie

s a
nd
 Lo

cal
 G
ove

rnm
ent

.  O
ur 

op
inio

n c
on
firm

s th
at t

he 
acc

ou
nts

 giv
e a

 tru
e a

nd
 fai

r v
iew

 of
 th

e C
ou
nci

l's 
fin

anc
ial 

po
siti

on
 an

d o
f 

the
 in
com

e a
nd
 ex

pen
dit
ure

 re
cor

ded
 by

 th
e C

ou
nci

l. 

Page 89



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
An

nu
al

 A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r  

|  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3

Se
ct
io
n 
3:

Va
lue

 fo
r M

on
ey

01
.

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 s

u
m

m
ar

y

02
.

A
u

d
it

 o
f 

th
e 

ac
co

u
n

ts

03
.

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

M
o

n
ey

04
.

C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

g
ra

n
t 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d

 r
et

u
rn

s

Page 90



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
An

nu
al

 A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r  

|  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3

9

Va
lue

 fo
r M

on
ey 

Sc
op
e 
of
 w
or
k

Th
e C

od
e d

esc
rib

es 
the

 Co
un
cil'

s re
spo

nsi
bili

ties
 to
 pu

t in
 pl
ace

 pr
op
er 

arr
ang

em
ent

s to
:

•
sec

ure
 ec

on
om

y, e
ffic

ien
cy 

and
 ef
fec

tiv
ene

ss i
n i
ts u

se 
of 

res
ou
rce

s
•

ens
ure

 pr
op
er 
ste

wa
rds

hip
 an

d g
ove

rna
nce

•
rev

iew
 re
gul

arly
 th

e a
deq

uac
y a

nd
 ef
fec

tiv
ene

ss o
f th

ese
 ar
ran

gem
ent

s.
We

 ar
e r
equ

ired
 to

 giv
e a

 VF
M 

con
clu

sio
n b

ase
d o

n t
he 

fol
low

ing
 tw

o c
rite

ria 
spe

cifi
ed 

by 
the

 Au
dit
 Co

mm
issi

on
 wh

ich
 su

pp
ort

 ou
r re

po
rtin

g r
esp

on
sib

iliti
es 

un
der

 th
e C

od
e:

Th
e C

ou
nc
il h

as 
pro

pe
r a

rra
ng

em
en
ts i

n p
lac

e f
or 

sec
uri

ng
 fin

an
cia

l 
res

ilie
nc
e. 
Th

e C
ou
nci

l h
as 
rob

ust
 sy
ste

ms
 an

d p
roc

ess
es 
to 

ma
nag

e e
ffe

ctiv
ely

 
fin

anc
ial 

risk
s a
nd
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies
, an

d t
o s

ecu
re 
a s
tab

le f
ina

nci
al p

osi
tio

n t
hat

 
ena

ble
s it

 to
 co

nti
nu
e to

 op
era

te f
or 

the
 fo

res
eea

ble
 fu

tur
e.

Th
e C

ou
nc
il h

as 
pro

pe
r a

rra
ng

em
en
ts f

or 
ch
all
en
gin

g h
ow

 it 
sec

ure
s 

eco
no

my
, ef

fic
ien

cy 
an

d e
ffe

cti
ven

ess
. T

he 
Co

un
cil 

is p
rio

riti
sin

g it
s re

sou
rce

s 
wit

hin
 tig

hte
r b

ud
get

s, f
or 

exa
mp

le b
y a

chi
evi

ng 
cos

t re
du
ctio

ns 
and

 by
 im

pro
vin

g 
eff

icie
ncy

 an
d p

rod
uct

ivit
y.

Ke
y f
in
di
ng
s

Se
cu
rin

g f
ina

nc
ial
 re

sil
ien

ce
We

 ha
ve 

un
der

tak
en 

a r
evi

ew
 wh

ich
 co

nsi
der

ed 
the

 Co
un
cil'

s a
rra

nge
me

nts
 

aga
ins

t th
e th

ree
 ex

pec
ted

 ch
ara

cte
rist

ics
 of

 pr
op
er a

rra
nge

me
nts

 as
 de

fin
ed 

by 
the

 Au
dit
 Co

mm
issi

on
:

•
fin

anc
ial 

gov
ern

anc
e

•
fin

anc
ial 

pla
nn
ing

 
•

fin
anc

ial 
con

tro
l.

Ov
era

ll, o
ur 

wo
rk 

hig
hlig

hte
d t

hat
 th

e C
ou
nci

l h
as 
ade

qua
te a

rra
nge

me
nts

 in 
pla

ce 
to 

sec
ure

 fin
anc

ial 
res

ilie
nce

. T
he 

Co
un
cil 

is i
n t

he 
pro

gre
ss o

f u
pd
atin

g it
s 

me
diu

m 
ter

m 
fin

anc
ial 

str
ate

gy 
and

, on
ce 

com
ple

te, 
wil

l m
ean

 th
at i

t is
 pla

nn
ing

 
ove

r a 
fiv
e y

ear
 ho

riz
on
.

Th
e C

ou
nci

l re
po
rte

d a
 de

fici
t o

f ap
pro

xim
ate

ly £
0.5

m 
in 
201

2/1
3, a

lth
ou
gh 

the
re 
we

re 
a n

um
ber

 of
 sig

nif
ica

nt 
ove

rsp
end

s, p
art

icu
larl

y A
du
lt S

oci
al C

are
, as

 
we

ll a
s c
om

pen
sat

ing
 un

der
spe

nd
s w

ith
in 
thi

s o
utt

urn
. W

e id
ent

ifie
d t

hat
 th

e 
Co

un
cil 

sho
uld

 en
sur

e th
at i

t ro
bu
stly

 ch
alle

nge
s fu

tur
e s
avi

ngs
 pla

ns 
to 

ens
ure

 
tha

t p
rog

res
s c
los

ely
 m

on
ito

red
.

We
 ha

ve 
pro

du
ced

 a s
epa

rat
e f
ina

nci
al r

esi
lien

ce 
rep

ort
 wh

ich
 se

ts o
ut 

ou
r 

fin
din

gs 
and

 re
com

me
nd
atio

ns 
in 
mo

re 
det

ail.
 Th

is w
as 

pre
sen

ted
 to

 th
e 

Co
un
cil'

s A
ud
it C

om
mi
tte
e in

 Se
pte

mb
er 
201

3.

Page 91



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
An

nu
al

 A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r  

|  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3

10

Va
lue

 fo
r M

on
ey 

Ch
all
en
gin

g e
co
no

my
, ef

fic
ien

cy 
an

d e
ffe

cti
ven

ess
We

 co
ncl

ud
ed 

tha
t th

e C
ou
nci

l h
as 
pri

ori
tise

d it
s re

sou
rce

s to
 tak

e a
cco

un
t o

f th
e 

tigh
ter

 co
nst

rain
ts i

t is
 re
qui

red
 to

 op
era

te w
ith

in. 
In 

rea
chi

ng 
thi

s c
on
clu

sio
n, w

e 
rev

iew
ed 

the
 Co

un
cil'

s c
orp

ora
te p

lan
 an

d it
s p

rop
osa

ls f
or 

acc
om

mo
dat

ion
, IC

T 
and

 bu
sin

ess
 rat

es.
Ov

er
al
l V

FM
 c
on
cl
us
io
n

On
 th

e b
asi
s o

f o
ur 

wo
rk,
 an

d h
avi

ng 
reg

ard
 to

 th
e g

uid
anc

e o
n t

he 
spe

cifi
ed 

crit
eria

 pu
blis

hed
 by

 th
e A

ud
it C

om
mi
ssio

n, w
e a

re 
sat

isfi
ed 

tha
t in

 all
 sig

nif
ica

nt 
res

pec
ts t

he 
Co

un
cil 

pu
t in

 pl
ace

 pr
op
er 
arr

ang
em

ent
s to

 se
cur

e e
con

om
y, 

eff
icie

ncy
 an

d e
ffe

ctiv
ene

ss i
n it

s u
se 
of 

res
ou
rce

s fo
r th

e y
ear

 en
din

g 3
1 M

arc
h 

201
3.

Page 92



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
An

nu
al

 A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r  

|  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3

Se
ct
io
n 
4:

Ce
rtif

ica
tio

n o
f g

ran
t c
laim

s a
nd
 re
tur

ns 

01
.

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 s

u
m

m
ar

y

02
.

A
u

d
it

 o
f 

th
e 

ac
co

u
n

ts

03
.

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

M
o

n
ey

04
.

C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

g
ra

n
t 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d

 r
et

u
rn

s

Page 93



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
An

nu
al

 A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r  

|  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3

12

We
 ar
e r
equ

ired
 to

 ce
rtif

y c
ert

ain
 of

 th
e c

laim
s a
nd
 re
tur

ns 
sub

mi
tte
d b

y th
e 

Co
un
cil.

 Th
is c

ert
ific

atio
n t

ypi
cal

ly t
ake

s p
lac

e s
om

e s
ix t

o n
ine

 m
on
ths

 aft
er 
the

 
cla

im
 pe

rio
d a

nd
 re
pre

sen
ts a

 fin
al b

ut 
im
po
rta

nt 
par

t o
f th

e p
roc

ess
 to

 co
nfi

rm
 

the
 Co

un
cil'

s e
nti

tlem
ent

 to
 fu

nd
ing

.
Ou

r w
ork

 on
 ce

rtif
ica

tio
n o

f g
ran

t cl
aim

s is
 on

-go
ing

. O
ur 

wo
rk 

to 
dat

e h
as 
no
t 

ide
nti

fied
 an

y is
sue

s w
hic

h w
e w

ish
 to

 hi
ghl

igh
t. 

Th
e d

eta
iled

 fin
din

gs 
of 

ou
r w

ork
 wi

ll b
e r
epo

rte
d in

 ou
r G

ran
t C

ert
ific

atio
n 

rep
ort

 up
on
 co

mp
leti

on
 of

 ou
r w

ork
. 

Ce
rtif

ica
tio

n o
f g

ran
t c
laim

s a
nd
 re
tur

ns

Page 94



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
An

nu
al

 A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r  

|  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3

13

Ap
pen

dic
es

A
pp

en
di

ce
s

Page 95



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
An

nu
al

 A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r  

|  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3

14

Fe
es

P
er

 A
u

d
it

 p
la

n £
A

ct
u

al
 f

ee
s £

A
ud

it 
F

ee
18

1,
42

8
18

1,
42

8

G
ra

nt
 c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

fe
e

23
,9

00
23

,9
00

T
o

ta
l f

ee
s

20
5,

32
8

20
5,

32
8

Ap
pen

dix
 A:

  R
epo

rts
 iss

ued
 an

d f
ees

We
 co

nfi
rm

 be
low

 th
e f
ee 

cha
rge

d f
or 

the
 au

dit
 an

d t
he 

pro
vis

ion
 of

 no
n-a

ud
it s

erv
ice

s.

Fe
es
 fo

r o
th
er
 se

rv
ic
es

S
er

vi
ce

F
ee

s 
£

P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 A

irp
or

t D
ue

 D
ili

ge
nc

e 
R

ev
ie

w
£1

6,
90

0

Ou
r g
ran

t ce
rtif

ica
tio

n w
ork

 wi
ll b

e c
om

ple
ted

 by
 30

 N
ove

mb
er 
201

3. W
e 

wil
l co

nfi
rm

 ou
r fi

nal
 fee

 fo
r th

e y
ear

 on
ce 

thi
s w

ork
 ha

s b
een

 co
mp

lete
d.

Re
po
rts

 is
su
ed

R
ep

o
rt

D
at

e 
is

su
ed

A
ud

it 
P

la
n

Ju
ne

 2
01

3

A
ud

it 
F

in
di

ng
s 

R
ep

or
t

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
3

V
fM

 –
F

in
an

ci
al

 R
es

ili
en

ce
 R

ep
or

t
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
01

3

A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

Le
tte

r
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
re

po
rt

E
xp

ec
te

d 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
13

Page 96



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
An

nu
al

 A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r  

|  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3

©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. 

'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 m
ea

ns
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
UK

 L
LP

, a
 li

m
ite

d 
lia

bi
lit

y
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

. 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

is
 a

 m
em

be
r f

irm
 o

f G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l L
td

 
(G

ra
nt

Th
or

nt
on

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l).
 R

ef
er

en
ce

s 
to

 'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 a
re

 
to

 th
e 

br
an

d 
un

de
r w

hi
ch

 th
e 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

m
em

be
r f

irm
s 

op
er

at
e 

an
d 

re
fe

r t
o 

on
e 

or
 m

or
e 

m
em

be
r f

irm
s,

 a
s 

th
e 

co
nt

ex
t r

eq
ui

re
s.

 
G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l a

nd
 th

e 
m

em
be

r f
irm

s 
ar

e 
no

t a
 

wo
rld

wi
de

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

. S
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 b

y 
m

em
be

r f
irm

s,
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 n
ot

 re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r t

he
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

or
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
of

 o
ne

 a
no

th
er

. G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l d
oe

s 
no

t p
ro

vi
de

 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 c
lie

nt
s.

 

gr
an

t-t
ho

rn
to

n.
co

.u
k

Page 97



Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
wo

rk
 re

po
rt 

fo
r P

ly
m

ou
th

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

 | 
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
3

Ce
rtif

ica
tio

n r
epo

rt 2
012

/13
for

 Pl
ym

ou
th 

Cit
y C

ou
nci

l

Y
ea

r 
en

d
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3

D
av

id
 B

ra
y

S
en

io
r A

ud
it 

M
an

ag
er

T
01

17
 3

05
 7

88
9

E
 

da
vi

d.
br

ay
@

uk
.g

t.c
om

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

3

B
ar

ri
e 

M
o

rr
is

E
ng

ag
em

en
t L

ea
d

T
01

17
 3

05
 7

70
8

E
 

ba
rr

ie
.m

or
ris

@
uk

.g
t.c

om

Agenda Item 11Page 99



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
wo

rk
 re

po
rt 

fo
r P

ly
m

ou
th

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

 | 
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
3

2

Co
nte

nts
Se

ct
io

n
Pa

ge
1.

Ex
ecu

tiv
e s

um
ma

ry
4

2.
Re

sul
ts o

f o
ur 

cer
tifi

cat
ion

 wo
rk 

7
Ap

pe
nd

ice
s

A  
De

tail
s o

f c
laim

s a
nd
 re
tur

ns 
cer

tifi
ed 

for
 20

12/
13

9

Page 100



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
wo

rk
 re

po
rt 

fo
r P

ly
m

ou
th

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

 | 
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
3

Se
ct
io
n 
1:

Ex
ecu

tive
 su

mm
ary

01
.

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 s

u
m

m
ar

y

02
.

R
es

u
lt

s 
o

f 
o

u
r 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 w

o
rk

Page 101



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
wo

rk
 re

po
rt 

fo
r P

ly
m

ou
th

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

 | 
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
3

4

Ex
ecu

tive
 su

mm
ary

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
su

m
m

ar
y

In
tro

du
ct
io
n

We
 ar
e r
equ

ired
 to

 ce
rtif

y c
ert

ain
 of

 th
e c

laim
s a
nd
 re
tur

ns 
sub

mi
tte
d b

y P
lym

ou
th 

Cit
y C

ou
nci

l ('t
he 

Co
un
cil'

). T
his

 ce
rtif

ica
tio

n t
ypi

cal
ly t

ake
s p

lac
e s

ix t
o n

ine
 

mo
nth

s a
fte

r th
e c

laim
 pe

rio
d a

nd
 re
pre

sen
ts a

 fin
al b

ut 
im
po
rta

nt 
par

t o
f th

e 
pro

ces
s to

 co
nfi

rm
 th

e C
ou
nci

l's 
ent

itle
me

nt 
to 

fun
din

g.
We

 ha
ve 

cer
tifi

ed 
thr

ee
cla

im
s a
nd
 re
tur

ns 
for

 th
e f
ina

nci
al y

ear
 20

12/
13 

rela
tin

g 
to 

exp
end

itu
re 
of 

£2
14.

775
 m
illio

n. 
Th

is r
epo

rt s
um

ma
rise

s o
ur 

ove
rall

 as
ses

sm
ent

 of
 th

e C
ou
nci

l’s 
ma

nag
em

ent
 

arr
ang

em
ent

s in
 re
spe

ct o
f th

e c
ert

ific
atio

n p
roc

ess
 an

d d
raw

s a
tte
nti

on
 to

 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
ma

tte
rs i

n r
ela

tio
n t

o i
nd
ivid

ual
 cla

im
s.

Ap
pr
oa
ch
 a
nd
 c
on
te
xt
 to

 c
er
tif
ic
at
io
n 

Ar
ran

gem
ent

s fo
r ce

rtif
ica

tio
n a

re 
pre

scr
ibe

d b
y th

e A
ud
it C

om
mi
ssio

n, w
hic

h 
agr

ees
 th

e s
cop

e o
f th

e w
ork

 wi
th 

eac
h r

ele
van

t g
ove

rnm
ent

 de
par

tm
ent

 or
 

age
ncy

, an
d is

sue
s a
ud
ito

rs w
ith

 a C
ert

ific
atio

n I
nst

ruc
tio

n (
CI
) fo

r ea
ch 

spe
cifi

c 
cla

im
 or

 re
tur

n. 

Ke
y m

es
sa
ge
s 

A s
um

ma
ry 
of 

all 
cla

im
s a
nd
 re
tur

ns 
sub

jec
t to

 ce
rtif

ica
tio

n i
s p

rov
ide

d a
t 

Ap
pen

dix
 A.

 Th
e k

ey 
me

ssa
ges

 fro
m 
ou
r c
ert

ific
atio

n w
ork

 are
 su

mm
aris

ed 
in 

the
 tab

le b
elo

w a
nd
 se

t o
ut 
in 
det

ail 
in t

he 
nex

t se
ctio

n o
f th

e r
epo

rt.

As
pe
ct

of 
cer

tifi
cat

ion
 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
Ke

y M
ess

ag
es

RA
G

rat
ing

Su
bm

iss
ion

 &
 

cer
tifi

cat
ion

All
 th

ree
 cla

im
s a
nd
 re
tur

ns 
we

re 
sub

mi
tte
d  
and

 ce
rtif

ied
 by

 th
e r
equ

ired
 

dea
dlin

es.
� Gr
een

Ac
cu
rac

yo
f c
lai
m 

for
ms

 su
bm

itte
d t

o 
the

 au
dit

or 
(in

clu
din

g 
am

en
dm

en
ts &

 
qu

ali
fic

ati
on

s)

No
ne 

of 
the

cla
im
s re

qui
red

 am
end

ing
 

pri
or 

to 
cer

tifi
cat

ion
.   A

 Q
ual

ific
atio

n 
lett

er 
wa

s p
rep

are
d in

 re
spe

ct o
f o

ne 
cla

im
.. F

ull 
det

ails
 ca

n b
e f
ou
nd
 in 

Ap
pen

dix
 A.

� Am
ber

Su
pp

ort
ing

 
wo

rki
ng

 pa
pe
rs

Wo
rki

ng 
pap

ers
 we

re 
in 
pla

ce 
to 

sup
po
rt 

the
 en

trie
s o

n t
he 

cla
im
s a
nd
 re
tur

ns 
and

 
req

ues
ts f

or 
add

itio
nal

 in
for

ma
tio

n w
ere

 
dea

lt w
ith

 pr
om

ptl
y.

� Gr
een

Page 102



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
wo

rk
 re

po
rt 

fo
r P

ly
m

ou
th

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

 | 
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
3

5

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
su

m
m

ar
y

Ac
kn
ow

le
dg
em

en
ts
 

We
 wo

uld
 lik

e to
 tak

e th
is o

pp
ort

un
ity 

to 
tha

nk 
the

 Co
un
cil 

off
ice

rs f
or 

the
ir 

ass
ista

nce
 an

d c
o-o

per
atio

n d
uri

ng 
the

 co
urs

e o
f th

e c
ert

ific
atio

n p
roc

ess
.

Gr
an

t T
ho

rnt
on

 U
K L

LP
No

vem
be
r2
013

Page 103



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
wo

rk
 re

po
rt 

fo
r P

ly
m

ou
th

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

 | 
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
3

Se
ct
io
n 
2:

Re
sul

ts o
f o

ur 
cer

tifi
cat

ion
 wo

rk

01
.

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 s

u
m

m
ar

y

02
.

R
es

u
lt

s 
o

f 
o

u
r 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 w

o
rk

Page 104



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
wo

rk
 re

po
rt 

fo
r P

ly
m

ou
th

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

 | 
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
3

7

Re
sul

ts o
f o

ur 
cer

tifi
cat

ion
 wo

rk
R

es
ul

ts
 o

f o
ur

 c
er

tif
ic

at
io

n
w

or
k

Ke
y m

es
sa
ge
s

We
 ha

ve 
cer

tifi
ed 

thr
ee 

cla
im
s a
nd
 re
tur

ns 
for

 th
e f
ina

nci
al y

ear
 20

12/
13 

, as
 no

ted
 

in 
Ap

pen
dix

 A.
Th

e C
ou
nci

l's 
per

for
ma

nce
 in 

pre
par

ing
 cla

im
s a
nd
 re
tur

ns 
is s

um
ma

rise
d b

elo
w: 

Th
is a

nal
ysi
s o

f p
erf

orm
anc

e s
ho
ws

 th
at:

•
in 
line

 wi
th 

las
t ye

ar 
all 

cla
im
s a
nd
 re
tur

ns 
we

re 
sub

mi
tte
d a

nd
 ce

rtif
ied

 by
 th

e 
req

uir
ed 

dea
dlin

es;
•

no
 cla

im
s o

r re
tur

ns 
req

uir
ed 

am
end

ing
, w

hic
h i
s a
n i
mp

rov
em

ent
 ov

er 
las
t  

yea
r; a

nd
•

on
e r
etu

rn 
wa

s q
ual

ifie
d (

Ho
usi

ng 
and

 Co
un
cil 

Ta
x B

ene
fit 

Sch
em

e), 
the

 sa
me

 
as 
las
t ye

ar.
De

tail
s o

f th
e c

ert
ific

atio
n o

f al
l cl

aim
s a
nd
 re
tur

ns 
are

 in
clu

ded
 at 

Ap
pen

dix
 A.

Si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
 fi
nd
in
gs
 

Ou
r w

ork
 ha

s n
ot 

 ide
nti

fied
 an

y s
ign

ific
ant

  is
sue

s in
 re
lati

on
 to

 th
e m

ana
gem

ent
 

arr
ang

em
ent

s a
nd
 ce

rtif
ica

tio
n o

f in
div

idu
al g

ran
t cl

aim
s a
nd
 re
tur

ns.
 (se

e 
Ap

pen
dix

 A)
.

Ce
rti
fic

at
io
n 
fe
es

Th
e A

ud
it C

om
mi
ssio

n s
et a

n i
nd
ica

tiv
e s

cal
e f
ee 

for
 gr
ant

 cla
im
 ce

rtif
ica

tio
n 

bas
ed 

on
 20

10/
11 

cer
tifi

cat
ion

 fe
es 
for

 ea
ch 

aud
ited

 bo
dy.

  T
he 

ind
ica

tiv
e s

cal
e f
ee 

for
 th

e C
ou
nci

l fo
r 2

012
/13

 wa
s £

23,
900

  an
d w

e a
re 
pro

po
sin

g a
 va

riat
ion

 to
 

red
uce

 th
is f

ee 
by 

£1
,63

2 d
ue 

to 
par

t A
 wo

rk 
on
ly b

ein
g r
equ

ired
 fo

r th
e N

ND
R 

cla
im
.  T

her
efo

re t
he 

rev
ise
d f

ee 
is £

22,
268

.

Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce 

me
asu

re
Ta

rge
t

Ac
hie

vem
en
t 

in 
201

2/
13

Ac
hie

vem
en
t 

in 
201

1/1
2

Di
rec

tio
n 

of 
tra

vel
No

.
%

No
.

%

Cla
im
s s
ub
mi
tte
d

on
 tim

e
100

%
3

100
%

3
100

%

Cla
im
s c

ert
ifie

d
on
 tim

e
100

%
3

100
%

3
100

%

Cla
im
s c

ert
ifie

d 
wit

ho
ut 

am
end

me
nt

100
%

0
100

%
2

67%

Cla
im
s c

ert
ifie

d 
wit

ho
ut 

qua
lifi
cat

ion
100

%
2

67%
2

67%

Page 105



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
wo

rk
 re

po
rt 

fo
r P

ly
m

ou
th

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

 | 
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
3

8

Ap
pen

dic
es

A
pp

en
di

ce
s

Page 106



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
wo

rk
 re

po
rt 

fo
r P

ly
m

ou
th

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

 | 
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
3

9

Ap
pen

dix
 A:

 D
eta

ils 
of 

cla
im
s a

nd
 re
tur

ns 
cer

tifi
ed 

for
 20

12/
13

C
la

im
o

r 
re

tu
rn

V
al

u
e

A
m

en
d

ed
?

A
m

en
d

m
en

t
Q

u
al

if
ie

d
?

C
o

m
m

en
ts

Ho
usi

ng 
and

 co
un
cil 

tax
 

ben
efi
t sc

hem
e

£1
21,

837
,55

8
No

Ni
l

Ye
s

As
ma

ll n
um

ber
 of

 er
ror

s w
ere

 id
ent

ifie
d 

du
rin

g t
he 

cou
rse

 of
 ou

rw
ork

: 
•

Be
nef

it h
ad 

bee
n u

nd
erp

aid
 to

 tw
o 

cla
im
ant

s (o
ut 
of

60 
tes

ted
) in

 re
spe

ct o
f 

Re
nt 

All
ow

anc
es.
  

•
Be
nef

it h
ad 

bee
n m

isc
las
sifi

ed 
in 
res

pec
t o

f 
Co

un
cil 

Ta
x B

ene
fit 

exp
end

itu
re.
  F

rom
 60

 
cas

es 
on
e c

ase
 wa

s id
ent

ifie
d w

hic
h h

ad 
bee

n r
eco

rde
d in

 th
e w

ron
g c

ell.
 

•
An

 un
der

-cla
im
 of

 su
bsi

dy 
(£6

3) 
wa

s fo
un
d 

du
e to

 ex
pen

dit
ure

 be
ing

 cla
ssif

ied
 as
 a 

mo
dif

ied
 sc
hem

e w
hen

 it 
sho

uld
 ha

ve 
bee

n 
rec

ord
ed 

in 
Re

nt 
All

ow
anc

es.
 

Th
ese

 er
ror

s w
ere

rep
ort

ed 
in 
the

 Q
ual

ific
atio

n 
lett

er 
sen

t to
 th

e D
WP

on
 th

e 2
6th

No
vem

ber
 

201
3. 
Th

ese
 er
ror

s w
ere

 no
t id

ent
ifie

d in
 th

e 
pre

vio
us 

yea
ra
nd
, o
ver

all,
 th

ere
 we

re 
les
s 

err
ors

 in
 20

12/
13 

tha
n i
n p

rev
iou

s y
ear

s.

Na
tio
nal

 no
n-d

om
est

ic 
rat
es 
ret

urn
£8

2,4
44,

908
No

Ni
l

No
No

ne

Te
ach

ers
’ p
ens

ion
s r
etu

rn
£1

0,4
92,

965
No

Ni
l

No
No

ne

A
pp

en
di

ce
s

Page 107



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
wo

rk
 re

po
rt 

fo
r P

ly
m

ou
th

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

 | 
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
3

©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. 

'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 m
ea

ns
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
UK

 L
LP

, a
 li

m
ite

d 
lia

bi
lit

y
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

. 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

is
 a

 m
em

be
r f

irm
 o

f G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l L
td

 
(G

ra
nt

Th
or

nt
on

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l).
 R

ef
er

en
ce

s 
to

 'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 a
re

 
to

 th
e 

br
an

d 
un

de
r w

hi
ch

 th
e 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

m
em

be
r f

irm
s 

op
er

at
e 

an
d 

re
fe

r t
o 

on
e 

or
 m

or
e 

m
em

be
r f

irm
s,

 a
s 

th
e 

co
nt

ex
t r

eq
ui

re
s.

 
G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l a

nd
 th

e 
m

em
be

r f
irm

s 
ar

e 
no

t a
 

wo
rld

wi
de

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

. S
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 b

y 
m

em
be

r f
irm

s,
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 n
ot

 re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r t

he
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

or
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
of

 o
ne

 a
no

th
er

. G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l d
oe

s 
no

t p
ro

vi
de

 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 c
lie

nt
s.

 

gr
an

t-t
ho

rn
to

n.
co

.u
k

Page 108



 
Audit Committee Work Plan 2013/14 

 
 

  2013 2014 

Item Cabinet Member / 
Lead Officer J J A S O N D J F M A M J 

 
Internal Audit Annual Report 
(including six month Internal 
Audit Progress Report - Dec) 

Cllrs Lowry and 
Peter Smith / DfCS 
 

13 

  

 

  

12 

  

 

   
√ 

               
 
Statement of Accounts 2012/13 
 

Cllrs Lowry and 
Peter Smith / DfCS 
 

13 
  

19 
  

 
  

 
   

√ 

               
 
Operational Risk  and 
Opportunity Management  - 
Update Report 
 

Cllrs Lowry and 
Peter Smith / DfCS 
(Mike Hocking) 

13 

  

 

  

12 

  

 

   
√ 

               

Risk Management Annual 
Report 

Cllrs Lowry and 
Peter Smith / DfCS 
(Mike Hocking) 

13 
  

 
  

 
  

 
   

√ 

               

Annual Governance Statement 
Cllrs Lowry and 
Peter Smith / DfCS 
(Mike Hocking) 

13 
  

 
  

 
  

 
   

√ 

               
 
Annual Report on Treasury 
Management Activities for 
2012/13 

Andrew Liddicott 13 

  

 

  

 

  

 

   

A
genda Item

 12
P

age 109



 
Audit Committee Work Plan 2013/14 

 
 

  2013 2014 

Item Cabinet Member / 
Lead Officer J J A S O N D J F M A M J 

               
Treasury Management Mid-Year 
Review 2013/14 Andrew Liddicott       12       

               
 
RIPA Surveillance Report 
 

Richard Woodfield  
  

 
  

12 
  

 
   

               
 
Strategic Risk and Opportunity 
Management Register 
Monitoring Report 
 

Cllrs Lowry and 
Peter Smith / DfCS 
(Mike Hocking) 

 

  

19 

  

 

  

13 

  
 

 
 

               

Internal Audit Annual Plan 
Cllrs Lowry and 
Peter Smith / DfCS 
(Sue Watts) 

 
  

 
  

 
  

13 
  

 
 

               

Internal Audit – Progress 
Report 

Brenda Davis/ 
Dominic Measures/ 
Robert Hutchins 

 
  

19 
  

 
  

 
   

               

Internal Audit – Follow Up 
Work 

Brenda Davis/ 
Dominic Measures/ 
Robert Hutchins 

 
  

19 
  

 
  

 
   

               

P
age 110



 
Audit Committee Work Plan 2013/14 

 
 

  2013 2014 

Item Cabinet Member / 
Lead Officer J J A S O N D J F M A M J 

Audit Plan 2012/2013 – 
progress report 

External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
19 

  
 

  
 

   

               
Annual Report to Those 
Charged with Governance 
(ISA260 Report) 2012/2013 

External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
19 

  
 

  
 

   

               

Value for Money Report - 
Financial Resilience 

External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
19 

  
 

  
 

   

               

Project Management Review External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
 

  
 

  
 

   

               

Audit Update External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
 

  
12 

  
 

   

               

Annual Audit Letter 2012/2013 External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
 

  
12 

  
 

  
 

 

               

P
age 111



 
Audit Committee Work Plan 2013/14 

 
 

  2013 2014 

Item Cabinet Member / 
Lead Officer J J A S O N D J F M A M J 

Certification Work Report 
2013/2014 

External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
 

  
12 

  
 

   

               

Audit Plan 2013/2014 External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
 

  
 

  
13 

  
 

 

               

Audit Fee Letter 2013/2014 External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
19 

  
 

  
 

  
 

 

               

Review of rolling workplan Lead Officer/DSO 13 
  

19 
  

12 
  

13 
  

 
 

√ 

               

ICT Update Mel Gwynn  
  

19 
  

 
  

 
   

               

Information Commissioners 
Audit Mike Hocking  

  
 

  
 

  
13 

   

 

P
age 112


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	5 INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT (SIX MONTH PROGRESS REPORT)
	6 TREASURY MANAGEMENT MID YEAR REVIEW 2013/14
	7 OPERATIONAL RISK AND OPPORTUNITY MANAGEMENT - UPDATE REPORT
	8 COVERT SURVEILLANCE RIPA
	9 AUDIT UPDATE - GRANT THORNTON
	10 ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2012/2013
	11 CERTIFICATION REPORT 2012/13
	12 REVIEW OF ROLLING WORKPLAN

